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Washington, September 28, 2016.

Hon. KAREN L. Haas,
Clerk, House of Representatives,
Washington, DC.

DEAR Ms. HaAS: Pursuant to clauses 3(a)(2) and 3(b) of rule XI
of the Rules of the House of Representatives, we herewith transmit
the attached report, “In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Rep-
resentative David McKinley.”

Sincerely,
CHARLES W. DENT,
Chairman.
LinDA T. SANCHEZ,
Ranking Member.
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House Calendar No. 154

114TH CONGRESS REPORT
2d Session HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 114-795

IN THE MATTER OF ALLEGATIONS RELATING TO
REPRESENTATIVE DAVID McKINLEY

SEPTEMBER 28, 2016.—Referred to the House Calendar and ordered to be printed

Mr. DENT, from the Committee on Ethics,
submitted the following

REPORT

In accordance with House Rule XI, clauses 3(a)(2) and 3(b), the
Committee on Ethics (Committee) hereby submits the following Re-
port to the House of Representatives:

I. INTRODUCTION

For more than thirty-five years, the Ethics in Government Act
(EIGA) has prohibited a Member of Congress from (1) “receiving
compensation for affiliating with or being employed by a firm . . .
which provides professional services involving a fiduciary relation-
ship,” and (2) “permit[ing] his name to be used by any such
firm[.]” 1 House Rules have included a corresponding prohibition for
almost twenty-five years.2 The Committee has consistently applied
these restrictions to certain firms providing professional services,
including but not limited to medicine, law, and architecture. Nota-
bly, the restrictions on the use of a Member’s name are absolute
and are not tied to the receipt of compensation by the Member or
any other affiliation with the firm. These restrictions can seem on-
erous to new Members, particularly for those who have worked
hard over many years to build a business and their own profes-
sional reputation. However, these restrictions are an important
part of the House’s conflicts of interest protections, and they are
applied equally to all Members.

As a part of its advisory function, the Committee routinely pro-
vides new Members with confidential guidance on how to comply
with the fiduciary restrictions. EIGA expressly grants the Com-
mittee sole authority to administer these restrictions for Members

15 U.S.C. app. §502(a).
2House Rule XXV, cl. 2.
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of the House.? Thus, every two years the Committee instructs
newly elected Members who are affiliated with firms that implicate
the fiduciary restrictions to take steps to comply with the statute.
This guidance can take the form of either informal advice provided
by the Committee’s nonpartisan professional staff or formal advi-
sory opinions issued by the Chairman and Ranking Member of the
Committee.*

The fiduciary restrictions apply immediately upon a Member’s
swearing-in. However, extricating a Member from a firm, whether
through winding down the firm or a sale of the Member’s interest
along with a concomitant name change, can take time.5 Thus, the
Committee will take no adverse action against a Member who con-
tinues to be affiliated with a firm that provides professional serv-
ices involving a fiduciary relationship, so long as the Member is
working with the Committee in good faith to comply with the re-
strictions. If a Member fails to work with the Committee in good
faith, or simply ignores the Committee’s guidance, the Committee
has no choice but to take corrective action.

In 1981, Representative David McKinley founded the engineering
firm now known as McKinley & Associates (the Firm), where he
was a principal and worked as an engineer until his election to
Congress in 2010. The Firm also provides architectural services.
From at least November 2010, until June 2011, the Committee ad-
vised Representative McKinley regarding the Firm. The Commit-
tee’s advice, provided both informally and in a formal advisory
opinion letter dated June 24, 2011, instructed Representative
McKinley that the Firm, which carries his name, would have to
change its name, given its fiduciary responsibilities.

Representative McKinley did not follow the Committee’s advice.
Instead, after receiving the Committee’s June 24, 2011, letter, Rep-
resentative McKinley ceased communicating with the Committee
and sold his shares in the Firm to the Firm’s Employee Stock Op-
tion Plan (ESOP), with the Firm’s name intact. When Representa-
tive McKinley filed his calendar year 2011 Financial Disclosure
Statement, on May 15, 2012, that statement indicated that the
Firm still operated as McKinley & Associates. The Committee then
contacted Representative McKinley, reiterated its guidance, and
sought an explanation of Representative McKinley’s efforts to com-
ply with the fiduciary restrictions. Representative McKinley re-
sponded that, due to the sale of the firm, he was now powerless to
c}}llarllge the name of the Firm, and absolved from doing so under
the law.6

35 U.S.C. app. §503(1)(A).

4Formal advisory opinions confer upon the requesting individual protection from any “adverse
action [by the Committee] in regard to any conduct that has been undertaken in reliance on
a written opinion if the conduct conforms to the specific facts addressed in the opinion.” Com-
mittee Rule 3(k). In addition, the Committee is precluded from using information provided to
the Committee by a requesting individual “seeking advice regarding prospective conduct . . .
as the basis for initiating an investigation,” provided that the requesting individual “acts in good
faith in accordance with the written advice of the Committee.” Committee Rule 3(1).

5Some new Members attempt to convince the Committee that the fiduciary restrictions do not
apply to their firm. The Committee considers any well-reasoned argument, but such consider-
ation can delay the advisory process.

6 Representative McKinley also argued that, despite previous Committee guidance to the con-
trary, the Firm should be permitted to continue to operate under its current name given the
relationship of Representative McKinley’s family name to the engineering industry in West Vir-
ginia. As Section III discusses, the Committee considered these arguments but concluded that
they were either incorrect or insufficient to affect the outcome.
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Given Representative McKinley’s actions, the Chairman and
Ranking Member authorized Committee staff, pursuant to Com-
mittee Rule 18(a), to investigate potential violations of EIGA and
House Rules related to the Firm, its name, and its operations.
Committee staff reviewed documents received from Representative
McKinley and from the Firm, and interviewed the President of the
Firm, who also serves as trustee for the ESOP. Following its inves-
tigation, the Committee concluded that Representative McKinley’s
decision to sell the Firm, with the name intact, violated EIGA and
the House rules, even though Representative McKinley relied on
the advice of his attorney when making that decision. Therefore
the Committee voted to issue this Report, along with a Letter of
Reproval to Representative McKinley for his conduct.

II. HOUSE RULES, LAWS, REGULATIONS, AND OTHER
STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

EIGA Section 502(a) prohibits a Member from “receiv[ing] com-
pensation for affiliating with or being employed by a firm, partner-
ship, association, corporation, or other entity which provides profes-
sional services involving a fiduciary relationship,” and from
“permit[ting] his name to be used by . . . a firm, partnership, asso-
ciation, corporation, or other entity [that provides professional serv-
ices involving a fiduciary relationship.]” 7 For both of these prohibi-
tions, a threshold question is whether the entity in question pro-
vides services involving a fiduciary relationship. The statute does
not define fiduciary. Generally, however, a fiduciary duty implies
an obligation to act in another person’s best interests or for that
person’s benefit, or a relationship of trust in which one relies on
the integrity, fidelity, and judgment of another.®8 By statute, the
Committee has the sole authority to administer these restrictions
for Members of the House.?

The concern posed by these sorts of services is twofold: primarily,
the House was concerned that a Member who held a fiduciary duty
to a private client or clients might be susceptible to unique prob-
lems of conflicts of interest in his official duties, but also, the
House believed the compensation ban was necessary to fully effec-
tuate its ban on honoraria, which it worried could reemerge in the
form of professional fees.1® The Ethics Task Force that developed
these rules advised that “in order for the underlying purposes to
be achieved, ‘the term fiduciary [should] not be applied in a nar-
row, technical sense.’”1l The Task Force thus said that it
“intend[ed] the ban to reach, for example, services such as legal,
real estate, consulting and advising, insurance, medicine, architec-
ture, or financial.” 12 The Committee, in interpreting the ban, has
relied on that list of professions, as well as the treatment of the

75 U.S.C. app. §502(a). This Section of EIGA has been incorporated into the House Rules at
House Rule XXV, cl. 2.

8See Black’s Law Dictionary 658, 1315 (8th ed. 2004).

95 U.S.C. app. §503(1)(A).

10See House Ethics Manual (2008) at 215 (hereinafter Ethics Manual) (citing House Bipar-
tisan Task Force on Ethics, Report on H.R. 3660, 101st Cong., 1st Sess. (1989)).

11rd.

12House Bipartisan Task Force on Ethics, Report on H.R. 3660, 101st Cong., 1st Sess. at 16
(1989) (emphasis added).
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particular industry under state agency law with respect to fidu-
ciary duties, and regulations issued for the executive branch.13

If indeed a Member has an association with a firm providing fi-
duciary services under this definition, Section 502 bans both the re-
ceipt of compensation and the use of the Member’s name. Note that
the use of the Member’s name is specifically not tied to compensa-
tion, so a Member cannot avoid that part of the ban simply by fore-
going any compensation for use of the name. The ban, however,
does not apply where the use of the Member’s name in fact reflects
al“family” name. The Ethics Manual provides an illustrative exam-
ple:

Member Jane Doe is a certified public accountant. Prior to
her election, she was employed by the accounting firm of
Doe & Moe, named for its founder and her father, Joe Doe.
Since the firm was not actually named for her, it does not
have to change its name upon her election.14

Based on that advice, and based on the legislative history of Sec-
tion 502,15 the “family name” exception is fairly specific—it refers
to situations in which the “name” of the firm does not actually
refer to the Member, but rather to someone in his or her family.

Another statute, 5 U.S.C. app. §501, prohibits firms that practice
before federal agencies from using the name of a Member of Con-
gress in advertising the business.

As a practical matter, when Members are elected to the House
and have associations with either of these sorts of businesses, the
Committee consistently advises them that the appropriate course of
action is to cease receipt of any compensation and to remove their
name from the business and its materials.

Finally, House Rule XXIII, clauses 1 and 2, provide that a Mem-
ber “shall behave at all times in a manner that shall reflect
creditably on the House,” and “shall adhere to the spirit and the
letter of the Rules of the House.”

III. BACKGROUND
A. HISTORY OF MCKINLEY & ASSOCIATES 16

Prior to Representative McKinley’s election to the House, he
worked as a licensed professional engineer at the Firm, of which
Representative McKinley was also an officer and director. Accord-
ing to its Web site, the Firm opened its doors in 1981. Representa-
tive McKinley told the Committee that he left a large industrial
construction firm and “struck out to be a sole practitioner in archi-
tecture and engineering practice.”1?” The Firm has operated as
“McKinley & Associates” since 1989; prior to that, Representative

13 Ethics Manual at 216.

141d. at 222 (emphasis added).

15 See House Bipartisan Task Force on Ethics, Report on H.R. 3660, 101st Cong., 1st Sess.
at 16 (1989) (“the fact that a Member, officer, or employee is presently associated with a law
firm founded by, and still bearing the name of, his father would not require the firm to drop
the ‘family’ name.”).

16 As discussed more fully below at Section III.C-E, the facts regarding the nature of the
Firm, its predecessors, Representative McKinley’s ownership of it, and Representative
McKinley’s father’s involvement with it have been the subject of much confusion, mostly due
to incorrect representations made by Representative McKinley’s former counsel. This section,
rather than deal with those ambiguities, attempts to compile the facts about the Firm as the
Committee currently understands them, after its investigation.

17 Representative McKinley Appearance.
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McKinley operated a sole practitioner’s office focused on engineer-
ing services known as “McKinley Engineering,” which he folded
into the Firm once it began offering architectural services as well.

The Firm “engages in the businesses of professional engineering
and architecture through its employed professionals.” 18 West Vir-
ginia law deems architecture—the primary service provided by the
Firm—to be a profession that involves fiduciary duties.1®

The Firm has three offices, located in Wheeling, West Virginia;
Charleston, West Virginia; and Washington, Pennsylvania, and em-
ploys more than 40 individuals. The Firm provides services in the
Pittsburgh Tri-state region and other mid-Atlantic states. Its Web
site indicates that past clients have included many state- and local-
level government entities, as well as federal entities such as the
U.S. Postal Service, Department of Defense, the National Aero-
nautics and Space Administration, and the Federal Aviation Ad-
ministration. With respect to the Postal Service contract, according
to the current President of the Firm, the Postal Service has a cer-
tification process for eligibility to perform design, construction, and
renovation services for its buildings located within a given region.
The firm has historically submitted an application for, and re-
ceived, that certification. There is no guarantee that the Firm will
receive any work after being certified, nor is it required to perform
work that arises. The certification has a five-year term, during
which qualified firms are eligible for selection to perform work as
the Postal Service assigns it. The Firm most recently submitted its
certification in August 2010, prior to Representative McKinley’s
election, and has removed his name from all contracting materials
since his election, except for the name at the top of the letterhead.

In January 2007, the Firm established a partial ESOP. In an ap-
pearance before the Committee, Representative McKinley stated
that he formed the ESOP after “my attorney and my financial advi-
sor advised me that as we get older . . . we need to think about
ownership transition . . . because I am not going to practice for-
ever.” 20 Representative McKinley explained that he did not want
to sell the firm to a larger company, because he believed “they
would have picked out the best people, and then everyone else
would have been gone.”2! “So, what we did in respect for our em-
ployees, out of the three offices, we set up an ESOP.”22 The ESOP
purchased 30 percent of the company at that time and “they had
the right to purchase the remaining 70 percent.” 23

Upon his election to Congress, Representative McKinley still
owned approximately 70 percent of the Firm’s common stock, with
the remaining 30 percent owned by the Firm’s employees under the
ESOP. Currently, the ESOP owns 100 percent of the Firm’s equity,
which it purchased via a loan for which Representative McKinley
currently holds the note. (On his Financial Disclosure Statement
for 2015, Representative McKinley reported two entries for “McKin-
ley & Associates ESOP Notes Receivable,” one worth between

18 Exhibit 1.

19See W.V. Code §§30-12-2(4), 30-12-4. As noted in more detail infra, Representative
McKinley has disputed and continues to dispute the finding that the Firm provides fiduciary
services covered by EIGA. His dispute is wholly unsupported by the law. See infra n. 70.

;‘1’ }%epresentative McKinley Appearance.

w1,

23]1d.
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$1,000,001 and $5,000,000 and one worth between $100,001 and
$250,000.24 Representative McKinley told the Committee there is
“somewhere around $3 million probably left, 3.5 maybe” on the
notes.25) Representative McKinley also owns the building in which
the Firm leases its office space; the Firm leases space back to Rep-
resentative McKinley for a personal office unrelated to his official
duties. Representative McKinley’s wife serves as Secretary of the
Firm’s Board and is a Vice President of the Firm. His daughter-
in-law is an employee of the Firm and partial owner of the ESOP,
and his oldest son is the ESOP’s financial advisor.

Representative McKinley’s father, Johnson B. McKinley, was also
a licensed professional engineer. Johnson McKinley maintained a
one-man office as a consulting engineer in Wheeling, West Virginia,
from the 1950s until his retirement in the 1980s. Johnson
McKinley’s practice during those years was most commonly called
“Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting Engineer,” but Johnson McKin-
ley also appears to have done business under the following names:

¢ Engineer—dJ.B. McKinley
Eng’r—J.B. McKinley
J.B. McKinley, Eng’r
J.B. McKinley, P.E.

J.B. McKinley Engineers

Johnson B. McKinley

Johnson B. McKinley, P.E.

Johnson McKinley Consulting Eng’r
Johnson McKinley Consulting Engineer 26

Although this list did not include the name “McKinley Engineer-
ing,” Representative McKinley, through his counsel, has stated that
the name “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering” was also used at
some point. Regardless, it is notable that each iteration of Johnson
B. McKinley’s business appears to have used not only his last
name, but also either his first name or first and middle initials.
This fact distinguishes Representative McKinley’s firm, McKinley
& Associates, from each of his father’s businesses.

Representative McKinley worked with his father for approxi-
mately two years prior to establishing the Firm in 1981, which ulti-
mately became “custodian of all of the drawings, files, and other as-
sets accumulated” by Representative McKinley’s father during his
career as an engineer, and also currently serves many of the same
clients that his father did.2” Representative McKinley’s letters
stress that the name “McKinley” has been associated with engi-
neering services in the Wheeling area since approximately 1950.
Representative McKinley, through counsel, has also asserted that
the Firm also made several payments to Johnson McKinley, acting
as a consultant to the Firm, in the 1980s.22 However, Johnson

24 Representative McKinley Financial Disclosure Statement (2015).

25 Representative McKinley Appearance.

26 Exhibit 2. Note that “Eng’r” is a common abbreviation for “Engineer.” The abbreviation for
“Erggl;ineering” is “Eng’g.” See, e.g., The Bluebook: A Uniform System of Citation (20th Ed.), at
Table 6.

27 Exhibit 3.

28 This assertion is based solely on Representative McKinley’s recollections. Representative
McKinley’s counsel noted that Representative McKinley does not have access to any payment
records from this period, which was over 30 years ago. See Letter from J. Baran and R. Walker
to Chairman Dent and Ranking Member Sanchez, Apr. 19, 2016, at 1-2.
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McKinley was never on the payroll of the Firm, and maintained his
own business when his son started the Firm in 1981.

B. INITIAL REQUESTS FOR ADVICE AFTER REPRESENTATIVE
MCKINLEY’S ELECTION

Representative McKinley has told the Committee that on the
night of his election to the House, November 2, 2010, one of his cor-
porate consultants “surprisingly asked me, he said, are you sure
you are going to be able to continue your relationship with your
company?” To answer this question, Representative McKinley
turned to Committee staff several days later. On November 5,
2010, following a call with Representative McKinley, Committee
staff provided informal guidance via email, which stated staff’s
opinion that the Firm would need to change its name, based on the
legal regime discussed at Section I1.29 While Representative
McKinley, in his appearance before the Committee, characterized
this informal advice as a “maybe,” his reaction at the time made
clear that he understood that the guidance was quite clear. As he
wrote to associates, “How absurd is that advice. They expect me to
change the name of my company!!! . . . I told her that her advice
was BS.”30 Later, when an unnamed Committee staff member told
Representative McKinley during new Member orientation, on or
about November 14, 2010, that he may have to change the firm’s
name, he replied that the next time they heard from him it would
be through his attorney.3! At this time, Representative McKinley
also personally met with the then-Chairman of the Committee,
Representative Jo Bonner, and expressed his concerns. Representa-
tive Bonner apparently mentioned the possibility of a waiver—al-
though, because there is no record of the meeting, it is unclear
what he meant by that—and suggested that Representative McKin-
ley speak to the then-counsel to the Committee Chairman.

Almost immediately upon receiving staff’s informal advice, Rep-
resentative McKinley sought alternative advice from other sources.
On November 10, 2010, an official with the National Republican
Congressional Committee (NRCC) sent an email to Representative
McKinley, recounting the NRCC official’s conversation with a
former counsel to the Committee, stating that “Mr. McKinley, if he
doesn’t want to worry about changing the name of his firm, should
probably think about who he plans to divest his interest to. If it
happens to be a familial relative with the same name, he would
most likely not have to change the name of the whole firm. If it
is to a different individual, it likely would not be able to stay with
his name on it.” 32

This email from the NRCC official was the first of many discus-
sions between Representative McKinley and his advisors about sell-
ing his stake in the Firm to obviate some or all of the ethical ques-
tions surrounding it. Importantly, as discussed more fully below,
Representative McKinley did not inform Committee staff of those
discussions until after he had received the Committee’s formal
opinion that he was required to change the Firm’s name, and after

29 Exhibit 4 (“The informal opinion of the Committee staff is that these [fiduciary services]
restrictions would necessitate changing the name of your firm.”)

30 See id.

31See Exhibit 6 at 7.

32 Exhibit 7 (emphasis added).
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he had already agreed to sell the Firm, with the name intact. Fur-
ther, based on the Committee’s investigation, the matter of Rep-
resentative McKinley selling his stake in the Firm is only partially
related to his election to the House or the requirements of EIGA.
While it is true that Representative McKinley may have mistak-
enly viewed full divestment as a solution to the ethical issues the
Firm presented for him, it is not the only reason for such a sale.
According to statements by the Firm’s attorney and its current
president, Representative McKinley and others at the Firm had
long intended to convert the Firm to a fully-employee-owned busi-
ness, irrespective of Representative McKinley’s political ambi-
tions.33 Moreover, at least this initial email from the NRCC official
recognized that selling the Firm was not likely to remove the re-
quirement to change its name.

Eventually, however, Representative McKinley and his advisors
developed the incorrect theory that selling the Firm would indeed
allow it to continue operations as “McKinley & Associates.” On No-
vember 24, 2010, Representative McKinley received an email from
his attorney, Charles J. Kaiser. Mr. Kaiser, a West Virginia attor-
ney who “focuses his practice on corporate law, commercial law and
corporate reorganizations,”34 and who, to the Committee’s knowl-
edge, had not represented any individual before this Committee,
advised Representative McKinley that “If McKinley & Associates is
considered to be a firm providing professional services involving a
fiduciary relationship, then it appears that you are left with two
choices: (1) change the name, or (2) completely divest yourself of
your interest in the company (this appears to include [Mrs. McKin-
leyl as well.)” 35 Mr. Kaiser provided no citation to authority to sup-
port his assertion that the divestiture would negate the need for a
name change. Nor did he provide any reasoning for his analysis,
which was contrary to the assessment provided by the former Com-
mittee counsel consulted by the NRCC official.

Mr. Kaiser repeated his analysis in an email to the NRCC official
on November 29, 2010.36 Again, he failed to provide any rationale
for why selling the firm to the ESOP would resolve the problem of
the Firm’s name. The next day, Mr. Kaiser wrote a letter to the
then-Counsel to the Chairman of the Committee. Mr. Kaiser was
not nearly as certain of his position in that letter, noting the Firm’s
desire to “explore the possibility of retaining the name McKinley &
Associates, Inc. if Congressman-elect McKinley would sever his
other relationships with the business.” 37

A week later, on December 7, 2010, then-Counsel to the Chair-
man and Committee staff responded to Mr. Kaiser’s letter via tele-
phone; Mr. Kaiser memorialized his recollection of that conversa-
tion in an email to Representative McKinley, the NRCC official,
and an employee of the Firm.38 Mr. Kaiser explained that the staff-
ers had provided their opinion that the Firm would have to change
its name unless it qualified for the “family name exception.” 39 He

33 See Exhibit 8; Interview of Firm President.

34 Phillips, Gardill, Kaiser & Altmeyer, PLLC, “Kaiser, Charles J.” available at http:/
www.pgka.com/profiles_detail.php?profile ID=7 (last accessed May 17, 2016).

35 Exhibit 9.

36 Exhibit 10.

37 Exhibit 1.

38 Exhibit 11.

39]d.
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noted that staff suggested that Representative McKinley request a
written advisory opinion, but that “[blecause the Committee will
have a number of similar written advice requests from new Mem-
bers, it may well take some time to work through all of the opin-
ions and the name can remain the same until the opinion is ren-
dered.” 40 Finally, Mr. Kaiser’s own words demonstrate that he rec-
ognized, at this early juncture, that the question of the name of the
Firm was distinct from questions of Representative McKinley’s
compensation or position on the board of the Firm: “[bJecause the
‘family name exception’ does not eliminate the other two prohibi-
tions (i.e. compensation and management affiliation), I believe that
[Representative McKinley] will have to deal with the management
structure and ownership of McKinley & Associates, Inc. in any
event.” 41

C. REPRESENTATIVE MCKINLEY’S FORMAL ADVISORY OPINION

In early January 2011, Representative McKinley submitted a for-
mal request for an advisory opinion regarding the name of the
Firm. In that request, Representative McKinley’s attorney provided
the following statement regarding Johnson McKinley’s affiliation
with the Firm:

McKinley & Associates, Inc. and its predecessor McKinley
Engineering were the outgrowth of two licensed profes-
sional engineers that have worked in the Wheeling Area
since approximately 1950. Johnson B. McKinley, [Rep-
resentative] McKinley’s father, was a licensed professional
engineer who maintained an office as consulting engineer
in Wheeling for nearly 40 years. During most of those
years Johnson B. McKinley maintained a one-person office,
but David B. McKinley and Johnson B. McKinley worked
together for 2 years prior to Johnson B. McKinley’s retire-
ment, and McKinley & Associates, Inc. is the custodian of
all the drawings, files, and other assets accumulated by
Johnson B. McKinley over his career as a licensed profes-
sional engineer.42

This statement appears to have led Committee staff to believe—in-
correctly—that Johnson McKinley’s firm was named McKinley En-
gineering. In fact, the letter’s reference to the Firm’s “predecessor”
was actually a reference to Representative McKinley’s own prior
practice, not that of his father. But, as is clear from the excerpted
passage, there is no reference to this prior practice, only to the
businesses operated by Johnson McKinley. Staff therefore con-
cluded that, if there was an appropriate “family name” for the busi-
ness, it would be McKinley Engineering.

Additionally, Representative McKinley’s request did not refer to
any sale of Representative McKinley’s interest in the Firm. Rather,
the request stated that Representative McKinley would continue to
hold his equity “in a blind trust that will be held for so long as he
remains a Member of the House of Representatives or otherwise

40[d.
41]d. (emphasis added).
42 Exhibit 3(emphasis added).
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holds an elected federal office.”43 Representative McKinley con-
ceded that the trust arrangement would not, in fact, be blind: “Con-
gressman McKinley will of course know that the trust holds his
stock, unless and until sold; however, Congressman McKinley will
receive no compensation from McKinley & Associates, Inc. and will
not be entitled to exercise voting rights.” 44

Representative McKinley’s formal request for advice painted a
much different picture of his strategy than that which was actually
taking place at the time. As early as November 29, 2010, the
Firm’s management was discussing the potential to complete a sale
of Representative McKinley’s stake to the ESOP.45 And Mr. Kai-
ser’s internal discussions with Representative McKinley and his
team repeatedly referenced the sale as a fully-fleshed alternative
pathway to EIGA compliance. But for whatever reason, Represent-
ative McKinley’s letter did not reference that plan.

A few weeks after Representative McKinley submitted his re-
quest for a formal advisory opinion, Mr. Kaiser had a teleconfer-
ence with the Committee’s then-Director of Financial Disclosure.
According to Mr. Kaiser’s recollection of the conversation, the Di-
rector of Financial Disclosure informed him that the family name
exception would apply to the Firm’s name, and that a name change
would not be required.4®¢ The then-Director of Financial Disclosure
does not recall this conversation, and the Committee does not have
its own record of it. Thus, the Committee does not know what Mr.
Kaiser told the Director of Financial Disclosure regarding the facts
of the matter on this call, who initiated the call, or for what pur-
pose. Without this information, it is difficult for the Committee to
judge precisely why the then-Director of Financial Disclosure may
have believed that the Firm would not be required to change its
name. Regardless, it must be noted that, according to Mr. Kaiser’s
summary of the call, the then-Director of Financial Disclosure only
stated the staff’s view regarding resolution of the matter; it was
clear that only the Committee could provide a final and formal
opinion on Representative McKinley’s written request for guidance.

By March 31, 2011, a different Committee counsel had taken
over the responsibility for the advisory opinion after the departure
of the Director of Financial Disclosure from the Committee’s staff.
The newly assigned Committee staffer spoke with Mr. Kaiser that
day and informed him that staff would recommend that the Chair-
man and Ranking Member issue an advisory opinion recom-
mending that Representative McKinley change the name of the
Firm. Representative McKinley approached Representative Bonner,
who denied knowing about the Director of Financial Disclosure’s
previous recommendation.4?

Meanwhile, Representative McKinley’s plan to sell his equity in
the Firm continued, independently from his interactions with the
Committee.#® On April 11, 2011, Representative McKinley and the

431d.

44]d.

45 Exhibit 12.

46 Exhibit 13.

47 Exhibit 14.

48 Representative McKinley, in a submission to the Committee, argues that, in fact, his plan
to sell his stake to the ESOP had been “abandoned” based on the Director of Financial Disclo-
sure’s informal, staff-level advice in January 2011. See Exhibit 6 at 19. But there is no other
evidence that the sale went on hold, or, even if it did, when precisely the process stopped and
then started again. For example, Representative McKinley’s original request for advice con-
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ESOP entered into a Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) com-
mitting to a sale of Representative McKinley’s stake upon a valu-
ation of the Firm’s equity.#® At this time, both Representative
McKinley and executives at the Firm understood staff’s preliminary
guidance that the Firm would need to change its name. Neither the
Firm nor Representative McKinley contacted the Committee to no-
tify them of the MOU, the change in plans with respect to the blind
trust, or any other aspect of the sale. Nor is there any indication
that Representative McKinley told then-Chairman Bonner, when
they spoke immediately after Committee staff’'s March 31, 2011 call
with Mr. Kaiser, that Representative McKinley was proceeding
with plans to sell the Firm, with the name intact.

On April 13, 2011, a Committee counsel reminded Mr. Kaiser
that the Committee was still waiting for a written brief he had of-
fered to provide regarding the issue of whether engineers or archi-
tects were fiduciaries under West Virginia law.59 The next day, Mr.
Kaiser sent a letter to the Committee counsel setting out his argu-
ments. Mr. Kaiser began the letter by saying, “I have delayed in
responding to check the facts cited in this letter.”5! Notably, he
again did not mention the sale, nor did he correct the
misimpression the original letter gave regarding the name of John-
son McKinley’s practice.52 Mr. Kaiser copied Representative
McKinley on the letter.53

On June 24, 2011, the Chairman and Ranking Member of the
Committee issued an advisory opinion on these questions to Rep-
resentative McKinley.54 It is clear from the letter that the Com-
mittee, or its then-Chairman and Ranking Member, believed that
Representative McKinley remained the majority owner of the
Firm,55 and the advisory opinion made no reference to Representa-
tive McKinley’s April 11, 2011, agreement to sell the firm. The let-
ter advised Representative McKinley that the Firm would need to
change its name. The letter, in describing the facts upon which the
Committee relied in coming to this determination, explained:

templated not a sale of his stake, but the transfer of that equity into a blind trust, and at no
point did he correct the record to state that he intended to sell the firm. Moreover, Representa-
tive McKinley never explained to the Committee that, because of its informal, staff-level guid-
ance, he was withdrawing any part of his request for formal advice.

49 Exhibit 15.

50 Exhibit 17.

51 Exhibit 16.

52]d.

53]d.

54 See Exhibit 21.

55See id. at 1 (“In January 2007, the Firm established a partial Employee Stock Ownership
Plan (ESOP). You own approximately 70% of the Firm’s common stock, with the remaining 30%
owned by the Firm’s employees under the ESOP.”) Representative McKinley’s counsel strenu-
ously argues that the six months during which the Committee deliberated before providing its
formal advice in response to Representative McKinley’s request constitutes an unreasonable
delay. Exhibit 6 at 22. This ignores that at least some of the deliberation occurred due to a back-
and-forth between Representative McKinley’s attorneys and the Committee regarding the legal
issues in the case. As late as April 14, 2011, Mr. Kaiser sent the Committee a letter arguing
that engineers and architects did not carry fiduciary duties. See Exhibit 17. This letter came
only after Committee staff reminded Mr. Kaiser that the Committee was waiting on such a sub-
mission. See id. After reading those arguments, the Committee determined them to be without
merit. See infra at n. 70. But the task of examining such arguments requires time. Because the
Committee needed to take such time as was necessary to address Representative McKinley’s ar-
guments in a deliberate and thorough manner, the length of time this matter took was attrib-
utable in large part to Representative McKinley’s own part in the process. Indeed, it is inher-
ently inconsistent of Representative McKinley to first avail himself of the Committee’s willing-
ness to hear his side of the matter, and then argue afterwards that the considered nature of
the process took too long.
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In the case of the Firm, the Committee accepts your rep-
resentation that the current Firm can reasonably be seen
as a practical continuation of McKinley Engineering, the
business originally established in 1954 by your father,
Johnson McKinley, for whom it was named. However they
are legally and factually distinct entities.

The Committee also advised, however, that the Firm could
change its name to McKinley Engineering, so long as it made a
clear association between the Firm and Representative McKinley’s
father, consistent with the family name exception contained in the
rules. Prior to issuing the formal advisory opinion, staff informally
explained its recommendation to Representative McKinley’s coun-
sel, and provided Representative McKinley with the opportunity to
withdraw the request for an advisory opinion.

As noted above, the conclusion that McKinley Engineering was
a name that fit within the family name exception was based on a
factual error—the Committee’s Dbelief that Representative
McKinley’s reference to that name as a “predecessor” meant that
Johnson McKinley had used that name for his practice. He had not.
In an email to his advisers, Representative McKinley noted the
Committee’s mistake: “This makes no sense. [TThink about it:
McKinley Engineering is OK but McKinley & Associates is a prob-
lem. My father’s company was not McKinley Engineering and we
never represented that it was. That name was the one I used as
a sole proprietor for the early years of the company.”56 However,
the factual error in the advisory opinion appears to be based large-
ly on the vague and confusing syntax of Representative McKinley’s
counsel’s introduction to the history of the Firm, which described
McKinley Engineering as a “predecessor” of the Firm and discussed
his father’s involvement in it in the same breath, without distin-
guishing between the two. Additionally, when staff contacted Rep-
resentative McKinley’s counsel prior to the issuance of the letter,
in order to explain its content, Representative McKinley’s counsel
did not correct the factual error at that time.

Representative McKinley consulted for a brief period with attor-
ney Stefan Passantino, who contacted Committee staff on August
12, 2011.57 Mr. Passantino explained that Johnson McKinley had
not practiced at “McKinley Engineering,” but rather at “J.B.
McKinley Engineering.”58 A Committee attorney explained that
she was unable to change the factual record upon which the advi-
sory opinion was based, but that Representative McKinley could
write to the Committee to explain the misunderstanding.?® Com-
mittee staff further explained that the opinion would not likely be
changed absent a significant change in facts.60 Representative
McKinley never did write in to the Committee to correct the record,
although he apparently approached Representative Bonner on the
floor of the House and stated, “what the [heck] is this,” and ex-

56 Representative McKinley referred to himself as a “sole proprietor.” This is consistent with
his statement in an appearance before the Committee that he “struck out to be a sole practi-
tioner.” See Exhibit 18; Representative McKinley Appearance.

57 See Exhibit 20.

58 This contention is consistent with representations by Representative McKinley’s current
counsel, but is not supported by a review of corporate records that McKinley & Associates itself
performed. See Exhibit 2.

59 Exhibit 20.

60]d.
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plained the factual error.61 According to Representative McKinley,
during that conversation, which was several days after the Com-
mittee issued its formal advisory opinion, Representative McKinley
stated that the Committee’s misunderstanding regarding the ori-
gins of the Firm’s name did not matter anymore “because he had
already sold the company.” 62

Six months after receiving the Committee’s letter explaining the
need to change the Firm’s name, on December 31, 2011, Represent-
ative McKinley and the ESOP had finally formalized their agree-
ment for the ESOP to purchase Representative McKinley’s shares,
via a loan for which Representative McKinley held the note. The
agreement to sell apparently did not include an agreement to
change the name, and the name has not been changed. Because of
legal ggquirements, the sale closed four months later, on April 30,
2012.

D. FURTHER COMMITTEE ACTION AND INQUIRY

Representative McKinley filed an annual Financial Disclosure
Statement for 2011, as required by EIGA, on May 15, 2012. This
Financial Disclosure Statement listed the Firm—still doing busi-
ness as McKinley & Associates—as a source of interest income
based on a note receivable held by Representative McKinley. Based
on this and other publicly available information, the Committee
concluded that the Firm had not changed its name as advised by
the Committee. Accordingly, the Chairman and Ranking Member of
the Committee sent Representative McKinley a letter on August
24, 2012, stating:

The Committee expects you to change the name of the
Firm, as directed. Failure to do so may be viewed as a
knowing violation of the Ethics in Government Act and
House Rule XXV, clause 2, and may result in further pro-
ceedings against you by the Committee. The Committee
thus requests a detailed explanation of the status of your
efforts to change the name of the Firm, and what that
name will be. If the Firm intends to use the name McKin-
ley Engineering, please inform the Committee how the
Firm will indicate the clear association between the name
and your father.64

After receiving the letter, Representative McKinley telephoned
the then-Committee Staff Director and Chief Counsel, and in-
formed him that he believed the issue had been resolved because
he had sold the Firm to the ESOP. Representative McKinley also
disagreed with many of the facts as stated in the original advisory
opinion letter. The Staff Director and Chief Counsel responded by
requesting that Representative McKinley respond to the Commit-
tee’s second letter with a request that the Committee re-examine
the issue based on accurate facts. The Staff Director and Chief
Counsel told Representative McKinley that the Committee would
“start from scratch.” This conversation appears to be the first time

61 Exhibit 6 at 23.

62]d.; Exhibit 22 at 6.

63 Exhibit 19 at 5.

64 Exhibit 23 (Letter from Chairman Bonner and Ranking Member Sanchéz to Representative
McKinley, Aug. 24, 2012, at 1).
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in which Representative McKinley notified the Committee of the
sale of his interest in the Firm.

In a letter dated September 14, 2012, Representative McKinley
responded through counsel to the Committee’s August 24, 2012 let-
ter. Representative McKinley noted that the Firm had been sold to
the ESOP, and that he no longer functioned as an owner, board
member, executive, employee, or consultant of the Firm. Represent-
ative McKinley also noted:

‘McKinley’ is a well-known family and historical name in
West Virginia. The ‘McKinley’ name in engineering and
building design was originally established in West Virginia
by Representative McKinley’s father, Johnson B. McKin-
ley, and was reinforced by him through his long, public as-
sociation with McKinley & Associates. Entirely inde-
pendent of Representative McKinley’s status as a Member
of Congress, ‘McKinley & Associates’ has long been—and
remains—an established brand name in the provision of
the highest-quality engineering, architectural, and interior
design services.

However, Representative McKinley admitted that his father’s
practice had operated under business names such as “Johnson B.
McKinley, Consulting Engineer,” “Johnson B. McKinley Engineer-
ing,” and “Penn Construction.” McKinley & Associates, Inc. was
first used in 1989, when Representative McKinley changed the
name of the Firm (then “McKinley Engineering Company”) to re-
flect the fact that the Firm had begun to offer architectural serv-
ices. Moreover, while Representative McKinley and his father
worked together at his father’s firm from 1971 to 1973, Representa-
tive McKinley’s father “maintained his own business” when his son
struck out on his own in 1981.65 Representative McKinley nonethe-
less argued that his father had:

played an instrumental and very public role in solidifying
and expanding the reputation of [the Firm]. . . . Particu-
larly during those periods when [Representative] McKinley
was required to be absent from the Firm to attend the
state legislature, Johnson B. McKinley served as the eyes
and ears for the Firm . . . [and] attended many meetings
with clients as the representative of McKinley & Associ-
ates; he walked many project sites with owners as the rep-
resentative of McKinley & Associates.66

The Committee sent separate requests for information to Rep-
resentative McKinley and the Firm on March 18, 2013. Representa-
tive McKinley responded on May 1, 2013, providing a 30-page let-
ter and 554 pages of documents. In his response, Representative
McKinley repeated his assertion that he acted in good faith and on
the advice of counsel in selling the Firm. He argued that the
months-long history of his interactions with the Committee and its
staff left him with the impression that he had resolved ethics con-
cerns regarding the Firm. He also argued that, while Johnson B.
McKinley never worked as an on-the-payroll employee of the Firm,
he assisted his son on two projects in 1981, and that “Johnson B.

65]d. at 4.
66]d.
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McKinley’s interest and activities in assisting his son’s business did
not depend on compensation, so to focus exclusively on records of
financial compensation in this context is to focus too narrowly.” 67

In July 2015, the Committee notified Representative McKinley
that it was considering the adoption of a public Report and Letter
of Reproval regarding this matter. Before the Committee decided
how to resolve this matter, Representative McKinley was invited to
be heard in writing and/or in person. Representative McKinley
opted to both provide multiple written submissions, via counsel,
and to appear in person before the Committee. The Committee
carefully considered all of Representative McKinley’s written sub-
missions and his appearance before the Committee while delib-
erating how to resolve the matter. Ultimately, the Committee de-
termined that the appropriate resolution of this matter was to
issue this Report, along with a Letter of Reproval to Representative
McKinley for his conduct.

House and Committee Rules impose some limitations on public
disclosure of investigative matters in the period of time shortly be-
fore an election (the so-called “blackout rule”). In some situations,
the Committee is prohibited from making certain public state-
ments, while in others the Committee has the option of adhering
to the rule. In general, the Committee adheres to the spirit of these
limitations, which are intended to provide fairness to respondents
and confidence in the ethics process. In this matter, the Committee
has determined to issue this report at this time because of the
unique circumstances of the matter.

Representative McKinley has been on notice of the Committee’s
intent to resolve this matter since July 2015. But Representative
McKinley did not personally review the proposed resolution until
November 2015, and did not offer a substantive written response
to the Committee’s proposed resolution of the matter until Feb-
ruary 2016. In June 2016, the Committee invited Representative
McKinley to appear before the Committee in July 2016 to be heard
in person. Representative McKinley informed the Committee that
he did not believe that was sufficient time for him to prepare and
asked if he could appear in September 2016, instead. The Com-
mittee granted that request, subject to a clear written caution that
if he chose that course the blackout rule would not apply to any
final resolution of the matter. Representative McKinley chose to
delay his appearance until September 2016. Although he appeared
before the Committee prior to the start of the blackout period, the
Committee’s deliberations continued into the blackout period, and
the Committee concluded its deliberations and voted to approve the
final resolution within the blackout period.

IV. FINDINGS
A. EIGA SECTION 502 AND HOUSE RULE XXV

Representative McKinley and his counsel have argued that the
Committee’s initial advisory opinion contained factual errors and
legal infirmities, and should be revised to permit the Firm to con-
tinue to operate as “McKinley & Associates.” His arguments boil
down to three points: (1) that the Committee made a factual error

67Exhibit 6 at 28.
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when it stated that “McKinley Engineering” was a family name,
given that Johnson McKinley never used that name in his practice;
(2) that the “McKinley” in “McKinley & Associates” should be read
to include Johnson McKinley, because of the McKinley reputation
in the West Virginia engineering and design community, and be-
cause of Johnson McKinley’s role in assisting his son’s practice; and
(3) that the statute and House Rules should be read to permit the
use of the name in this case, where the danger of a conflict of inter-
est is low. The Committee has reviewed his arguments, and judged
them either incorrect in their own right, or insufficient to affect the
outcome.

First, Representative McKinley points out that his father appar-
ently never used the name “McKinley Engineering,” as the Com-
mittee stated in its advisory opinion. Setting aside the fact that the
Committee’s confusion resulted from the vague and confusing syn-
tax of his counsel’s request, and setting aside the additional fact
that his own submissions repeatedly misstated the names his fa-
ther used for his practice, and setting aside the third fact that Rep-
resentative McKinley never wrote to the Committee to correct the
record until over a year later, it is true that the “family name” sug-
gested in the Committee’s advisory opinion is not actually a “family
name.” Representative McKinley argues that, consequently, “there
appears to be just as much basis for the Committee to determine
that ‘McKinley & Associates’ is a family name as there is for the
Committee to determine that ‘McKinley Engineering’ is a family
name.” This is true. However, the correct conclusion is the oppo-
site: based on these new facts neither “McKinley Engineering” nor
“McKinley & Associates” qualify as a family name, because both
refer solely to Representative McKinley’s business and not to any
of his father’s businesses, all of which included his father’s first
and last name or initials. As Representative McKinley told the
Committee in September 2016, “I struck out to be a sole practi-
tioner in architecture and engineering practice.” 68 The fact that the
Committee misread Representative McKinley’s original statement
of facts has no bearing on whether the facts at present support the
use of the exception.

Second, Representative McKinley argues that, irrespective of the
factual error, the Committee failed to account for certain other
facts supporting a finding that “McKinley & Associates” is a family
name. Specifically, Representative McKinley argues that, because
of his family’s historical reputation in West Virginia, and particu-
larly his father’s reputation as an engineer, the “McKinley” name
is a brand upon which the Firm trades, based on not just Rep-
resentative McKinley’s work prior to his election, but his family’s
goodwill in the area and in the industry. This argument, while in-
ternally consistent, is simply not on all fours with the text of the
statute or the Committee’s longstanding guidance. The logic behind
the concept that businesses with family names are not covered by
Section 502 is that certain family businesses are not actually
named for the Member, and therefore do not violate Section 502.

Johnson McKinley’s reputation, no matter how sterling, cannot
retroactively stand in for the “McKinley” for whom the Firm is ac-
tually named. Johnson McKinley was never on the Firm’s payroll.

68 Representative McKinley Appearance (emphasis added).
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He kept his own practice when his son started the Firm in the
1980s. He did not appear on the Firm’s letterhead and, to the best
of anyone’s recollection, never served as anything more than an
outside advisor or consultant. The Firm does not use a family
name. It uses Representative McKinley’s name. EIGA prohibited
that use the moment he became a Member of Congress.

Third, Representative McKinley argues that, because the Com-
mittee has expansively interpreted or applied Section 502 in other
areas—specifically, medicine—the Committee should engage in a
flexible reading of the statute in this case, to reach the conclusion
that the Firm’s use of “McKinley & Associates” does not pose a risk
for “trading on the prestige of [a] Member[].”%° Representative
McKinley believes such a risk is low because the McKinley name
is associated not only with him but with his father and ancestors,
and also because architectural services do not pose the same haz-
ards in this regard as certain other fiduciary industries such as law
or lobbying.”0 This argument—which amounts to a request for a
waiver—fails for at least three reasons. First, the arguments about
the “McKinley brand” simply restate the arguments discussed
above, and fail for the same reason. Second, while it may be true
that an architect may not be as susceptible to the problems Section
502 was intended to address as some other professionals, the risk
still exists that a Member will have some level of divided loyalty.
Further, it is not inconceivable that an architecture firm could
trade on the prestige of a Member of Congress—governments, after
all, do build buildings from time to time. Finally, with respect to
the Committee’s guidance on the practice of medicine, the Com-
mittee has created a limited exception to the compensation ban, in-
sofar as Members who are doctors accept fees for medical services
that do not exceed the “actual and necessary expenses incurred” by
the Member in connection with the practice.”l The Committee cre-
ated this waiver because doctors must continue to practice to keep
their licenses intact in some situations, and to maintain insurance
coverage. Notably, though, the waiver does not extend to the ban on
using the Member’s name, and the Committee has historically ad-
vised Members who are doctors that their practices must remove
mention of their name upon their election.

Based on the foregoing, Representative McKinley violated EIGA
Section 502 and House Rule XXV by permitting the Firm to con-
tinue to operate using his name.

69 Exhibit 19 at 10-11.

70This argument could be considered a descendant of the arguments Representative McKinley
made prior to the issuance of the Committee’s advisory opinion, that architects and engineers
are not fiduciaries under West Virginia law. See Exhibit 17 at 2. This argument is infirm for
at least two reasons. First, the Committee is not bound by state law determinations on the ques-
tion of who is and is not a fiduciary; state law is simply one authority among others to assist
in answering the question. The fact that another one of these authorities—the legislative history
of EIGA itself—specifically lists architecture as one of the professions with which Congress was
concerned is probably enough to tilt the scales against Representative McKinley’s argument on
its own. See House Bipartisan Task Force on Ethics, Report on H.R. 3660, 101st Cong., 1st Sess.
at 16 (1989). But even if it were not listed, West Virginia state law on architects is actually
quite clear—the licensure of architects requires that they meet the definition of “good moral
character,” which is defined as “such character as will enable a person to discharge the fiduciary
duties of an architect to his client and to the public. ...” W.V. Code 30-12-2(4) (emphasis
added). The fact that architects have a concomitant duty to the public is of no moment—once
state law holds them to a fiduciary standard with respect to their individual clients, the ques-
tion has been answered.

71 Ethics Manual at 387.
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B. HOUSE RULE XXIII, CLAUSES 1 AND 2

Normally, matters such as this are handled by the Committee as
a matter of advice and education, and that is how this matter
began. Representative McKinley received advice from the Com-
mittee, in the form of informal staff-level guidance and in the form
of an official advisory opinion letter. The Committee’s letter carried
with it a “safe harbor” for actions Representative McKinley might
have taken in accordance with it.72

Representative McKinley also received advice from his former
counsel, Mr. Kaiser. Mr. Kaiser’s letter advised Representative
McKinley that he could engage in the course of action he pre-
ferred—keeping the name “McKinley & Associates” on the Firm’s
door and selling the Firm, with that name, to the ESOP. That is
the course of action Representative McKinley ultimately took. This
course of action resulted in a number of consequences that accrued
to his benefit: the name “McKinley & Associates” was a part of the
Firm’s valuation, increasing the Firm’s value when he sold it.
Moreover, should Representative McKinley leave Congress and re-
turn to his previous career, the Firm still bears his name, easing
his transition back to practice. What this course of action did not
accomplish, however, was compliance with relevant statutes and
House Rules.

If Representative McKinley had relied instead on the advice pro-
vided by the Committee there would be little question of the protec-
tion such reliance would have afforded him. Such protection is, as
mentioned above, written into the Committee Rules and EIGA.73
Indeed, the Committee takes very seriously its obligation to provide
sound and dispassionate advice to the Members of this House.
Nothing in this Report should be read to discourage Members from
coming to the Committee with their questions about the ethical
ramifications of their conduct, and the Committee has historically
helped a great many Members achieve the goals of their work
while keeping within the boundaries of the rules and the law.7¢
The disclosure in this Report of Representative McKinley’s appeals
to that process is not in any way a repudiation of the Committee’s
longstanding commitment to providing Members with confidential
counsel 7> and safe harbor for acting in good faith in response to
the Committee’s advice.”® On the contrary, the only way the Com-
mittee can retain credibility in performing these services for Mem-
bers is to publicly address those rare situations in which Members
disregard the Committee’s advice or fail to disclose full and accu-
rate facts during the advisory process. Such is the case here.

However, relying on the advice of one’s private counsel, while it
does not confer the same sort of safe harbor as reliance on the
Committee, can potentially mitigate the seriousness of a violation,
insofar as it makes it less likely that a Member acted in bad faith.
Members of Congress are entitled, as all Americans are, to consult
with an attorney to inform their decision-making about a variety

72See Committee Rule 3(k) (“The Committee may take no adverse action in regard to any con-
duct that has been undertaken in rehance on a written opinion if the conduct conforms to the
specific facts addressed in the opinion”)

73 Committee Rule 3(k); 5 U.S.C. app. §503(1)(A)

74 Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Related to Representative Tom Petri, H. Rept.
113-666, 113th Cong. 2d Sess. at 9 (2014) (hereinafter Petri).

75 See Committee Rule 7.

76 See Committee Rules 3(k), (1); Petri at 6-9.
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of situations. In other contexts, courts have held that where some-
one “(1) fully disclosed all material facts to his attorney before
seeking advice, and (2) actually relied on his counsel’s advice in the
good faith belief that his conduct was legal,” such reliance on the
advice of counsel might show an absence of wrongful intent or bad
faith.”” The evidence suggests that Representative McKinley did
indeed disclose all pertinent facts to Mr. Kaiser, and Representa-
tive McKinley appears to have actually relied on the advice Mr.
Kaiser gave him. However, neither Representative McKinley nor
Mr. Kaiser ever disclosed a key fact to the Committee when seek-
ing the Committee’s guidance on the Firm’s name: the fact that if
Representative McKinley did not get the answer he wanted from
the Committee, he intended to sell the firm, with his name at-
tached, to the ESOP.

Representative McKinley has asserted that his decision to rely on
Mr. Kaiser’s advice, rather than the Committee’s guidance, was not
made in bad faith. He further states: “I have since come to under-
stand that the advice of my then attorney in explaining and inter-
preting to me House Committee on Ethics requirements and guid-
ance, and my reliance on that advice were mistaken. I regret rely-
ing on that advice.”’® The Committee appreciates this acknowl-
edgement. But even negligent violations of relevant statutes and
House rules have recently resulted in the issuance of letters of
reproval.”® Further, Representative McKinley failed to take any
steps to determine whether his own attorney’s advice was reason-
able. He never asked Committee staff whether selling the Firm
would resolve the problem with the Firm’s name, and told the
Committee he was unaware whether his attorney asked that ques-
tion. (There is no evidence that he did).8% Had he asked that essen-
tial, and obvious, question, the Committee could have told him that
he could not sell the Firm with his name attached. Representative
McKinley’s failure to ask this question is inexplicable in light of the
advice he had previously solicited and received from a former Com-
mittee counsel—who was the counsel to two former Committee
Chairmen—that he would likely have to change the Firm’s name
to sell it.

The Committee has long stated that Members have a “duty of
reasonable inquiry,” which requires them to take “reasonable care”

77 See, e.g., See United States v. Rice, 449 F. 3d 887, 897 (8th Cir. 2006); see also United States
v. West, 392 F. 3d 450, 447 (D.C. Cir. 2004) (“A defendant may avail himself of an advice of
counsel defense only where he makes a complete disclosure to counsel, seeks advice as to the
legality of the contemplated action, is advised that the action is legal, and relies on that advice
in good faith.”)

78 See Exhibit 22.

79 See, e.g., Comm. on Ethics, In the Maiter of Representative Don Young, H. Rept. 113-487,
113th Cong. 2d Sess (2014); Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Relating to Rep-
resentative Shelley Berkley, H. Rept. 112-716, 112th Cong. 2d. Sess. (2012).

80The actions of Representative McKinley’s attorney suggest that even he may not have be-
lieved that selling the Firm would resolve the legal prohibition against continuing to provide
fiduciary services while using the Member’s name. On April 14, 2011, just three days after Rep-
resentative McKinley agreed to sell the Firm, Mr. Kaiser sent a letter to Committee staff with
additional arguments for the claim that engineering and architecture are not fiduciary services.
If Mr. Kaiser believed that selling the Firm resolved these issues—and actually made it impos-
sible for Representative McKinley to change the Firm’s name—the natural reaction would have
been to inform the Committee of the sale and withdraw the request for a formal Advisory Opin-
ion. Instead, Mr. Kaiser continued to argue that Representative McKinley was not required to
change the Firm’s name.
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to avoid violations of applicable standards of conduct.8® That duty
is heightened when a Member is “placed on notice of an ethical
problem.” 82 When a Member has such notice of a potential prob-
lem, the Member should ask the Committee, not a private attorney,
for guidance. In these circumstances, the Committee has found that
a reproval may be appropriate even when the Member sought legal
advice from other sources—but not the Committee—and where any
violation of the Rules or law was unintentional.83

Here, Representative McKinley was placed on notice in Novem-
ber 2010 that there was a problem with the name of his company,
McKinley & Associates, and that, pursuant to federal law, the firm
could not continue to operate under that name. His attorney ad-
vised him that he could remedy this problem by selling the com-
pany. This advice, which Mr. Kaiser did not explain or provide any
reasoning for, was contrary to the plain meaning of the applicable
federal statute, which provides that a Member may not “permit his
name to be used by . . . a firm, partnership, association, corpora-
tion, or other entity [that provides professional services involving
a fiduciary relationship.]” 8¢ By selling the Firm, with his name at-
tached, Representative McKinley did exactly that. Indeed, this was
the conclusion that another attorney, who was previously a counsel
to the Committee, gave to Representative McKinley. In these cir-
cumstances, the duty of reasonable inquiry required Representative
McKinley, or his attorney, to ask the Committee whether selling
the company would resolve the issue. Instead, when Representative
McKinley was told that staff would recommend the Committee
issue an Advisory Opinion that required the Firm to change its
name, he decided to sell the Firm quickly, with the name intact.85
Representative McKinley never notified the Committee of this plan
until it was completed. Thus, Representative McKinley did not sat-
isfy his duty to inquire whether his actions complied with federal
law. Moreover, even if Representative McKinley believed his ac-
tions were consistent with what the law required, that belief was
mistaken, as the Committee would have informed him, had he only

81 See House Comm. on Standards of Official Conduct, In the Matter of Representative Richard
H. Stallings, H. Rept. 100-382, 100th Cong. 1st Sess. 5 (1987) (hereinafter Stallings).

82 See id.

83 In Stallings, the Committee found that Representative Stallings was unaware of the appli-
cable House Rule and had no intent to violate it. Representative Stallings also contacted the
Federal Election Commission—but not the Committee—before taking the actions at issue, and
took steps to remedy his violation of House Rules when he was informed of it. Based on these
mitigating circumstances, the Committee did not recommend a sanction, such as reprimand or
censure, to be issued by the House. However, the Committee still found that a public reproval
was warranted. See Stallings at 5-6. It is worth noting that much of the mitigation found in
Stallings—namely the Member’s ignorance of the applicable rule and his attempt to remedy the
violations once he learned of them—was not present in this matter. See id.

845 U.S.C. app. §502(a).

85 See Exhibit 6, at 18-19 (explaining that Representative McKinley “abandoned” the plan to
sell the Firm to the ESOP when he believed the Firm’s name would not have to change, and
revived that plan after receiving a contrary opinion from Committee staff on March 31, 2011).
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asked.®6 In these circumstances, Committee precedent holds that a
public reproval is appropriate.8?

After considering all of the circumstances in this matter, the
Committee concluded that a letter of reproval is the appropriate ac-
tion both to express its dissatisfaction with Representative
McKinley’s actions, as well as to encourage Members to more prop-
erly utilize the Committee’s advice function.

C. EIGA SECTION 501

In addition to the problems that the Firm’s name poses in terms
of EIGA Section 502 and House Rule XXV, the Firm advertises to
the public that it has performed work for certain federal govern-
ment clients, including the National Aeronautics and Space Admin-
istration, United States Postal Service, Department of Defense,
“Veterans Administration,” Economic Development Administration,
Department of Housing and Urban Development, Federal Aviation
Administration, and Mine Safety and Health Administration.88 In
the Firm President’s interview and in the Firm’s submission to the
Committee, the Firm indicated that only the U.S. Postal Service re-
mains as a client of the Firm. While the contracting process may
not be one that would be amenable to influence, the plain language
of Section 501 prohibits using the name of a Member in advertising
a business that practices before the United States. Here, that name
is a part of the Firm’s advertising insofar as it is also the name
of the Firm, notwithstanding the fact that Representative
McKinley’s full name no longer appears anywhere else.

The Firm is not within the Committee’s adjudicatory jurisdiction.
Nevertheless, in order to provide the Firm with an opportunity of
its own to comply with the law, the Committee has authorized the
Chairman and Ranking Member to send a letter to the Firm in-
forming them of its interpretation of the facts and application to
the law, and urging them to change the name or cease working
with the U.S. Postal Service.

86In his appearance before the Committee, Representative McKinley was asked why he sold
the Firm, 11 days after being told the Firm would have to change its name, “without waiting
for a final opinion from the people, the only people, who are entitled to give that opinion, and
not your attorney.” Representative McKinley explained “[mly fear was January 5,” because he
had been told he needed to resolve the issue of the Firm’s name before he took office. However,
Representative McKinley did not even submit his request for an Advisory Opinion until January
3, 2011, and his attorney continued to send legal briefs to Committee staff after he entered an
agreement on April 11, 2011, to sell the Firm. More importantly, when Committee staff sug-
gested that Representative McKinley request a formal Advisory Opinion from the Committee,
they explained that the Committee’s response would take some time, but “the [Firm] name can
remain the same until the [advisory] opinion is rendered.” See Exhibit 11. The actual timing on
the transactions required to complete the sale of the Firm also raise questions about Represent-
ative McKinley’s claim that he felt the need to act quickly. Representative McKinley told the
Committee that the MOU committed him to sell the Firm to the ESOP, but did not set a sale
price; that price could only be determined at the end of the calendar year, and thus the sale
could not be finalized before then. See Exhibit 6, at 25. Given this, it does not seem that rushing
to sell the Firm—before receiving the Committee’s Advisory Opinion—would remove the “Janu-
ary 5” issue, as the sale could not be finalized until 2012, regardless.

87See Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allegations Related to Representative Phil Gingrey,
H. Rept. 113-664, 113th Cong. 2d Sess. 25 (2014) (finding violations of House Rules, and issuing
a reproval, even though “the Committee credited Representative Gingrey’s assertion that he be-
lieved his actions were consistent with House Rules.”); Comm. on Ethics, In the Matter of Allega-
tions Relating to Representative Shelley Berkley, H. Rept. 112-716, 112th Cong. 2d Sess. 10
(2012) (reproval was appropriate even though “[t]he ISC found that Representative Berkley mis-
takenly believed the rules governing what assistance her office could provide to her husband’s
practice required only that they treat him in the same manner by which they treated any other
constituent.”); see also Stallings at 5—6 (Committee issued a public reproval where the Member
was unaware of the applicable House Rule and did not intend to violate it).

88 See McKinley & Associates, “McKinley & Associates—Portfolio {Government},” available at
http://www.mckinleyassoc.com/government.htm (last accessed September 27, 2016).



22
V. CONCLUSION

Representative McKinley wanted the Firm to continue to operate
while he was a Member in the same fashion it had prior to his elec-
tion. It was the view of the Committee, and of the Chairman and
Ranking Member of the Committee in the 112th Congress, that
this was impossible under EIGA, at least as far as the name of the
Firm was concerned. The Committee communicated this view to
Representative McKinley repeatedly, through a variety of channels.
Two different staffers with years of experience interpreting these
rules advised him of this interpretation, and the Chairman and
Ranking Member of the Committee adopted that interpretation for-
mally in an advisory letter to him. A former staff member of the
Committee, who was consulted by an NRCC official on Representa-
tive McKinley’s behalf, independently reached the same conclusion
as the Committee, and cautioned that the Firm likely could not be
sold to a non-family member without changing the name.

Representative McKinley also received advice from a private at-
torney and relied on that attorney’s counsel in taking a course of
action that diverged from the one recommended by the Committee.
The choice to follow his own counsel’s advice, rather than the Com-
mittee’s opinion, ultimately led Representative McKinley to sell the
Firm with his name still attached, which left him powerless to ef-
fectuate the Committee’s advice, and which effectively stymied the
Committee’s oversight of a Member’s compliance with EIGA.8° The
Committee disapproves of such tactics.

Based on his violations of House Rules and federal law, the Com-
mittee has sent a letter of reproval to Representative McKinley for
his conduct in this matter. The Committee has also sent a letter
to the Firm advising them of the Committee’s position with respect
to the legality of the use of the name “McKinley & Associates.”
Upon the issuance of these letters and the publication of this Re-
port, the Committee will consider this matter closed.

VI. STATEMENT UNDER HOUSE RULE XIII, CLAUSE 3(C)

The Committee made no special oversight findings in this Report.
No budget statement is submitted. No funding is authorized by any
measure in this Report.

895 U.S.C. app. §503(1)(A).
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES,
COMMITTEE ON ETHICS,
Washington, September 28, 2016.

Member’s Personal Attention:

Hon. DAVID McKINLEY,

House of Representatives,
Washington, DC.

DEAR REPRESENTATIVE MCKINLEY: On September 27, 2016, the
Committee on Ethics (Committee) voted to issue you this letter of
reproval in response to your knowing disregard of the Committee’s
advice regarding the name of your former engineering and architec-
ture firm, McKinley & Associates (the Firm), in a fashion that re-
sulted in a violation of House Rules and the Ethics in Government
Act (EIGA), 5 U.S.C. app. §502(a). The Committee has also voted
to adopt and publish the attached Report to the House of Rep-
resentatives.

The conduct for which you are being reproved includes your
choice to ignore advice provided by this Committee, given from at
least November 2010 until June 2011, both informally and in a for-
mal advisory opinion letter dated June 24, 2011, in which the Com-
mittee counseled that the Firm should change its name, given its
fiduciary responsibilities and the consequences that such respon-
sibilities triggered under House Rules and EIGA. Instead of com-
plying with the advice of the Committee, which has the sole au-
thority under EIGA to administer these restrictions for Members of
the House, you chose not to change the name of the Firm, and in-
stead sold your interest in the Firm, with the name intact. Further,
you did not inform the Committee of this action until after you had
taken it.

With respect to this conduct, you violated 5 U.S.C. app. §502,
which provides that a Member shall not “permit [his] name to be
used by” firms providing professional services involving a fiduciary
relationship. Such behavior is also prohibited by House Rule XXV,
clause 2. In failing to comport with this standard, you also violated
House Rule XXIII, clauses 1 and 2, which state that “[a] Member
. . . shall behave at all times in a manner that shall reflect
creditably on the House,” and “shall adhere to the spirit and the
letter of the Rules of the House.”

The Committee found that prior to your election to the House,
you worked as a licensed professional engineer at the Firm, which
you established and at which you were also an officer and director.
The Firm used the name “McKinley & Associates™ since 1989; prior
to that, you operated a sole practitioner’s office in West Virginia,
focused solely on engineering services, known as “McKinley Engi-
neering,” which you folded into the Firm once it began offering ar-
chitectural services. Under West Virginia law, architecture is a pro-
fession that involves fiduciary duties. While your father was also
a licensed professional engineer, and while you and your father had
informal professional relationships throughout your career until his
retirement, your father did not establish or co-found the Firm, was
never on the payroll of the Firm, and maintained his own separate
business when you started the Firm.

After you were elected to the House in 2010, you sought the ad-
vice of Committee staff regarding the Firm. Staff’s original advice
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was that the Firm would need to change its name. You disagreed
with that advice, and responded to it in two independent ways.
First, you continued to dispute, through counsel, the Committee’s
advice, in an attempt to change the Committee’s position. The
Committee considered your arguments, but you and your counsel
were repeatedly advised that the Committee would likely require
you to the change the name of the Firm.! On June 24, 2011, the
Committee issued a formal advisory opinion to you, informing you
that House Rules and federal law required the Firm to change its
name.2 Second, based on your own counsel’s legal advice, you began
the process of selling your interest in the Firm to the Firm’s Em-
ployee Stock Option Plan (ESOP), without changing the name.
While you and the Firm had contemplated the sale prior to your
election to the House, the process of selling the Firm took some
time, culminating in a formal agreement of sale on December 31,
2011 (six months after the Committee’s advisory opinion), and a
closing date of April 30, 2012. Despite the Committee’s advice, at
no point in the process of selling the Firm did you require that the
Firm change its name, based on the contrary advice of your own
lawyer, which misconstrued the rules and relevant federal law. The
Firm still uses the name McKinley & Associates today.

With respect to EIGA Section 502 and House Rule XXV, the
Firm used and continues to use your name while providing fidu-
ciary services. Specifically, architecture is a service defined as one
involving fiduciary responsibilities—both as a matter of West Vir-
ginia law and within the legislative history of EIGA itself The stat-
ute and House Rule were designed to prevent conflicts of interest
between a Member’s duty to the public and his fiduciary duties to
his client. As a practical matter, when Members are elected to the
House and have associations with these sorts of businesses, the
Committee consistently advises them that the appropriate course of
action is to cease receipt of any compensation and to remove their
name from the business and its materials.? Having disregarded
this advice, you acted in a manner contrary to House rules and fed-
eral law.

1You have contended that at some point in early 2011, in one telephone conference with one
Committee staffer, that staffer informed you that you would not need to change the Firm’s
name. As more fully discussed in the accompanying Report, the evidence of precisely what tran-
spired during that informal conference is unclear, and in any event, cannot override the con-
sistent and contrary opinion of the Committee and its staff throughout the advisory process,
much less the formal advisory opinion issued later that year. On March 31, 2011, your attorney
was informed by Committee counsel that the staff would recommend that the Committee issue
a formal advisory opinion concluding that you must change the Firm’s name. You signed a
Memorandum of Understanding, in which you agreed to sell the Firm without changing its
name, 11 days later.

2The Committee’s letter advised you that it would be permissible to change the name of the
Firm to “McKinley Engineering,” on the basis that your father had operated a business using
that name. As discussed more fully in the accompanying Report, this was a factual error that
appears to be based largely on vague and confusing syntax in a submission by your own lawyer.
That factual error notwithstanding, you did not choose to rename the Firm “McKinley Engineer-
ing,” and you did not request that the Committee revise its opinion to accord with accurate
facts, despite notice and opportunity to do so.

3The Committee is aware of your position, taken repeatedly throughout this process, that the
Finn’s name refers not only to you, but to your father. Accordingly, you wish to rely on an excep-
tion to EIGA and House Rule XXV permitting an entity that provides fiduciary services to con-
tinue using the name of a Member where that name is associated with a family business. The
accompanying report provides a fulsome view of the Committee’s analysis of the family name
exception, but in short, it does not apply here. Your father’s reputation in the West Virginia
engineering community notwithstanding, the facts of this case demonstrate that the Firm is not
named for your father. It is named for you. EIGA prohibits the use of your name now that you
are a Member of Congress.
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Your disregard for the Committee’s advice and processes not only
led to a substantive violation of these principles, it impaired the
Committee’s function in enforcing the standards set by your peers.
Thus, your actions failed to comply with the spirit and letter of
House Rules, and did not reflect creditably on the House.

Accordingly, based on your conduct in this matter, the Com-
mittee has determined that you should be publicly reproved. Now
that this letter has issued and the Committee has publicly noted
its reproval of your conduct, the Committee has determined that
this matter is closed.

Sincerely,
CHARLES W. DENT,
Chairman.
LINDA T. SANCHEZ,
Ranking Member.
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Kelle Strickland, Esq.

Counsel to the Ranking Republican Member
Committee on Standards of Official Conduct
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Washington, DC

Yia E-Mail

RE: ~ McKINLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Dear Kelle:
Thank you for taking my call easlier today.

I represent McKinley & Associates, Inc, which is a West Virginia corporation that
engages in the businesses of professional engineering and architecture through its employed
professionals who hold licenses to practice professional engineering and architecture in a number
of states including West Virginia. The stock in the corporation is owned principally
(approximately 70%) by David B. McKinley, the newly elected Member of the House of
Representatives from the First Congressional District of West Virginia. The other thirty percent
of the stock in the company is owned by an ESOP for the employees of McKinley & Associates,

Inc., both the licensed professionals and others. Congressman-elect McKinley is the founder of
the business and a licensed professional engineer himself.

We have been reviewing the House Ethics Manual in order to advise Congressman-elect
McKinley regarding his options concerning the business and his relationship with it while he
remains a Member of Congress. Under West Virginia law we must file with the WV Board of
Architects and the West Virginia Professional Enginecrs Board when there is a change in the
supervising professional for the firm. Accordingly, this should be done prior to the time that
Congressman-elect McKinley is sworn into office in Washington.

To the best of my knowledge McKinley & Associates, Inc. does not contract directly with
the federal government or any federal agencies. However, many construction projects that
McKinley & Associates, Inc. designs or supervises may be with state or local governments or
boards that may receive federal funds cither directly or indirectly.

What concerns us specifically is the language of the Ethics Reform Act and the related
House Ethics Rules as they apply to professionals and specifically the definition of “professions

tocon.ny

Maintain as Confidential
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Kelle Strickiand, Esq.
November 30, 2010
Page 2

that provide services involving a fiduciary relationship™. On page 215 of the House Ethics
Manual, there is the statement that this definition includes the practice of law, the sale of
insurance, and the sale of real estate. On page 216 it is stated that the ban is intended to reach
services such as legal, real estate, consulling and advising, insurance, medicine, architectural or
financial. There are three specific prohibitions that apply to professions involving 2 fiductary
relationship: (1) the prohibition againsi receiving p ion from the practice of a covered
profession; (2) the prohibition against receiving compensation for affiliating with an enﬁty that
provides covered professional services; and (3) the prohibition against permitting one’s name to
be used by an entity that provides covered professional services. Congressman-elect McKinley
is currently the supervising professional engineer for McKinley & Associates, Inc., the President,
member of the Board of Directors and majomy shareho)der Congressman-elect McKmiey is not
a licensed architect but rather a licensed prof: incer, but the busi of McKinley &
Associates, Inc. is both the practice of architecture and profcssmnal engineering through its duly-
licensed employees.

Paramount among our concems is the future use of the name: McKinley & Associates,
inc. Over more than twenty years in the region considerable goodwiil and name-recognition has
acerued 1o this name. Moreover, Congressman-elect McKinley's deceased father, though not
associated with the current firm, was also a licensed professional engineer and had a long career
in the area, Much of the company’s goodwill that has accrued as a result of the name would be
tost if the name must be changed. Accordingly, we would like to explore the possibifity of
retaining the name McKinley & Associates, Inc. if Congre r-elect MeKinley would sever his
other relationships with the business by for example: (a) selling his stock fo the ESOP in return
for a note payable over a period of years; (b) alternately giving or selling his stock 1o his wife or
children; (¢} resigning as an officer and director; and (d) having the company designate other
professionals as its supervising architect and supervising professional engineer. If you believe
that McKinley & Associates, Inc. can escape being desi, d as ing in a “profession that
involves a fiduciary relationship”™ by requesting & walver or clarification of the definition, please
advise as to the best way to go about that process. Obviously, if we could simply keep the statns
guo so far as the name and stock ownership of the business is concerned that would be raost
desirable 1o Congressman-efest McKinley, even if he must take a sabbatical so far as his
employment and other responsibilities toward the firm while a Member.

In the event you would like to discuss these matters further, please do not hesitate to
contact me. Thank you for your assistance,

Very truly yours,

CharlesJ Kaiser, Jr.
CIK/sls
cer Congressman-elect David B. McKinley

{aeaEy
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from: David Carenbauer [ I ©ckinleyassoc.com>
Sent: Wednesday, September 05, 2012 2:43 PM

To: ‘David B McKinley'

Subject: Johnson B, McKinfey names

Mr. McKinley,

i saw drawings from around 1954 through 1892, and these are the variations of the names | saw {the one in bold is the
one | saw the most}:

ENGINEER ~ L.B. McKINLEY

ENG'R ~ J.B. MCKINLEY

1.B. McKINLEY, ENG'R

3.B. MCKINLEY, P.E,

1.B. McKINLEY ENGINEERS

JOHNSON B. McKINLEY

JOHNSON B. McKINLEY, P.E.

JOHNSON B. McKINLEY, CONSULTING ENGINEER
JOHNSON McKINLEY CONSULTING ENG'R

JOHNSON McKINLEY CONSULTING ENGINEER

Thanks,

David

PENGAD 800£31.6980
™~

Maintain as Confidential
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Committee on Standards of Official Conduct
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
HT-2, The Capitol

Washington, DC 20513

RE:  Member-elect David B, McKinley (1% Dist. W. Va.)
INC.

Greetings:

Please be advised that we represent MoKinley & Associates, Inc., 8 West Virginia
corporation (hereafier often veferred (o as the “Company™) that provides professional engineering
and architectural services through its employees who are professional engincers and licensed
architects under the laws of West Virginia, Ohio, and Pennsyivania. The Company is controlled
by David B. McKinley, a licensed professional engineer, who was recently efected as a Member
of the U.S. Houscof Represeatatives for the First Congressional District of West Virginia.
Congressman-elect McKinley has directed us to subimit this letter to the Comumittee in order to
advisz the Commitiee concerning the steps that he has taken to comply with the House Ethics
Manual and to seek a walver of the application of certain Rules which we believe should not be
applied to the Company.

Approximately 70% of the common stock of McKinley & Associates, Tnc. is owned by
Congressinan-elect McKinley. The remaining common stock {approximately 30%) is owned by
an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (“ESOP”) whose beneficiaries include the employees of
MeKinley & Assoclates, Inc. who are Heensed as engineers and architects as well as those
additional non-licensed employees of the Company. The Company has approximately 40
employees located in offices in Wheeting and Charleston, West Virginia, and in Waskington,
Pennsylvania, and is believed to be one of the largest architectural/engineering firms in the State
of West Virginia,

MeKinley & Associates, Inc. and its predecessor McKinley Engineering were the
outgrowth of two licensed professional engincers that have worked in the Wheeling area since
approximately 1930, Johnsorn B. McKinley, David B. McKinleys father, was a licensed
professional engineer who maintained an office as consulting engineer in Wheeling for nearly 40
vears. During most of those years Johnson B. McKinley maintained a one-person office, bat
David B. McKinley and Johnson B. McKinley worked together for 2 years prior to Jehnson B.
McKinley's relirement, and McKinley & Associates, Inc. is the custodian of all of the drawd
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Committee on Standards of Official Conduct
January 3,2011
Page 2

files, and other assets sccumulated by Johnson B, McKinley over his career as a licensed
professional engineer, McKinley & Associates, Inc. also d many of the same clicnts and
businesses after his father’s retirement in the 1980s. Until recently, West Virginia faw required
engineering and architectural firms to be owned in lacge part by licensed engineers and architects
themselves. Ownership restrictions remain in place for other states where the Company provides
these services. Congressman-giect McKinley in addition holds the promissory note by which the
ESOP purchased its stock in the Company from him and is also guarantor on the Company’s
bank foans that are used for its operations,

West Virginia law requires a licensed professional engineer to supervise the engineering
work of the Company. Tim Mizer, P.E. has been registered with the West Virginia Board of
Professional Engineers as the supervisor for all of the employees of the firm engaged in licensed
professional engineering. Likewise, the West Virginia Board of Architecture requires that
companies conducting such business in the State register a licensed architect with the Board to
be the supervisor for alf employees of the firm involved in the practice of architecture. Mr.
Gregg Dorfner, A.LA. has been registered as the supervisor of architects for McKinley &
Associates, Inc. Except for the fact that these gentlemen are employees of the Company and
beneficiaries of the ESOP, neither of them have any velationship to David B. McKinley.

Prior to being sworn in as a Member of the House of Representatives, David B.
MeKinley will resign as an officer and director of McKinley & Assotiates, Inc. and place his
stock in a blind trust that will be held for so long as he remains a Member of the House of
Representatives or otherwise holds an elected federal office. Congressman McKinley will of
course know that the trust holds his stock, unless and until sold; however, Congressman
McKinley will receive no compensation from McKinley & Associates, Inc. and will not be
entitled to exercise voting rights. The promissory note payable to David B, McKinley by which
the ESOP purchased the stock that it holds in the Corapany will continue to be paid in
accordance with its terms. The terms of this note were arrived at through a third-party appraisal
of the Company on behalf of the ESOP and predates by many years Mr. MeKinley's election to
the House of Representatives.

We are seeking an advisory opinion and, depending upon the outcome of the sdvisory
opinion, {wo specific waivers related to the House Ethics Manual as it applies to Congressman-
elect McKinley and McKinley & Associates, Inc. The advisory opinios has to do with the
operations of McKinley & Associates, Inc. not being considered to be “professions that provide
scrvices involving a fiduciary relationship™.

We assert that the professional engineering and architectural services provided by
MeKinley & Associates, Inc. are not the type of professional services that invelve a fiduciary
relationship and are, therefore, not of the kind of professional services that were intended to be
prohibited under the House Ethics Manual and Title 5 ~ Appendix 4 ~ section 502 of the United
Sttes Code. The language “fiduciary celationship” is not defined in either the federal law or the
House Ethics Manual. Generally however, 2 fiduciary relationship is one that connotes a high
level of trust between the parties such that a fiduciary is required to act in 2 manner that makes
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Committee on Standards of Official Conduct
January 3, 2011
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the other party's interests paramount to that of the fiduciary. While this may apply with respect
to lawyers, real estate brokers, and insurance representatives, the same cannot be said for
engineers and architects. To the contrary, an engineer and an architect are duty bound to protect
the public from poor designs and improper construction methods. While a lawyer is legally
required fo keep his comununications and in some cases even his relationship with a client strictly
confidential, this is not the case with respect to an engineer or an architect. In most cases the
services of an engineer or an architect are only engaged after a public bidding contest seeking the
lowest bid for the work. Moreover, the engineer’s or architect's workproducts, the drawings, are
generally submitted to public authorities - that is, state and county building inspectors and
licensing bureaus - in order to obtain the appropriate governmental authority and necessary
permits to proceed with the construction work. Thus, neatly all of the work of an architeet or an
engineer is within the purview of the public, unlike that of a lawyer or a business consultant
where most of their work cccurs outside of the public view.

if the Committee agrees with our assertion that McKinley & Associates, Inc. is pot a firm
that provides professional services involving # fiduciary relationship, then Member-elect David
B. McKinley's resignation as an officer and director of the Company, placing the stock titled in
his name in a blind trust, and rejecting any form of compensation from the Company other than
the continued payment of principal and interest o a pre-existing promissory riote from the ESOP
which acquired the Company stock should eliminate any potential violation of the Rules by
isclating Congressman McKinley from the Company.

If the Committee on Standards of Official Conduct is not persuaded that McKinley &
Associates, Inc. is a firm that does not provide professional services involving u fiduciary
relationship; we believe that the Company can nonetheless continue to use its existing name
despite the fact that David B, McKinley is a Member of the 11.5, House of Representatives
because the Company qualifies for the family name exception. As previously poted, David B.
MeKinley is the second generation of his family to be licensed as a professional engineer in the
State of West Virginia and to practice his profession using the name McKinley associated with
engineering in the City of Wheeling. Thus the company’s name is as much refated to the
reputation of Johnson B, McKinley as itis to David B. McKinley. The company’s inability to
use its existing name would also create 3 severe hardship for all of the current employees of the
firm, both its professional employees and its other employees. Because of the McKinley &
Assoclates, Inc, ESOP, the employees are dependent upon the eontinued success of the firm not
only for their compensation but also for their retirement savings. Accordingly, if MeKintey &
Asgsociates, Inc. is deemed to be a firm: that provides professional services involving a fiduciary
relationship (and it should ot be), McKinley & Associates, Inc. should nevertheless be
permitted to retain its existing name under the well-recognized family name exception.

The final waiver that is being sought for McKinley & Associates, Ine, is the continued
affiliation of David B. McKinley as personal guarantor of the Company’s existing lines of credit.
McKinley & Associates, Inc. has an existing line of credit with Wesbanco Bank, Inc. in the
amount of $350,000. This line of eredit is used to support the Company’s on-going cash
requirements for salaries and other operating expenses and Is essential for the Company’s
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continued operation. Congrassmarn-elect MeKinley a3 the largest shareholder of the Company
has personally guaranteed the line of credit, and it is unlikely that the existing loan can continue
without his personal guarantee. Nevertheless, Congressman-elect McKinley is willing to keep
his personal guarantee in place after he has transferred his interest in the Company to a blind
trust and resigned as an officer and director. This will aflow the Company time to make other
financial arrangements and not threaten the employment of the approximately 40 employees who
rely upon the Company for their livelihpod. The only other sharcholder of the Company, the
ESOP, is unable fo guarantee the Company’s bank loans. However, it is expected that McKinley
& Associates, Inc. itsell will be able to generate sufficient cash internally so that it can both
reduce the need for its lines of credit and so that it can, over time, accumulate financial assets
that can substitute for Congressman-elect McKinley's personal guarantee. Accordingly, this
waiver would permit David B. McKinley to continue to act as the personal guarantor of the
existing loans of McKinley & Associates, Inc. indefintiely and such personal guarantee would
not be considered an “improper affiliation” between the Member and the Company since
Congressman-elect McKinley would have no authority to direct the Company’s activities.

fnthe event you would like additional facts or would care to confer further regarding
these matters, please do not hesitate o contact me. A copy of the Trust created 10 hold

Congressman-elect McKinley's stoek in McKinley & Associates, Inc. is enclosed. Thank you
for your assistance and cooperation.

Very truly yours,
£ -
Charles 1. Kaiser, Jr.
CIK/sls
Enclosure

cc: Congressman-glect David B, MeKinley

[ Sh
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From: Dixon, Carol <Carol. Dixon@mailhouse.gov>
Sent: Friday, November 05, 2010 5:04 PM

To: dmckinley

Ce: Chisam, Blake

Subject: House outside employment rastrictions

Mr. McKinley-

Per our conversation earlier today, following is additional information regarding the outside employment
restrictions applicable to Members of the House. For the sake of completeness, I am attaching the link to the
entire House Ethics Manual, and the relevant chapter is Chapter 5, entitled "Outside Employment and Income,”
poges 185-246. While the entire chopter provides useful guidance, the pages specifically dealing with the fiduciary
restrictions are pages 213-223. In particular, poges 221-222 cover the issue of the name of the firm. The
informal opinion of the Committee staff is that these restrictions would necessitate changing the rame of your
firm, since it is one that provides fiduciary services and currently utilizes your name. You can seek a formal
determination on that question from the Chair & Ranking Member of the Committee by written request, should you
choose to do so.

T am heppy to address any questions you have about your business as you prepare to take office, including more
specific details on submitting a writfen request to the Committee. Feel free to have your attorney contact me

directly if that is more convenient.

http://ethicshouse gov/Media/PDF/2008 House Ethics Manualpdf

- Carol

Carol £, Dixon, Counsel

Committee on Standards of Official Conduct
HVC-227, Capitol Visitor Center
Washington, DC 20515

(202) 225-7103

carol.dixon@mailhouse.gov

No virus found in this message.
Checked by AVG - www.avg.com
Version: 10.0.1153 / Virus Database: 424/3239 - Release Date: 11/05/10
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rom: David 8 McKintey < llf@mckinieyassoccom>
Sent: Saturday, November 06, 2010 12:51 AM
To: ‘mbaker g
Ce ‘Tim Garon®
Subject: FW: House outside employment restrictions

How absurd is that advice. Thay expect me to change the name of my company!t! Does she really expact me to believe
that every lawyer or CPA in Congress has changed the name of their firm if they wish to continue doing business with
government? 1 told her that her advice was BS and we'll start again but with our corporate attorney the next

time. Think aboutit: hiding behind a name change makes it OK to do business with the Federal

government. Unbelievable...... thave not read the manual as yet but her “informal opinion™ is disturbing.

From: Dixon, Caro! {maiito:Carol. Dixon@mail.house.gov
Sent: Friday, November 05, 2010 5:04 PM

To: dmekint

Cc: Chisam, Blake

Subject: House outside employment restrictions

Mr. MeKinley-

Per our conversation earlier today, following is additional information regarding the outside employment
restrictions applicable to Members of the House. For the sake of completeness, T am attaching the link to the
entire House Ethics Manual, and the relevant chapter is Chapter 5, entitled "Outside Employment and Income,”
pages 185-246. While the entire chapter provides useful guidance, the pages specifically dealing with the fiduciary
restrictions are pages 213-223. In particular, pages 221-222 cover the issue of the name of the firm. The
informal opinion of the Committee staff is that these restrictions would necessitate changing the name of your
firm, since it is ene that provides fiduciary services and currently utilizes your name. You can seek e format
determination on that question from the Chair & Ranking Member of the Committee by written request, should you
choose to do so.

I am happy to address any questions you have about your business as you prepare 1o take office, including more
specific details on submitting a writfen request 1o the Committes. Feel free to have your attorney contact me
directly if that is more convenient.

http://ethics house.aov/Media/PDF/2008 House Ethics Manualpdf

- Carol

Carol E. Dixon, Counsel

Committee on Standards of Official Conduct
HVC-227, Capitol Visitor Center
Washington, DC 20515

(202) 225-7103

carol.dixon@mailhouse gov

EXHIBIT

PENGAD 800-631-6089

Maintain as Confidential
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Version: 10.0,1153 / Virus Database: 424/3239 - Release Date: 11/05/10
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RECEWED

1776 K STREET N

Jan Witold Baran
WASHINGTON, OC 20008
- . May 1,2013 202.719
PHONE  202.719.7000 ) .
FAX 202.719.7049 B Cileyrein.com

7923 JONES BRANCH ORIVE

SCLEAN, VA 22102 The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
PHONZ 703.905.2500 The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
FAX  703.805.2320 . .

Comumittee on Ethics

U. S. House of Representatives
wwirwileyrein.com 1015 Longworth House Office Building

Washington, DC 20515
Re:  Committee Request for Information, March I8, 2013
Dear Chairman Conaway and Ranking Member Sanchez:

Congressman David B. McKinley, through counsel, respectfully submits to the
Committee on Ethics his responses to the requests for information set forth by the
Committee in its March 18, 2013 letter. Documentary materials responsive to the
Committee’s requests are included on an accompanying disk at Bates Numbers
DBMO00000001 through DBM00000554.

Rep. McKinley did not knowingly or intentionally violate any law, standard of
conduct, or Committee directive with respect to use of the name McKinley &
Associates by his now former firm. Indeed, as the Committee will see from the
responses and materials p rovided, based on his understanding of the relevant
standards and legal compliance options as explained to him by attorney Charles J.
Kaiser, Rep. McKinley believed that he had resolved ethics concerns with respect
to the name of McKinley & Associates when he entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) with the company’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP™) on April 11,2011, Through this MOU, Rep. McKinley 1) committed to
the sale of all his remaining stock in the company to the ESOP and 2) agreed that
he had “no further control over the ownership and operations of McKinley &
Associates, Inc.” Previously, attorney Kaiser had advised then Congressman-elect
MeKinley consistently that there were two compliance options with respect to the
House ethics restrictions on providing professional services involving a fiduciary
relationship: either change the name of the company or divest his interest in the
company.

By entering into the MOU with the McKinley & Associates ESOP on April 11,
2011, then Congressman-elect McKinley believed that he had taken satisfactory
good faith steps to effectuate this second compliance option as described by
attorney Kaiser, that is, divestment of his interest in the company. As to what
representatives of McKinley & Associates knew of Committee guidance at that
time, prior to signing and entering into the MOU on behalf of the McKinley &
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Associates ESOP on April 11, 2011, ESOP Trustes Ernest Dellatorre (also a
member of the company’s management team) had been informed of recent
guidance from Committee staff counsel that she was going to recommend that the
Committee determine that the name “McKinley” would have to be removed from
the company’s name; other representatives of McKinley & Associates also knew of
this guidance at that time. (In January 2011, McKinley & Associates personnel
had also been apprised of Committee Counsel Stan Simpson’s guidance that
McKinley & Associates would not need to change its name because the company
qualified as a “family business.”)

Notwithstanding his good faith belief that he had resolved ethics concerns over the
use of the name McKinley & Associates by his former company by entering into
the MOU with the ESOP in April 2011, Rep. McKinley regrets that he did not
respond more formally at the time to the Committee’s letter to him dated June 24,
2011 (but received June 27, 2011), in which the Committee informed him that “a
name change [of the company] is required under current rules . ...” In considering
the question of Rep. McKinley’s responsiveness, the Committee should keep a
number of important factors in mind.

First, as summarized above and explained in more detail below, as of June 24,
2011, Rep. McKinley believed that he had taken appropriate and satisfactory ethics
compliance steps with respect to MeKinley & Associates when he entered into the
MOU with the ESOP more than two months earlier.

Second, within a few days of receiving the letter from the Committee on June 27,
2011, Rep. McKinley told then Ethics Committee Chairman Jo Bonner on the
House floor that he had already sold the company to which Chairman Bomner
replied, in substance, that he wished it had not come to that. Through this
exchange with the Chairman, Rep, McKinley believed that he had effectively
provided notice to the Committee of his action and of the status of the company.

Third, by the time he received the Committee’s letter on June 27, 2011, Rep.
McKinley bad not been treated well by the Committee process. In January 2011, a
Committee counsel informed his attorney that he agreed that “McKinley &
Associates qualified as a ‘family business’ and so the name would not need to be
changed.” More than two months later, another Committee counsel informed the
attorney that, in a potential total reversal of the Committee’s apparent position, she
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was going to recommend that the Committee determine that the name “McKinley”
would have to be removed from the company’s name. The Committee did not
provide its formal written guidance on this matter to Rep. McKinley — via the June
24, 2011, Committee letter — until almost six full months after Rep. McKinley’s
attorney submitted his letter requesting written Committee guidance.

For these and other reasons discussed below, the Committee’s process regarding
and handling of this matter was seriously flawed. Rep. McKinley was concerned
and upset by this process. However, Rep. McKinley believes that he may have
allowed these understandable concerns to affect his responsiveness to the
Committee and, if he did, he regrets having done so. He believes he should have
responded in a more formal manner to the Committee’s June 24, 2011, letter to
inform the Committee of the good faith compliance steps he had already taken.

This letter incorporates all arguments supporting the continued use of the name
“McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley’s former firm that were previously
made to the Committee through undersigned counsels’ September 14, 2012, letter
submitted on behalf of Rep. McKinley, (Bates Numbers DMB00000527-38.)
Although the Committee’s March 18, 2013, letter seeks information and documents
as part of an investigation, Rep. McKinley urges the Committee not to lose sight of
the important advisory question underlying this whole matter, that is, whether
“McKinley & Associates” is a “family name” under a long-recognized exception to
the restrictions on providing fiduciary services imposed by the Ethics in
Government Act. The Committee’s implicit determination in June 2011 that
“MeKinley & Associates” is not a “family name” was not required by the facts, by
the relevant laws and standards, by legislative history, or by policy. Indeed, all of
these factors — the facts, laws and standards, legislative history, policy — provide
substantial and sound support for a different, de novo determination by the
Committee, a determination that “McKinley & Associates” is a “family name” or
that its use by the company is otherwise permissible under the relevant fiduciary
profession restrictions.

We urge the Committee to review Rep. McKinley’s September 14, 2012, letter in
its entirety. However, the following quoted paragraphs from that letter provide a
summary of the substantial basis for determining that use of the McKinley &
Associates name is not contrary to the restrictions relating to fiduciary professions:
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[A] number of factors support your approval of continued use of the
name “McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley’s former firm.
“McKinley” is a well-known family and historical name in West
Virginia. The “McKinley” name in engineering and building design
was originally established in West Virginia by Rep. McKinley’s
father, Johnson B. McKinley, and was reinforced by him through his
long, public Association with McKinley & Associates. Entirely
independent of Rep. McKinley's status as a Member of Congress,
“McKinley & Associates™ has long been — and remains — an
established brand name in the provision of the highest-quality
engineering, architecture, and interior design services.

As the legislative history of the Ethics in Government Act makes
clear, the Act’s restrictions (and the parallel restrictions under House
Rule XXV) on the use of a “Member’s name” are intended to
address “cases where outside interests attempt to trade on the
prestige of Members of Congress.” This concern does not exist with
McKinley & Associates. The company trades on the “McKinley”
name as an historical name in West Virginia and as a “family name”
in engineering and building design. The company trades on ~
indeed, relies upon — the name “McKinley & Associates” as an
established and well-known brand name in its field. ‘

As explained above and supported in detail below, at the time Rep. McKinley
received the Committee’s June 24, 2011, letter, he believed that he had already
taken sufficient good faith steps to resolve any ethics concerns arising in
connection with McKinley & Associates such that the company's continued use of
that name was permissible. Rep. McKinley did not act with any bad intent in this
matter, including in not responding more formally to the Committee’s June 24,
2011, letter. However, regardiess of any position the Committee may take with
respect to Rep. McKinley’s responsiveness to its June 24 letter, the Committee may
and should reconsider its previous determination with respect to use of the name
McKinley & Associates by Rep. McKinley’s former company. The Committee
may now make a more fully informed determination. The Committee should
determine that continued use of the name “McKinley & Associates” by the
company is not contrary to law, rule, or regulation and is, therefore, permissible.
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Although submitted by counsel on his behalf, the responses and materials provided
with this letter were thoroughly reviewed by Rep. McKinley, were authorized and
confirmed by him as accurate to the best of his knowledge, recollection, and belief
. at this time, and were approved and authorized by him for submission to the
Commitiee, as was this letter. It should be noted that the Committee’s request for
details on conversations and interactions covers a period of two and half years; the
request for information regarding Rep. McKinley’s father goes back decades.
Understandably, there may have been communications and there may be
information responsive to the Committee’s request which the Congressman does
not recall at this time. With respect specifically to his wife and other members of
his family, including his four adult children, Rep. McKinley believes he had
numerous communications or discussions with them on matters relevant to the
Committee’s request which he does not now specifically recall. He also believes
that he likely complained to other individuals, including other Members, about
some of the matters covered in this letter, but he does not recall specific
conversations.

Note that, to the extent that discussion and documentation in the following
responses of communications between Rep. McKinley and attorney Charles J.
Kaiser may be viewed as constituting a waiver by the Congressman of attorney-
client privilege with respect to communications with Mr. Kaiser, with respect to
any other communications between Rep. McKinley and any other counsel, no such
waiver is intended to be implied, and none should be inferred.

With respect to the log of privileged or protected communications requested in
Committee Request 1, please note that, as previously discussed with and agreed to
by Committee Counsel, communications with undersigned counsel - who were
initially retained by the Congressman to assist in responding to the Committee’s
August 24, 2012, letter — and communications in connection with obtaining
information in response to the Committee’s March 18, 2012, letter, are attorpey-
client privileged and/or work product protected and are not separately entered or
noted on a log. A privilege log is provided herewith at Exhibit A with respect to
withheld communications involving other counsel.

Thank you for your careful consideration of the information and documents
provided by Rep. McKinley in response to the Committee’s requests.



49

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T, Sanchez, Rasking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 6

Response to Committee Requests 1 and 4

In Request 1 of its March 18, 2013, letter to Rep. McKinley, the Committee asked
the Congressman to provide it with “any and all details of meetings, conversations,
or other interactions . . . after your election to the U.S. House of Representatives
regarding the use of your name by the Firm.” In Request 4, the Committee asked

.| the Congressman to “state the steps you took, if any, in response to the
Committee’s letter dated June 24, 2011” and asked related questions. Committee
Requests 1 and 4 are both addressed in the discussion below.

Rep. McKinley first became aware of possible concerns regarding the continued
use of his name by the firm McKinley & Associates in communications with Ms.
Carol E. Dixon, Counsel to the Committee, on November 5, 2010. In an email of
that date to the Congressman (Bates Number DMB00000003), Ms. Dixon
referenced a related call earlier that same day and stated: “The informal opinion of
the Comumittee staff is that these [fiduciary] restrictions would necessitate changing
the name of your firm, since it is one that provides fiduciary services and currently
utilizes your name.”

Rep. McKinley’s understandably strong response to this “informal opinion” on the
use of his name by the firm can be seen by his November 6, 2010, email to Martin
Baker, a direct mail consultant to his campaign: “How absurd is that advice. They
expect me to change the name of my company . . . I have not read the manual as
yet, but her ‘informal opinion’ is disturbing.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000004-~
05.) Rep. McKinley explained what he viewed as “absurd” at this time when he
wrote in this email: “hiding behind a name change makes it OK to do business with
the Federal government. Unbelievable. Note that the Tim Garon “cc’d” on this
email was the Political Director of the National Republican Congressional
Committee (“NRCC”) at the time.

On the morning of November 9, 2010, Andy Sere ~ then Regional Press Secretary
for the NRCC and soon thereafter to become Rep. McKinley’s first congressional
chief of staff — reached out to the Congressman by email to say that Tim Garon had
mentioned the Committee “lawyer’s opinion on your company’s name” and to ask
if there had “been any further developments.” Mr. Sere stated that he was going to
make a few calls to see “how this issue has been bandled in the past with other
embers in similar situations.” Later that day, Mr. Sere emailed Rep. McKinley to
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let him know that he had spoken with two people on the issue: John Tosch,
apparently a corporate attorney for Rep. Vern Buchanan; and Todd Ungerecht, who
bad been counsel to Rep. Doc Hastings during his tenure as Chairman of the Ethics
Committee. (Bates Numbers DMB00000020-22.)

On November 10, 2013, Andy Sere followed up with an email to Rep. McKinley
into which he appears to have “cut and pasted” the content of an email from “a
GOP lawyer who used fo work on the ethics committee, to whom I previously
referred.” (Bates Number DMB00000023.) It appears that this “GOP lawyer” may
have been Todd Ungerecht, but Rep. McKinley does not know if it was he. In this
email, the “GOP lawyer” discussed whether “engineering consulting” is covered by
the restrictions on “fiduciary professions” and provided his thoughts on how the
Congressman'’s divestment of his interest in the firm could affect any necessity to
change the name of the firm, depending on to whom he divested his interest.

Rep. McKinley recalls that orientation activities for his class of new Members
began on about November 14, 2010. During this orientation period, Rep.
McKinley recalls speaking about his business holdings with a young woman from
the Ethics Committee staff after the cthics presentation. The Committee staffer
stated that it was possible that Rep. McKinley would have to sell his company and
might have to change the name of the company as well. Rep. McKinley asked the
staffer what he was supposed to do if he was a one-term congressman and had no
business to return to. Rep. McKinley recalls that the staffer responded by asking,
either naively or cavalierly, “Wouldn’t you just start a new business?” Rep.
McKinley told the staffer that the next time she heard from him it would be
through his attorney. The Congressman recalls that Mary McKinley, his wife, was
part of this discussion. (Materials that appear to have been provided to
Congressman-elect McKinley at, or in connection with, orientation are included at
Bates Numbers DMB00000006-19.)

Sometime during the new Member orientation period in 2010, Rep. McKinley
spoke in person with Rep. Jo Bonner, then Ranking Member and soon to become
Chairman of the Ethics Committee, about the informal opinion of Committee staff
that he might have to change the name of McKinley & Associates and/or sell his
interest in the company. Rep. McKinley recalls Rep. Bonner saying there was a
possibility of his receiving a waiver with respect to matters concerning McKinley
& Associates, including with respect to the name of the company. Rep. McKinley
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also recalls Rep. Bonner advising him to get in touch with Kelle Strickland, his
Counsel for Ethics Committee matters.

On their drive back to West Virginia after orientation, Rep. McKinley and his wife
talked about the opinions provided by Ethics Committee staff regarding McKinley
& Associates. Sometime after he arrived back in West Virginia, Rep. McKinley
contacted attorney Charles J. Kaiser.! On November 17, 2010, attorney Kaiser-
wrote to Rep. McKinley at McKinley & Associates. This letter was headed
“Business Restructuring” and in it Mr. Kaiser provided a brief overview of “a
series of Rules that apply to professional businesses.” (Bates Numbers
DMBO00000025-26.) From the documents collected and provided with this
response, it appears that Rep. McKinley and Mr. Kaiser spoke about the House
ethics issues on November 22, 2010, although Rep. McKinley does not recall if
that was the date on which he first spoke to Mr, Kaiser about these matters. (Bates
Numbers DMB00000027-28.) Rep. McKinley recalls that Mr. Kaiser was
surprised by the ethics restrictions as applied to McKinley & Associates.

On November 23, 2010, Rep. McKinley followed up with an email to Mr. Kaiser,
forwarding Andy Sere’s November 10 email (referenced above) and summarizing
points and questions covered in their discussion the previous day, including:
“Keeping the name MeKinley as the corporate identity is a huge and over-riding
priority”; “Would simply selling to the ESOP make this [moot]?”; and “What is the
waiver that has been discussed by Bonner?” (Bates Numbers DMB00000027-28.)
Later on November 23, Rep, McKinley forwarded to Mr. Kaiser the Noveraber 9
emails from Andy Sere, discussed above. (Bates Numbers DMB00000029-30.)

On Wednesday, November 24, 2010 — the day before Thanksgiving ~ at 5:04 PM,
Mr. Kaiser sent a highly significant email to Rep. McKinley in which, as the
attorney advising Rep. McKinley on complying with House ethics requirements,
Mr. Kaiser framed for Rep. McKinley the issues and the options for action

! With respect to the legal and ethics issues raised by Mr. McKinley’s election to Congress,

Mr. McKinley understands that, through early to mid-April 2011, Mr. Kaiser was providing legal
advice and counsel to both Mr. McKinley and McKinley & Associates (which, until Apeil 11,2011
—as explained below — was both 70% owned by and controlled by Mr. McKinley). McKinley &
Associates paid for these legal services,
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available to him. With regard to the “company name change,” Mr. Kaiser wrote
and advised Rep. McKinley as follows:

The question as to the change of name boils down to whether
McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm “providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.” An
example of this definition in the Rules is a company providing
architectural services, but we can certainly ask for a ruling and argue
that it does not apply to you because you are not an architect. Ifthe
ruling comes back favorable, you can keep your interest in the
company, but not work or receive earned income from it. If
MeXKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship, then it
appears that you are left with two choices: (1) change the name,
or (2) completely divest yourself of your interest in the company
(this appears to include Mary as well). Please understand that
your situation is different than family businesses that do not provide
professional services (i.e. car dealerships), though I think the logic
got lost when this Rule/law was formulated. In addition, it is
important for you to understand that this is not simply a House Rule,
but a federal statute.

(Bates Numbers DMB00000033-34.) (Emphasis added.)

This clearly stated analysis from Mr. Kaiser — either change the company name or
divest yourself of your interest in the company — established a firm framework of
understanding for Rep. McKinley through which he viewed his obligations under
House ethics standards with respect to McKinley & Associates. This framework,
to a very significant and persistent extent, guided his subsequent actions regarding
his interest in McKinley & Associates, regarding the use of that name by the
company, and regarding his understanding of, and steps taken in response to,
Ethics Committee communications on these issues in 2010 and 2011

The extent to which Mr. Kaiser’s email of November 24, 2010, both galvanized
Rep. MeKinley’s understanding of the options for compliance available to bim and
prompted him to preliminary action to effectuate one of these options can be seen
in two emails from November 29, 2010. In the first email - sent by Rep. McKinley
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to his cousin Jon in response to a congratulatory message — Rep. McKinley talked
about orientation, his House office assignment and swearing in, and then added:
“In the meantime I apparently have to wrap up ownership of my A/E practice to
comply with the Federal ethics rules.” (Bates Number DMB00000044.)

In the second email of November 29, Lynn Adams, Office Manager for McKinley
& Associates and a member of the company management team, forwarded to Rep.
McKinley the agenda for the upcoming company management meeting. Ttem 2 on
this agenda is “ESOP buyout,” that is, discussion of having the McKinley & :
Associates ESOP ~ which already owned 30% of the company’s stock — purchase
the remaining 70% of shares owned by Rep. McKinley. (Bates Number
DMBU00000057.) As this second email indicates, in November 2010, Rep.
McKinley spoke to personnel of McKinley & Associates — including Lynn Adams,
Emie Dellatorre and, likely, others — about company-related issues arising from
House ethics standards, but he does not recall specific conversations.

Also on the morning of November 29, 2010, Mr. McKinley had an exchange of
emails with Andy Sere and Mr. Kaiser in the morning in which Rep. McKinley
forwarded Mr. Kaiser’s November 24 email to Mr. Sere and asked Mr. Kaiser to
“coordinate” with Mr. Sere, who by that time had become Rep. McKinley’s Chief
of Staff. On November 29, by email, Mr. Sere also asked Rep. McKinley if he had
“talked to Jo Bonner’s staffer” and recalled that “NRCC Counsel Jessica Furst” had
given Rep. McKinley a “name and contact info” for this purpose. (As discussed
below, Rep. McKinley met and spoke with Ms. Furst about ethics-related issues
during the orientation period in Washington, D.C.) Mr. Sere stated to Rep.
McKinley in this same email: “It does seem like we'll have to ask for a ruling.”
And, by email later that morning, Mr. Sere told Rep. McKinley: “Just talked with
CJ [Kaiser]. We discussed possible next steps . . . will advise later today. (Bates
Numbers DMB00000035-43, 45-51.)

It appears that Mr. Sere and Mr. Kaiser then talked on the phone on the morning of
November 29, 2010. Based on a summary email about that call from Mr. Kaiser to
Mr. Sere, copied to Rep. McKinley, Mr. Kaiser provided Mr. Sere with essentially
the same analysis and the same two compliance options he presented to Rep.
McKinley in the November 24, 2010, email discussed above; “If 1 McKinley &
Associates is considered to be a firm providing professional services involving
a fiduciary relationship, it appears that there are two choices: (1) change the



54

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 11

name; or (2) completely divest DBMcX(’s interest in the company (this appears
to include David’s wife as well).” (Bates Number DMB00000052.) (Emphasis
added.) Mr. Sere followed up later that day with two more emails, sent to Mr.
Kaiser and Rep. McKinley, relating to his apparent notification to NRCC “in-house
counsel {Jessica Furst] of the issue.” Mr. Sere also refers to a proposed discussion
on the issue with NRCC “outside counsel,” but it appears that this discussion did
not occur that day and Rep. McKinley does not specifically recall if it did occur at
some later time. (Bates Numbers DMBO000000353-56.) In closing out this
particular email exchange on the moming of November 30, 2010, Rep. McKinley,
in an email to Mr, Sere and Mr. Kaiser, turned the focus of his attorney’s steps to
“[Mr.] Bonger’s staff,” noting: “Bonner had confidently suggested that something
could be worked out and not to worry; he then turned me over to Kelle, his
committee counsel. am anxious to hear what Bonner’s people have to add to this
discussion.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000058-59.)

As the emails included at Bates Numbers DMB00000061-63 show, Mr. Kaiser
spoke with both Jessica Furst and Kelle Strickland on November 30, 2010. Before
reviewing more information about these discussions, however, it is worth noting
the strength and urgency of Rep. McKinley’s concern at this time about the future
of the company to which he had devoted 30 years of his life. In an email to Mr.
Sere and Mr. Kaiser sent at 11:46 AM on November 30, 2010, Rep. McKinley
wrote: “Think about it: if a member-elect were 40 years old and had started his
own firm 15 years previously, forcing him to divest himself of the company
ownership and changing the name teaves him with what to return to if he were
defeated two years later? Bonner said there is a solution; what is it.” (Bates
Number DMB00000060.)

According to the December 1, 2010, email from Mr. Kaiser to Rep. McKinley
(Bates Number DMB00000068), when Mr, Kaiser spoke to Ms, Furst on
November 30, after she “reviewed all of the email traffic,” Ms. Furst “confirmed
[his] concerns,” presumably about the stark choice ficing Rep. McKinley: either
change the name of the company or divest his interest in it. In this same email, Mr.
Kaiser notes that be also spoke to Kelle Strickland on November 30, telling Rep.
McKinley, “I explained the issues and the background and told her that I would
place all of this in a letter to her so that she could advise the best way to proceed.”
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M. Kaiser attached the letter to Ms. Strickland to his email to Rep. McKinley,
which is discussed below. (Bates Numbers DMB00000069-70.)

In concluding his December 1 email to Rep. McKinley, Mr. Kaiser makes a point
about the restrictions on the practice of the designated “fiduciary professions” that
explains and underscores the frustration of many non-lawyer Members and
Senators covered by these restrictions: “Adding architects and engineers to a legal
prohibition that was clearly intended to apply to lawyers and business advisers
makes no logical sense —~ if a lobbyist is intending to curry favor with a
Congressman he can do it just as easily by purchasing a car from the car dealership
as he can by hiring the architect to design his house.” As an historical observation,
Mr. Kaiser’s statement is pretty close to the mark. There is certainly support for
the conclusion that the drafters of the “fiduciary profession” restrictions ~ many of
whom were lawyers — did not want to single out the legal profession as being
singularly susceptible to creating the potential for a financial conflict, so the
restrictions were made to apply to a category created and defined more broadly, the
“professions that provide services involving a fiduciary relationship.” But,
importantly and as Mr. Kaiser further notes in this email: “Nonetheless, the law is
the law; and we must find 2 way to comply with it.” That is what Rep. McKinley
tried to do, and believed he did, following his understanding of the law as it had
been explained to him.

In his November 30, 2010, letter to Kelle Strickland (Bates Numbers
DMB00000069-70), Mr, Kaiser sought guidance “in order to advise Congressman-
elect McKinley regarding his options concerning the business [McKinley &
Associates] and his relationship with it while he remains a Member of Congress.”
As the following quoted paragraph shows, Mr. Kaiser’s letter to Ms. Strickland
was informed by the same two-option understanding and framework he set out for
Rep. McKinley in the November 24 email quoted above —that is, Rep. McKinley
could either change the company name or divest his interest in the company —
although in the letter to Ms. Strickland Mr. Kaiser also explored the possibility of a
“waiver” exempting McKinley & Associates from the fiduciary profession
restrictions:

Paramount among our concerns is the future use of the name:
MeKinley & Associates, Inc. Over more than twenty years in the
region considerable goodwill and name-recognition has accrued to
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this name. Moreover, Congressman-elect McKinley's deceased
father, though not associated with the current firm, was also a
licensed professional engineer and had a long career in the area.
Much of the company’s goodwwill that has acerued as a result of the
name would be lost if the name must be changed Accordingly, we
would like to explore the possibility of retaining the name McKinley
& Associates, Inc. if Congressman-elect McKinley would sever his
other relationships with the business by for example: (a) selling his
stock to the ESOP in return for a note payable over a period of
years; (b) alternately giving or selling his stock to his wife or
children; (c) resigning as an officer and director; and (d) having the
company designate other professionals as its supervising architect
and supervising professional engineer. If you believe that McKinley
& Associates, Inc. can escape being designated as engaging in a
“profession that involves a fiduciary relationship” by requesting a
waiver or clarification of the definition, please advise as to the best
way to go about that process. Obviously, if we could simply keep
the status quo so far as the name and stock ownership of the
business is concerned that would be most desirable to Congressman-
elect McKinley, even if he must take a sabbatical so far as his
employment and other responsibilities toward the firm while a
Member. ’

With regard to Mr. Kaiser’s statement in this November 30, 2010, letter that Rep.
McKinley’s father — Johnson B. McKinley — was “not associated with the current
firm,” this staterment was not accurate. Although the elder McKinley does not
appear to have been an on-the-payroll employee of McKinley & Associates, he was
“associated” with the firm as a consultant and otherwise, as we have described for
the Committee previously in our Septemberl4, 2012, letter (Bates Numbers
DMB00000527-38) and as we also describe in our response below to Committee
Request 2.

While awaiting a response to the letter to Ms. Strickland ~ and in conformity with
thé guidance and framework of understanding provided by Mr. Kaiser — Rep.
McKinley continued fo take steps preparatory to selling McKinley & Associates, as
a legal alternative to changing the company name. Two email exchanges between
Lynn Adams, of McKinley & Associates, and George B. Sanders, Jr., attorney for



57

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 14

the McKinley & Associates ESOP, show Rep. McKinley’s increasing focus on
selling his remaining 70% interest in the company to the ESOP (or 60% to the
company and 10% to another individual) as soon as possible. In a December 2,
2010, exchange of emails with the subject heading “Urgent Question” (Bates
Number DMB00000071-73) Ms. Adams wrote to Mr. Sanders, with a copy to Rep.
McKinley: “Mr. MeKinley would lilkke to know what stock valuation date would be
used if he were to sell his remaining 70% of McKinley & Associates, Inc. to the
ESOP en 1/5/11 .. . He needs this information to make an informed decision
concerning the Company prior to taking office in the U.S, House in early January
due to House ethics rules.” In his response, Mr. Sanders noted: “If David is going
to do this, we need to start ASAP. Iam not sure we could get it done by 1/5/2011
but would surely come close.”

By December 10, 2010, 2 plan for Rep. McKinley to resolve potential ethics issues
by selling his remaining interest in the company was closer to execution, as Ms.
Adams’ email to Mr. Sanders, copied to Rep. McKinley, shows: “It appears as
though we may be moving toward the sale of the remaining McKinley stock, or at
least 60% of it [10% would go to another individual], to the ESOP .. .
[Ulnderstanding that this transaction and valuation will take time, our local
attorney {apparently Mr. Kaiser] has indicated that as long as we can initiate the
sale by January 5, 2011, we would be demonstrating good-faith and could
complete the sale later in the year.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000090.)
(Emphasis added.) Attorney Sanders’ December 12, 2010, response to Ms. Adams,
also copied to Mr. McKinley, may be read as confirming the “local attorney’s”
point (cited by Ms. Adams in her email) that, even if Rep. McKinley’s sale of the
company were not completed until later in the year, initiation of the sale by January
5,2011, would show Rep. McKinley’s good faith in the effort to comply with
congressional ethics requirements. (Bates Numbers DMB00000093-94.)

A number of other email exchanges during this same period relate to efforts by
Rep. McKinley to resolve ethics issues arising in connection with McKinley &
Associates before he took office in January 2011. As reflected in an email from
Ms. Adams to Rep. McKinley, dated December 3, 2010 (Bates Number
DMBO00000076), it appears that at a McKinley & Associates management mesting
held on December 2, 2010, there was discussion of the possibility of splitting the
company to create an enginecring company that could retain the name McKinley &
Associates and an architectural firm with a different name. Ms. Adams asked My,
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Kaiser for his opinion on this possibility and inquired about “the prohibitions from
putting the company into Mary’s name” in a December 7, 2010 email. (Bates
Numbers DMB00000077-78.) In a December 10 email to Ms. Adams, copied to
Rep. McKinley, Mr. Kaiser discussed the “problem with Mary McKinley being a
significant owner of McKinley & Associates.” (Bates Number DMB00000092.)
| InaDecember 14, 2010, email to Mr. Kaiser, copied to Rep. McKinley, Ms.
Adams asked for guidance with respect to whether other steps — closing Rep.
McKinley’s corporate card, discontinuing use of Mary McKinley’s personal card
for company purchases, and designating new officers — might be needed to
dissociate Rep. McKinley and his wife from McKinley & Associates before he
took office. (Bates Numbers DMB00000096-102.)

While Rep. McKinley, attorney Kaiser, and personnel at McKinley & Associates
were taking the steps described above for Rep. McKinley and his wife to sell their
interests in McKinley & Associates, if necessary, to comply with House ethics
standards, Mr. Kaiser heard back from Ms. Strickland in response to his November
30, 2010, letter to her. Mr. Kaiser informed Rep. McKinley, in a December 7,
2010, email that Ms. Strickland had consulted with Carol Dixon and “[{lhey are
both of the opinion that while McKinley & Associates, Inc. is providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship that the company may be
able to avoid changing the name under the ‘family name exception’ based upon the
similar name of Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting Engineer. She suggested that
we request written advice from the Committee and lodge this letter prior to David
being sworn in on January 5, 2011.” Mr. Kaiser advised, however, that despite the
informal Committee staff guidance that the company “may be able to avoid
changing the name,” the transfer of the company would likely have to proceed:
“Because the ‘family name’ exception does not eliminatethe other two
prohibitions (i.e. compensation and management affiliation), I believe that David
will have to deal with the management structure and ownership of McKinley &
Associates in any event. This will have to be accomplished prior to January 5 and
should be done in time so that we can explain the reorganization to the Committee”
in the letter requesting the opinion on the name.” (Bates Number DMBO00000079.)

After Mis. Strickland advised Mr. Kaiser to seek written advice from the
Comumittee, Rep. McKinley and Mr. Kaiser communicated on a number of
occasions on drafts of the letter and on questions related to the request for
Commitiee guidance on complying with the restrictions on a Member’s providing
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professional service involving a fiduciary profession. (Bates Numbers
DMB00000095, DMB00000103-63.) Lynn Adams, a member of the management
team at McKinley & Associates, participated in or was copied on many of these
email communications. As these email communications show, during the process
of drafting a letter to the Committee the possibility of Rep. McKinley putting his
interest in McKinley & Associates in a blind trust was added to the compliance
options to be put before the Committee.

On January 3, 2011, at 3:53 PM, Mr. Kaiser emailed a signed letter to the Ethics
Commitiee seeking an advisory opinion on matters relating to Rep. McKinley’s
interest in McKinley & Associates and on permitting McKinley & Associates “to
retain its existing name under the well-recognized family name exception.” (Bates
Numbers DMB00000164-78). (Note that, although Mr. Kaiser emailed this signed
letter to Kelle Strickland and Daniel Taylor at the Committee on January 3, the
copy of the letter in the Committee’s files, provided to Rep. McKinley in
connection with the Committee’s current request for information, bears a date of
January 14, 2011.) Mr. Kaiser informed the Committee in this letter that “{plrior to
being swom in as a Member of the House of Representatives, David B. McKinley
will resign as an officer and director of McKinley & Associates, Inc. and place his
stock in a blind trust that will be keld for as long as he remains a member of the
House of Representatives or otherwise holds an elected federal office.”

Rep. McKinley recalls that sometime between his election to Congress and his
being sworn in on January 3, 2011, he spoke with former Ohio Congressman
Charlie Wilson about the informal guidance he had received from Ethics
Committee staff with regard to his relationship with McKinley & Associates. Mr.
Wilson — who had two businesses bearing the Wilson name in Ohio during his
congressional tenure — told Rep. McKinley he did not think McKinley &
Associates would have to change its name. Rep. McKinley also recalls speaking
with Rep. Westmoreland at the Members’ Retreat in January 2011, about these
matters; Rep. McKinley recalls that at some point Rep. Westmoreland
recommended that Rep. McKinley might want to confer with attorney Randy
Evans. :

A January 12, 2011, email indicates that Rep. McKinley had a brief contact with
attorney Harry Buch regarding the letter pending before the Ethics Committee,
(See entry on privilege log at Exhibit A\) Mr. Buch, in addition to being the
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proposed trustee listed on the materials submitted to the Committee with Mr.
Kaiser’s January 3, 2011, letter, was also an attorney for Rep. McKinley.

On January 25, 2011, attorney Kaiser received a crucial telephone call from Stan
Simpson, Counsel at the Ethics Committee. As Mr. Kaiser informed Rep.
MeKinley the next day, in an email copied to Ms. Adams of McKinley &
Associates management, Mr. Simpson notified Mr. Kaiser in this call “[t]hat the
staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Associates does ot provide
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship . . . Mr., Simpson alse
agreed that McKinley & Associates qualified as a ‘family business’ and so the
name would not need to be changed. He stated that as a result of the first point,
there is no need for blind trust to hold your stock in McKinley & Associates.”
(Bates Numbers DMB00000185-86.) (Emphasis added.) Mr. Simpson’s guidance
to Mr. Kaiser, although oral and informal, could not have been clearer or more
absolute: the name of McKinley & Associates would not need to be changed.

On January 26, 2011, Mr. Kaiser forwarded to Mary McKinley his January 25,
2011, cmail summarizing his call with Committee Counsel Simpson. It appears
that on January 26, Mrs. McKinley and Mr. Kaiser also spoke by phone about Mr,
Simpson’s guidance. (See Bates Numbers DMB00000187-89 for this email and
for what appears to be a page of notes by Mrs. McKinley on a January 26 call with
Mr. Kaiser.)

Despite the clazity and specificity of Ethics Committee Counsel Stan Simpson’s
advice to Mr. Kaiser that McKinley & Associates did not provide professional
services involving a fiduciary relationship and that the name McKinley &
Associates would pot need to be changed, more than two full months later - on
March 31, 2011 — Mr. Kaiser received a call from another Committee Counsel,
Heather Jones, completely contradicting Mr, Simpson’s advice. Mr. Kaiser
immediately informed Lynn Adams of the call. Then, in an “urgent” March 31,
2011, email to Mr. McKinley (Bates Number DMB00000216) ~ and copied to -
Ernie Dellatorre and Tim Mizer, both of McKinley & Associate management — Ms.
Adams summarized the pew Ethics Committee guidance from Ms. Jones: “She
says that Stan Simpson, who provided the Ethics’ position to him on you and the
company is no longer with thern and that she is going to recommend that the
House Committee take a stand that you do have a fiduciary relationship and
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also that the McKinley name must be removed from the company.” (Emphasis
added.)

1t is well known, based on media reports, that, during this period of time in early
2011, the Ethics Committee was undergoing considerable organizational turmoil,
with some Members and staff apparently under suspicion by other Members and
staff. To some extent this confusion within the Committee staff appears to be
reflected in Chairman Bonner’s reaction when Rep. McKinley spoke with him
about Ms. Jones’ call. In an April 2, 1011, email to Mr. Kaiser (Bates Number
DMB00000207-08), Rep. McKinley summarized his call with the Ethics
Committee Chair: :

Lynn [Adams, of the McKinley & Associates management team]
has informed me that a different determination may be being
considered. Consequently I have already spoken with Congressman
Jo Bonner on Friday. He recommended that I get back to him next
week because his staff was already gone for the day. He claimed he
remembered some of our previous discussions but showed no
awareness of an earlier recommendation by his staff. Nevertheless
but [sic] he was not particularly pleased that another decision may
be forthcoming and one that reversing [sic] an earlier and more
encouraging solution.

Whatever was going on internally within the Committee, it is difficult to
understand how the Committee could permit two of its staff counsel to provide
entirely confradictory advice to a Member on a matter of such vital personal
importance to him and of such financial importance not only to the Member, but
also to his family, to his company, and to the many people employed by that
company and dependent on it for their livelihood. This was not an abstract legal
problem for Rep. McKinley or for the management and employees of McKinley &
Associates, So it cannot be difficult for the current leadership and Members of the
Committee to appreciate how the Committee’s apparent 180 degree turnabout in its
advice surprised, shocked, and bewildered Rep. McKinley.

In response to the Committee’s reversal of opinion on the issues of whether
McKinley & Associates provides services involving a fiduciary relationship and
whether the company could retain its name, Rep. McKinley and members of
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McKinley & Associates management team determined to proceed with the plan for
Rep. McKinley to transfer his remaining ownership interest in the company to the
MecKinley & Associates ESOP. This plan had been abandoned when Committee
Counsel Stan Simpson advised on January 25 that the company would not have to
change its name. Rep. McKinley cannot recall whether the idea to proceed with
this transfer was his or whether it originated with Ernie Dellatorre or someone else
at McKinley & Associates; after Ms. Jones’s call to Mr. Kaiser on March 31, 2011
Rep. McKinley did discuss this matter with Mr. Dellatorre and others at McKialey
& Associates, but he does not recall the details of any specific discussion.

3

On April 11, 2011, Mr. McKinley and Mr. Dellatorre, as ESOP Trustee, entered
into and signed a Memorandum of Understanding (*MOU”) on the “ESOP
Purchase of Remaining McKinley & Associates Shares.” (Bates Number
DMB00000217.) Rep. McKinley believes that Mr. Dellatorre drafted this MOU.
The MOU provided as follows:

As’a result of your resignation as President of McKinley &
Associates and our conversation last week regarding the potential
for a perceived conflict with your ownership of the company during
your term in Congress, this letter will serve as our memorandum of
Understanding that the ESOP will purchase your remaining shares in
McKinley & Associates. Once the share value is determined and the
transferring document is approved, your remaining shares will be
purchased by the ESOP. Payment for the shares will be similar to
the funding you provided for the purchase of the original ESOP
Shares.

Details on the stock valuation, the financing for the ESOP purchase,
and the final transaction date will be detailed in a subsequent
document to be developed by counsel for both of our signatures.

It is our mutual understanding that by agreeing to this
Memorandum of Understanding that you will have no further
control over the ownership and operations of McKinley &
Associates, Inc.

(Emphasis added.)
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The Committee should recall that, at the time he signed and entered into this MOU
with Rep. McKinley, Mr. Dellatorre knew of the Committee’s likely reversal of its
position on whether the company could maintain the name McKinley &
Associates. Mr. Dellatorre had been copied on Lynn Adams March 31, 2011,
email in which she stated that Committee Counsel Heather Jones was “going to
recommend that the House Committee take a stand that you do have a fiduciary
relationship and also that the McKinley name must be removed from the
company.”

Rep. McKinley entered into the MOU with Mr. Dellatorre and the ESOP on April
11, 2011, with the good faith understanding that — by committing to complete the
transfer of his interest when a share value could be determined and by also
committing specifically that, as of the date of the MOU, he had “no further contro!
over the ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates, Inc.” - he would be
in compliance with the advice and framework for understanding previously
provided to him by attorney Kaiser. Rep. McKinley believes he did not confer
with Mr. Kaiser on the MOU, however. Rep. McKinley recalls that Mr. Kaiser
took a “just change the name” stance in response to hearing from Heather Jones on
March 31, 2011, that she was going to recommend that the company be required to
change its name. Rep. McKinley understood Mr. Kaiser’s stance as advocating
what Mr. Kaiser saw — as a practical matter — as easiest option to put into effect,
Rep. McKinley viewed Mr. Kaiser's practical stance, however, as being entirely
consistent with Mr. Kaiser’s guidance with respect to the two legal options for
compliance — either change the company name or divest his interest — that were
available to Rep. McKinley.

On April 14, 2011, Mr. Kaiser emailed a signed letter to Ms. Jones at the
Committee explaining why the Committee would be in error if it found that
McKinley & Associates was a firm providing professional services involving a
fiduciary relationship. (Bates Numbers DMB00000222-26.) Mr. Kaiser sent his
letter to Ms. Jones on April 14 following an April 13,2011, email from Ms. Jones
to him “reminding” him “that the Committee on Ethics is waiting on your brief
regarding whether architects and engineers are fiduciaries under West Virginia
law.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000476-80.) Mr. Kaiser’s argument in this April
14, 2011, letter is summed up in the following paragraph:
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West Virginia imposes fiduciary responsibilities only upon
consulting engineers, not professional enginsers. Moreover, the
House Rules were intended to apply to areas where a professional
had fiduciary responsibilitics to his or her client which could
necessarily conflict with the respousibilities of a Member of
Congress. As has been shown, West Virginia law states clearly that
the fiduciary responsibility of as licensed professional engineer or
licensed architect is to the public, not the client. Thus the dangers
that the House Rules wers trying to guard against do not apply in
this particular instance.

(Ernphasis added.)

In this April 14, 2011, letter to Ms. Jones, Mr. Kaiser also reiterated “the history of
the professional engineering firm within the McKinley family.” By reiterating this

¢ history, Mr. Kaiser demonstrated that the name McKinley & Associates is a

“family name,” subject as such to a recognized Comumittee exception to the
prohibition on a Member “permitting” his name to be used by an entity that
provides professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.

By email on April 14,2011, at 4:52 PM (Bates Numbers DMB00000222-26), Mr.
Kaiser forwarded to Rep. McKinley and to Ms. Adams, at McKinley & Associates,
a copy of this signed letter to Ms: Jones at the Ethics Committee. In this email, Mr.
Kaiser notes that he “added the paragraph at the end reiterating the relationship
between the Johnson McKinley engineering practice and the present-day McKinley
& Associates.” However, Rep. McKinley does not recall discussing drafts of the
letter to Ms. Jones with Mr. Kaiser.

On May 2, 2011, apparently at the request of Andy Sere, Ms. Jackie Barber, then
Deputy General Counsel at the NRCC, emailed Mr. Sere about laws and standards
applicable to participation in a contract with the federal government by a Member

| or by & corporation with a relationship with 2 Member. (Bates Number
- DMB00000233.) :

More than two months later, On June 23, 2011, Mr. Kaiser heard again from Ms
Jones at the Committee. Mr. Kaiser described this call in a June 24, 2011, email to
Rep. McKinley, copied to Ms. Adams at McKinley & Associates (and included at

! Bates Number DMB00000235): “While she did not give me any indication as to
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the Committee’s decision on this matter, she wanted confirmation from me that
you had resigned your position as an officer and director of MeKinley &
Associates. 1told her that your resignation letters were signed and delivered prios
to vour being sworn into office as 2 Member of Congress.”

On hane 27, 2011 — almost six months after his counsel submitied a letter to the
Committes on January 3, 2011, seeking a formal Committee advisory opinion —
Rep. McKinley received word in a phone call from Chairman Bonner that a letter
would be forthcoming. In an email that same day at 5:29 PM to Mr. Kaiser, Rep.
McKinley summarized the key point of the call with Chairman Bonner: “He savs
we must change the name of the company to McKinley Engineering.” (Bates
Number DMB00000237.) Kelle Strickland forwarded the actual letter — dated June
24,2011 —to Rep. McKinley by email at 5:55 PM on June 27, 2011, (Bates
Numbers DMB00000245-51.) As to why, in his June 27 call with Chairman
Bonner, Rep. McKinley “countered with the option of selling the company to {his]
wife or son” — notwithstanding the fact that the MOU was in place with the
McKinley & Associates ESOP regarding transfer of shares and relinquishment of
“control over the ownership and operations of the company™ ~ Rep. McKinley
believes he mentioned that option to see if the Committee would receive it
favorably and in case the MOU could somehow be withdravwn in favor of that
option. Rep. McKinley understood at the time, however, that he did not have
control over the ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates, or the
ESOP, and that the ESOP would have to agree to any modification of the terms of
the MOU.

In reviewing the letter, Rep. McKinley quickly focused on a fundamental factual
flaw in the Committee’s analysis regarding what would qualify as a “family name”
for the company, as he pointed out in a June 27, 2011, email to Mr. Kaiser: “This
makes no sense. [Tlhink about it: McKinley Engineering is OK but McKinley &
Associates is a problem. My father’s company was not McKinley Engineering and
we never represented that it was. That name was the one [ used as a sole proprictor
for tqhe early years of the company. Let's talk,” (Bates Numbers DMB00000238-
44.)

The Committee's letter dated June 24, 2011, letter does state that Rep. McKinley's father,
Joboson MeKinley, “maintained a one-man office, McKinley Engineering, as a consulting eng
in Wheeling, West Virginie, beginning in 1954 until his retiremant in the 1980s.” Ttis not clear




66

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 23

Rep. McKinley recalls that, within a day or two of receiving the Committee’s letter
on June 27,2011, he approached Chairman Bonner before the Speaker’s podium
on the floor of the House. With regard to the Committee’s letter, Rep. McKinley
recalls saying to Chairman Bonner, “what the [heck] is this,” or some other
simitarly expressive phrase. Rep. McKinley told Chairman Bonner that “McKinley
Engineering” was the original name of Ais firm, not the name of his father’s firm
(as the Committee’s letter incorrectly stated). Rep. McKinley recalls Chairman
Bonner responding, in substance, that the Committee was not aware of this but had
thought that “McKinley Engineering” was the name of his father’s firm; Chairman
Bonner said that this could make a difference to the Committee’s determination.
Rep. McKinley then responded that, in any event, it did not matter anymore
because he had already sold his company, by which Rep. McKinley meant the
arrangement put in place by the MOU. Chairman Bonner said that he did not know
this and that he had hoped it would not come to this.

Shortly after receipt, Rep. McKinley shared the Committee’s letter dated June 24,
2011, with members of management at McKinley & Associates.

With respect to steps taken in response to the Committee’s latter dated June 24,
2011, Rep. McKinley reasonably believed that no such steps were necessary
because ~ first through the MOU and then, at the end 0f 2011 and as discussed
below, through the final redemption of his remaining shares by McKinley &
Associates — he believed he had complied with the guidance from Mr. Kaiser that
any ethics concerns that would arise for him in connection with the name
“McKinley & Associates” would be resolved by either changing the company
name or divesting his interest in the company. Rep. McKinley believed that the

(Continued . . .}

where the Committee got the information — or the incorrect idea — that Rep, MeKinley’s father
called his practice “McKinley Engineering.” It does not appear to be in any written submissions
that had been made to the Comimittee by counsel for the Congressman. Given Rep. McKinley's

! recollection and understanding that his father did rof call his own practice “McKinley Engincering”
and given that “McKinley Engincering” was the original name of McKinley & Associates, there
appears {o be just as much basis for the Comumittee to determine that “McKinley & Associates™ is a
family name as there is for the Committee to determine that “McKinley Enginecring” is a family
name. Therefore - and for the other reasons in fact, law, and policy set forth in the instant rasponse
letter and in the September 14, 2012, fetter to the Committee from the undersigned counsel for Rep.
McKinley ~ the Committee should reconsider its guidance on this point and determine that
“McKinley & Associates” itself is a “family name.”
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MOU represented a satisfactory good faith effort to resolve the matter by
complying with this second option. Rep. McKinley also believed that by the terms
of the MOU - through which, as of April 11, 2011, he had given control over the
ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates to the ESOP ~ he no longer
had the power or authority to direct or control a change in the name of McKinley &
Associates. Further, Rep. McKinley considered that, through his brief conversation
with Chairman Bonner on the House floor soon after receiving the Committee’s
letter dated June 24, 2011 — in which he told the Chairman that he had sold the
company — he had effectively notified the Committee about the action he had
taken.

Nonetheless, Rep. McKinley regrets not having responded to the Committee’s
letter more formally at that time. Rep. McKinley was concerned and upset at the
way the Committee had treated him. As described above, Rep. McKinley’s
concerns with the Committee’s process in this matter included: being asked by
Committee counsel why, if he had to sell McKinley & Associates, he could not just
start another company when he left Congress; being advised by Committee counse!
in January that the company would not have to change its name, hearing nothing
from the Committee for two months, and, then being advised by a different
Committee counsel that the company would have to change its name; hearing
nothing from the Committee on this for more than another two months; having to
wait a total of almost six months for a written response to his January 3, 2011,
written request for formal written guidance on a matter of great personal and
financial importance to him and to the management and employees of McKinley &
Associates; learning that the Committee, in determining 2 “family name?” for the
business, relied upon a name for his father’s business that did not exist and that, in
any case, did not convey the actual business of McKinley & Associates. These arc
serious concerns that should not be minimized. However, Rep. McKinley believes
that he may have allowed these concerns about the Committee’s handling of this
matter to affect his responsiveness to the Committee and, if he did, he regrets
having done so; he believes he should have responded in a more formal manner to
the Committee’s letter dated June 24, 2011.

Documents indicate that, in late August 2011, Rep. McKinley had preliminary
discussions with attorney Stefan Passantine in connection with this matter. Rep.
MeKinley did not sign an engagement letter with Mr. Passantino, but the
Congressman considers these discussions to be covered by attorney-client
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privilege. Documents related to these discussions have been entered on the
privilege log accompanying these responses at Exhibit A,

On October 11, 2011, Congressman and Mrs. McKinley had dinner with former
Congressman Tom Reynolds and his associate Sally. It appears that “ethics
matters” were discussed at the dinner, including discussion relating to what the
Congressman, in an email to Mr, Reynolds the next day, refers to as his “*fifth’
child,” i.e., McKinley & Associates. (Bates Number DMB00000252.) On October
13,2011, Mr. Reynolds responded by email to Rep. McKinley, saying that he had
spoken with an attorney and asking the Congressman to call him. Mr. Reynolds
followed wp with Rep. McKinley again by email on November 4, 2011, on their
“previous discussion about your business ownership and the house ethics
committee”; in this same email Mr. Reynolds forward the contact information for
attorney Rob Kelner. (Bates Number DMB00000257.) It appears that Rep.
McKinley did not follow up on this recommendation.

Sometime in the late fall of 2011, Rep. McKinley, pethaps because of discussions
with Emie Dellatorre or others at McKinley & Associates, turned his attention to
consummating the sale of his remaining shares in McKinley & Associates to the
ESOP, as contemplated by the MOU he signed and entered into on April 11, 2011,
There are a substantial number of documents related to this transaction, included
with these responses at Bates Numbers DMB00000260-458. Rep. McKinley also
bad a number of discussions with individuals, including attorneys Ben Sanders and
Charles Kaiser, persons at McKinley & Associates, and possibly others, about this
transaction. An email from Mr. Sanders, distributed on December 31, 2011, to
Ernie Dellatorre, Gregg Dorfner, and Tim Mizer at McKinley & Associates,
discussed the transaction, its timing, and its effect. (Bates Number
DMB00000369-70.) In this email, also sent to Rep. McKinley, Mr. Sanders
explained that, “[blecause of the press of other business, particularly David’s duties
as a newly elected member of the House of Representatives, a closing of that sale
[committed to through the MOU] has not occurred.” Mr. Sanders noted that,
“although the [MOU] in [Rep. McKinley’s] mind means for all intents and
purposes he no longer has an ownership interest in the Company, the [MOU] is
apparently insufficient evidence of that fact from the point of view of House ethics
rules.” Mr. Sanders further noted that, as of that date — i.e., December 31, 2011 —
“requirements imposed on the ESOP by ERISA” made it impossible to finalize the
transaction with the ESOP by the end 0f 2011. Therefore, because Rep. McKinley
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wanted “to start 2012 without an ownership interest in the company,” as of
December 31, 2011, the corporation McKinley & Associates redeemed all of Rep.
McKinley’s remaining shares in the company “on the condition that the Company
[would] assume [Rep. McKinley’s obligation under the [MOU] to sell the shares to
the ESOP as soon in 2012 as time {would] permit.” So, as of December 31, 2011,
the transfer of all of Rep. McKinley’s remaining shares in McKinley & Associates,
committed to in good faith in the April 2011 MOU, was finalized, albeit
temporarily to the company rather than the ESOP. The company’s sale of the
shares to the ESOP was completed on April 22, 2012.

Because he reasonably believed that none were necessary, Rep, McKinley took no
further steps in connection with this matter until he received the Committee’s letier
to him of August 24, 2012, In connection with that letter, Rep. McKinley had
some preliminary contacts with Mr. Kaiser, but shortly after receiving the letter
Rep. McKinley retained undersigned counsel. As previously noted, Rep.
McKinley’s communication with undersigned counsel in connection with that letter
and with the Committee’s letter of March 18, 2013, are covered by attorney-client
privilege and are not separately noted or entered on the privilege log. Further, any
communications by Rep. McKinley with others and any communication by others
in connection with compliance with the Committee’s request for documents and
information as set forth in its March 18, 2013, letter are covered by attorney-client
privilege and/or work product protection and are also not separately noted or
entered on the privilege log.

Response to Committee Reguest 2

Commitiee Request 2 requests information and documents concerning the
association of Johnson B. McKinley, Rep. McKinley’s father, with McKinley &
Associates.

Rep. McKinley believes that, to the extent that his father was paid by his firm, it
was as a consultant. Johnson B. McKinley was not a paid employee, officer,
director, owner, or contractor in connection with McKinley & Associates. With
respect to Johnson B. McKinley’s role as consultant to McKinley & Associates, or
its predecessor firm McKinley Engineering Company,’ Rep. McKinley provides

3 As discussed above, although in its June L1, 2011, letter to Rep. McKinley the Committee

required a change of the name of the company McKinley & Associates “to the name of your father’s
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two documents from September 1981 responsive to the Committee’s request. The
first is 2 September 1981 report on “Structural Steel Evaluation” undertaken by
McKinley Engineering Company for Koppers Company, Inc. in Follansbee, West
Virginia. (Bates Numbers DMB00000539-53.) As clearly stated at the beginning
of the document, the report sets forth the results of the work of “J.B. McKinley,
Engineer, Wheeling, West Virginia, at the request of Thurman Wilson, Koppers
Co.” “].B. McKinley, Engineer” was Rep. McKinley’s father. Similarly, a
September 15, 1981, letter (Bates Number DMB00000554) from McKinley
Engineering Company to the Mayor of Martins Ferry, Ohio, states: “A site
inspection . . . was made by J.B. McKinley, Engineer, to determine the stability of
an alley, sewer repairs, and construction methods.”

At Bates Number DMB00000521, the Committee will find a narrative drafted by
Rep. McKinley relating to his father and his professional association with his
father. Rep. McKinley drafted this narrative after receiving the Committes’s letter
of August 24, 2012. Mary McKinley’s comments on this draft narrative may be
seen in an email from her to Rep. McKinley at Bates Numbers DMB00000460-61.

Apart from the information described above or provided in Rep. McKinley's
September 14, 2012, letter to the Committee, Rep. McKinley does not have any
other information or documents responsive to Committee Request 2. McKinley &
Associates may have additional information or documents responsive to this
request, but Rep. McKinley does not know if they do or, if so, what information or
documents they may have.

(Continued . . .)

original business, McKinley Engineering,” to the best of his knowledge his father never used or
operated under the name McKinley Engineering and he does not know where the Committee got
this information or why it came to this conclusion. Research done by McKinley & Associates
employee David Carenbauer in connection with the Committes’s August 24, 2012, letter to Rep.
MeKinley listed a number of names used by Johnson B, MeKinley between 1934 and 1992 for his
business, but McKinley Engineering is not one of these names. (Bates Number DMBO00000324.) A
piece of letterhead from Jobnson B. McKinley from 1985 shows his use of the business name
“Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting Engineer.” (Bates Number DMB00000526.) Minutes of the
regular meeting of the Council of Beech Bottom, West Virginia, for November 4, 1936 ~ available
online in PDF form at htp://beechbottomwy.org/pdfs/1936.pdf, at page 257 ~ refer to a “Joknson B.
MeKinley Engingering.” ’
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Rep. McKinley believes that, with respect to understanding and appreciating his
father’s connection with McKinley Engineering and McKinley & Associates, it is
important for the Commiites to focus on more than just pay records, financial
transactions, or contracts alone. First, if some of the records sought by the
Committee existed at one time, these records may have been created as much as 30
years ago, or more; for the Committee to base any determination on the absence of
such records under these circumstances would be unsound. Second, Johnson B.
McKinley’s interest and activities in assisting his son’s business did not depend on
compensation, so to focus exclusively on records of financial compensation in this
context is to focus too narrowly. Johnson B. McKinley was Rep. McKinley’s
father. There were family ties at work. Therefore, it is important for the
Comumittee in this regard to review carefully the information on Johnson B.
McKinley and his association with Rep. McKinley’s business that is set out at
pages 3 and 4 of Rep. McKinley's September 14, 2012, letter. (Bates Numbers
DMB00000527-38.)

Respopse to Cqmmittee Request 3

Committee Request 3 asks for information and documents in connection with
McKinley & Associates’ contracts with or practices before the federal government.

As to any such current contracts, to Rep. McKinley’s understanding the company
still has an “open-ended” contract with the U.S. Postal Service, under which the
company may do work upon request. Rep. McKinley does not know specifics as to
the current status of this contract or as to the work, if any, currently being done by
McKinley & Associates in connection with the contract. With respect to such
specifics as the Committee is requesting in Request 3 on any current or previous
contracts with the federal government, Rep. MeKinley believes that such
information is within the custody and control of McKinley & Associates; thercfore,
Rep. McKinley respectfully advises that the company would be the source of such
information for the Committee,

Although not strictly responsive to this request, an additional point should be mads
here with respect to use of the name “McKinley & Associates” by Rep.
McKinley’s former firm. Under relevant procurement codes and regulations, and
under other standards applicable to architects and engineers, no matter what name
the Committee may determine that McKinley & Associates should operate under,
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when the company bids for work with a government client that government client
will necessarily see abundant documentation (relating to past projects by and
qualifications of the firm) that the firm is the former “McKinley & Associates.” In
this way, short of closing down the company there appears to be no way to keep

. use of the “McKinley & Associates” name out of the government contracting

© process.

Responses to Committee Requests 5,6,7, and 8

Through the discussion and responses in this letter, and through the documents
accompanying this letter, Rep. McKinley has attempted to comply with Commitiee
Request 5 and 6 with respect to providing documents and, as solicited by the
Committee in Request 8, has provided other information and documents that he
hopes will assist the Committee,

With respect to Committee Request 7, regarding efforts taken to identify
documents responsive to the Committee’s request, reasonable and appropriate steps
were taken identify such documents, including:

+ Identifying and collecting hard copy documents in Rep. McKinley’s
possession.

« Distributing a document preservation and identification notice to official
and campaign staff and collecting identified materials.

= Copying and searching Rep. McKinley’s House email account. (Rep.
McKinley understands, however, that the House has a 14 day retention
policy for email.)

* Imaging and searching the bard drives of Rep. McKinley House desktop
and laptop computers. (It appears that Rep. McKinley saved items locally
and did not save items to the House network.)

» Imaging and searching text messages from Rep. McKinley’s iPhoae.

¢ Imaging and searching Mary McKinley’s AOL email account.
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» Imaging and searching the computer used by Rep. McKinley in his non-
official office at the Maxwell Center in Wheeling, West Virginia.

Although he is not able to identify specific items, Rep. McKinley believes there are
likely to be documents responsive to the Committee’s requests in the possession,

custody, and control of McKinley & Associates and/or individual personnel at the
company.

If the Commiftee has any questions about the responses or documents provided
with this letter by Rep. McKinley, or wishes to discuss any aspect of this matter,
please do not hesitate to contact Jan Witold Baran, at 202.719 Jg or Robert L.
Walker, 26 202.719 .

Sincerely,

£ A A

Jan Witold Baran
Counse] for Rep. David BL McKinley

1]
Robert L. Walker

Counsel for Rep. David B. McKinley

Attachments

cc: The Honorable David B. McKinley
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From: Andy sere [JJJlJ@NRCCorg>

Sent: Wednesday, November 10, 2010 627 PM
To: amecintey NN
Subject: one person's opinion

David:

For what it's worth, below are the thoughts of a GOP fawyer who used to work on the ethics committee, to whom |
previously referred.

Andy

1. “Consulting firms” foll under the prohibition ageinst receiving compensation for fiduciary professions {p. 216 of the
House Ethics Manual), however, it does not explicitly list engineering—lists legal, real estate, consulting ond advising,
insurance, medicine, architecture or finoncicl. A conservative reading of this rule would be thot engineering
consulting counts, and thus he con't continue receiving income from the firm while in the House.

2. Asimentioned on the phone, Mr. McKinley, if he doesn’t want to worry about changing the name of his firm, should
probably think about who he plans to divest his interest to. If it happens to be a fomifial relative with the same
name, he would most fikely not have to change the name of the whole firm. If itis to a different individual, it likely
would not be oble to stay with his name on it.

Andy Seré

Regianal Press Secretary

National Republican Congressional Committee
(202) 479l ofc

(713} 30c) M - ce!t

e
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STITES & HARBISONGu.c

ATTORNEYS DFCE!VED daret Syan
WIHAY -6 AMID: 32
CORMITT R OMETAICE

May 1,2013

George B. Sanders, Jr
(302) 681 JlR
Christopher Tate (502} 779-8299 Fax

. @stites com
U.S. House of Representatives

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, D.C. 20513-6328

RE:  MeKinley & Associates, Inc.

Dear Mr. Tate:

[ represent McKinley & Associates, Inc. Pursuant to our previous correspondence regarding the
Commitiee on Ethics’ letter of March 18, 2013 addressed to Timothy E. Mizer of McKinley &
Associates, Inc., I am forwarding to your attention the documents and other information
requested in the Committee’s letter.

In identifying and producing the information responsive to the Committee’s letter, the Company
has made a search of the correspondence and email files of the Company’s management, the
global daily correspondence file maintained by the Company for the period from November 1,
2010 through the present, and any project files relevant to the matters raised in the letter.
Documents and material resulting from the Company’s search that fall within the Committee’s
request have been scanned onto the enclosed compact disc labeled “McKinley & Associates, Inc.
Response to U. S. House of Representatives Committes on Ethics Letter of March 18, 2013 and
numbered MCK 000001 through MCK 000117.

Documents MCK 000001 through MCK 000079 are in response to the numbered paragraph #1
of the Committee’s letter of March 18,2013, The Firm (as defined in the Committee’s letter)
has used its corporate name “McKinley & Associates, Inc.” since its inception in 1989, and has
use that name consistently, without change, from 1989 to the present. That name usage has not
been the subject of conversations or communications with Representative David B. McKinley.
Rather, conversations or communications between the Firm and Representative McKinley
regarding the name of the Firm have been limited to the status of discussions between the
Committee and Representative McKinley as to the extent to which the Committee would require
him, as majority owner of the Firm, to cause the Firm to change its corporate name. Document
MCK000079 is an email from Ernest Dellatorre to the undersigned in which he describes, at my
request and specifically for transmittal to the Committee, any unwritten communications with
Representative McKinley regarding the matters described in paragraph #1 of the Committee’s
fetter. As such, it is not to be construed as a waiver of any attorney client privilege of the Firm
regarding its communications with the undersigned as its attorney. .

MU 2:060MC 927641901 LOUISVILLE

RETRIT P A



78

STITES&HARBISON:uc

ATTORRAETYS

Christopher Tate
May 1,2013
Page 2

Documents MCK000084, MCK 000085, and MCKO000088 through MCK 000117 arein
response to paragraph #2 of the Comumittee’s letter of March 18, 2013, I believe that the history
of Johnson B. McKinley’s business as a professional engineer and predecessor to McKinley &
Associates is described in previous correspondence to the Committee from my predecessor,
Charles Kaiser. The Firm is not in pessession or control of the records of Johnson B. McKinley.
The present McKinley & Associates is the natural continuation in the corporate form {and with
expanded personnel) of the engineering business started by Johnson B. McKinley in 1954,

With respect to paragraph #3 of the Committee’s letter, the Firm maintains a contract with
United States Postal Service, a relationship that began more than 20 years ago, which is the only
contract the Firm has with an agency of the federal government. Document MCK000080 lists
the projects in which the Firm has recently been engaged by USPS between 2009 and the
present, and shows a decline in that business over that period.

With respect to paragraph #4 of the Committee’s letter, document MCKO000081 contains a list of
projects in which the Firm has been engaged since Representative McKinley’s election to
Congress in 2010, The Firm has engaged in each of these projects under its historic corporate
name of McKinley & Associates without any change as a result of Representative McKinley’s
election in 2010. Document MCKO00080 displays the revenues enjoyed by the Firm for a
period that bridges Representative McKinley’s election to Congress, which revenues have
declined in each of the years following his election. Document # also contains information
relevant to the importance of the Firm’s historic corporate name and good will to the Firm’s
future and the future of its employee owners.

Beginning in 2008, the McKinley & Associates, Inc. Employee Stock Ownership Plan and Trust
(the “ESOP”) purchased 30% of the outstanding capital stock of the Firm, beginning a process
that was intended to eventually result in the employees of the Firm owning 100% of the Firm. In
December of 2011, acting on behalf of the ESOP, the corporation redeemed the balance of the
capital stock ewned by Representative McKinley and sold the shares to ESOP. Asa
consequence, the ESOP is now the 100% owner of the Company.

The Company is anxious to cooperate with the Committes in every way possible in proving any
and all information required by the Committee. Please let me know at your convenience if you
need additional information. The material submitted in response to the Committee’s request
contains confidential and proprietary information regarding the Company, its business, clients,
customers, contracts and other confidential business information. The Company requests that to
the maximum extent permissible, this information not be disclosed to the public or to
competitors of the Company and be maintained by the Committee as confidential.

MCZIZO0OMC927649:1 LOUISYILLE



79

STITES&HARBISON uc

ATTOIREYS

Christopher Tate
May 1, 2013

Page 3
=

Thank you very much for your attention to this matter, and [ look forward to hearing from you if
you need additional information.

Very truly yours,

GBS:mem
Enclosure

MCUZLOCMC927849 LLOUISVILLE
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From: Kaiser, Charles ). il @pgkacom>
Sent: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 5:04 PM
To: David B McKintey

Subject: RE: Company name change...

David: t will be out of town on Friday, but | think that it might be a good idea to pick a time early next week-to talk about
the options. There are no prohibitions In West Virginia to continuing to use the name McKinley & Associates even
though you are not an owner or an officer or director. You will have to notify both the Board of Architecture and the PE
Board who the “Supervising Architect” and the “Supervising Professional Engineer” is with respect to the company once
that is decided. You will not be able to stay on the Board or be an officer, but you can be paid the value of the stockif it
is sold to the ESOP {i.e. you can be paid for your capital interest) or for income that you are entitled to receive as a result
of completed work. Caution will be required with respect to how this is calculated. The question as to the change of
name boils down to wheather McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm "providing professional services invelving
a fiduciary relationship”. An example of this definition in the Rules is a company providing architectural services, but we
can certainly ask for a ruling and argue that it does not apply to you because you are not an architect. i the ruling
comes back favorable, you can keep your interest in the company, but not work or receive earned income from it If
McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm providing professional services involving a fiduciary relationship, then it
appears that you are left with two choices: {1} change the name, or {2} completely divest yourself of your interestin the
company {this appears to include Mary as well). Please understand that your situation is different than family
businesses that do not provide professional services {i.e. car dealerships), though | think the logic got lost when this
Rulefiaw was being formulatad. in addition, itis important for you to understand that this is not simply a House Rule,
but a federa! statute. Let me know the best time to talk Monday {or Sunday if that works better). Have a Happy
Thansgiving. CIX

From: David B McKinley [mailto:JIJIII @ mckinleyassoc.com)
Sent: Tuesday, November 23, 2010 3:50 PM

To: Kaiser, Charles J.

Subject: FW: Company name change...

More thoughts.

Fromy: Andy Sere ma'!;o;'@NRCg:.grg]
Sent: Tuesday, November 09, 2010 5:53 PM
To: dimckind

Subject: RE: Company name change...

David:

Just a quick update.

Rep. Vern Buchanan's {R-Fla.) 2006 campaign manager gave me the contact info for John Tosch,
Buchanan's corporate attorney who handled all Vern's transition stuff. Will be interesting to

ses what he has to say when he gets back to me, since they obviously found some way around
this {Buchanan‘s car dealerships are still called “Buchanan Automotive").

Also talked to Todd ungerecht, who used to work for the Ethics Committee and now works for
Rep. Doc Hastings (R-Wash.) on the Natural Resources Committea. He told me that there may be
ways eround this (one guestion he had was, to whom do you plan to divest the business -~ is

EXHIBIT
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David H involved?), and he’'s going to take a look at the situation and provide some thoughts
soon.

At the end of the day this will obviously be handled by attorneys, but until they get
involved 1'11 keep trying to find out more background and will keep you posted.

Andy

Andy Seré

Regional Press Secretary

National Republican Congressional Committee
(282) 478 - ofc

{713) 886 - ¢ell

asere@nrcc.org

----- Original Message-----

From: Andy Sere

Sent: Tuesday, November 09, 2818 16:28 AM
To: ‘dmckinley@

Subject: Company name change...

David:

Tim mentioned to me this issue you're having with a lawyer’s opinion on your company’s name
in light of your election to Congress.

Have there been any further developments on this?
I am going to make a few calls this afternoon to see what I can find out about how this issue
has been handled in the past with other members in similar situations. Will let you know if I

learn anything.

Andy
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From: Xaiser, Charles J. JJJ-@pgkacom>
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 10:46 AM
To: asere

Ce: David 8 McKinley

Subject: McKinley & Associates

Andy: It was nice to talk to you on the phone. As| explained we should get an understanding of how David wants to
proceed with respect to McKinley & Associates, Inc. under West Virginia state law and the House Ethics Rules and then
move to solve the Pennsylvaniaissues. There are no prohibitions under West Virginia law to continuing to use the name
McKinfey & Assodiates, Inc., even though David is no longer a stockholder or director or officer. David would have to
notify both the WV Board of Architecture and the WV PE Board the names of the new "Supervising Architect” and
“Supervising Professional Engineer” with respect to the company. David cannot remain a board member or officer of
the company under the House Ethics Rules, but if he terminates his capital interest in the company, he can be paid the
valug of his stock if it is sold to the ESOP or the value based upon work completed in the past. The guestion regarding
the change of name under the House Ethics Rules boils down to whether McKinley & Associates is considered to be a
“firm providing professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.” An exampte of this definition in the Rulesis a
company providing architectural services, but it could be argued that DBMcK is not an architect so it does not apply to
him even though McKinfey & Associates provides both architectural and engineering services. If McKinley & Associatas
is considered to be a firm providing professionat services involving a fiduciary relationship, it appears that there are two
choices: (1) change the name; or {2} completely divest DBMcK's interest in the company {this appears to include David’s
wife as well}. Becausa of the professional nature of the firm, itis treated differently than other companies like auto
dealerships. Moreover, there is 3 federal statute as well as the House Ethics Rufes to contend with. Let me know how
you would like to proceed.

Charles 1. Kaiser, Ir., Esq.

PHILLIPS, GARDILL, KAISER & ALTMEYER PLLC,
61 Fourteenth Street

Wheeling, WV 256003

T:{304) 232 {8

£:{304) 232-4918

e-mail: JG0ska.com

No virus found in this message.
Checked by AVG - www.avg.com
Version: 10.0.1170/ Virus Database: 426/3287 - Release Date: 11/29/10
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From: Kaiser, Charles ). JJjfF@pgkecom>
Sent: Tuesday, December 07, 2010 10:25 AM

To: David 8 McKinley

Ca Andy Sere; JJll@mckinteyassoc.com
Subject: House Standards Response

Greetings: | heard back from Kelle Strickiand last night regarding the "professions that provide services involving a
fiduciary relationship” issue. Kelle is legat counsel to Rep. Jo Banner, the Ranking Member of the House Ethics panel,
and she consulted with Carol Dixon, who is Staff Director to the current Chair Rep. Zoe Lofgren. They are both of the
epinion that while McKinley & Associates, Inc. is providing professional services involving a fiduciary relationship that
the company may be able to avoid changing the name under the “family name exception” based upon the similar name
of Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting Engineer. She suggested that we requast written advice from the Committee and
iodge this letter prior to David being sworn in on January 5, 2011. Because the Committee will have a number of similar
written advice requests from new Members, it may well take some time to work through all of the opinions and the
name can remain the same until the opinion is rendered. Because the "family narme exception” does not eliminate the
other two prohibitions {i.e. compensation and management affiliation), | befiave that David will have to deal with the
management structure and ownership of McKintey & Associates, Inc. in any event. This will have to be accomplished
prior to January 5 and should be done in time so that we can explain the reorganization to the Committee in the letter
requesting the opinion on the name. In addition, because McKinley & Associates has current contracts with the federal
government, the House Ethics Manual requires a newly elacted Member to consuit with the contracting agency (see p.
202 of the House Ethics Manual). ftappears that so long as the Member is the owner of stock in a corporation that is
{255 than “substantially owned or controlied” that the corporation can continue to contract with the government
agency. Here again, however, | would advise that decisions be made concerning the ownership issue so that we can
advise the contracting agency specifically as to the ownership interests of Membec McKinley. | am available to discuss
this all day today, but 1 will not be available Wednesday or Thursday and only to a limited extent on Friday. Please let
me know when you would like to discuss further. CJK

:

PENGAD B00-631-6988
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From: tynn Adams Y@ mcinteyassac.com>
Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 6:13 PM

To: David B, McKinley

Ce: Tim Mizer

Subject: Management Meeting Agenda ltams

Tim and | put together this partial list for managemant meeting:

PN ol A o

8.

Energy Bill potential tax deductions for school projects

ESOP buyout

Need to settie with Jezerinac and Stafford on $38K and $21K, respectivaly
Certificate of Authority in WV in DBM name for consulting engineer

QA ~ Charlie’s future role

Patriot Services scope

Explanation of contract-review with Owners; all instructions to contractors must go through us; contractor

claims for time delays
Wage adjustments

Lynn € Adams

Office Manager

McKintey & Assaciates, Inc.

32 Twentieth Street, Suite 100
Wheeling, WV 26003

phone 304-233 4l

Fax 304-233-4513

No virus found in this message.
Checked by AVG - wwiw.ava.com
Version: 10.0.1170 / Virus Database: 426/3287 - Release Date: 11/29/10
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From: Kaiser, Charles J. <Jjf 2 pgka.com>
Sent: Waednesday, January 25, 2011 10:05 AM
To: David 8 McKinley

Ce: tynn Adams

Subject: House Committes on Standards

David: |received a call from Mr. Simpson whio is a stalf membear of the House Committee on Standards late yesterday
afternoon. He advised me that the staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Associates does not provide
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship. As you will recali this is the critical element that created the
difficulties under the House Ethics Manual. Mr. Simpson also agreed that McKinley & Associates qualified as a “family
business” and so the name would not need to be changed. He stated thatas a result of the first point, there is no need
for a blind trust to hold your stock in McKinley & Associates. There continues to be a strict prohibition on the part of
Congressman McKinley using his elected office to solicit or to direct business to McKinley & Associates. Thus, for
example, you could not specify earmarks or other fedecal funding for projects where McKintey & Asscciatas is the
project engineer and you could not contact any federal agencies on behalf of McKinley & Associates. However, you
could be compensated by McKinley & Associates up to the earned income fimits ($25,000 +/-} for employment with
McKintey & Associates. And there are no limits in your receipt of unearned income [i.e. dividends} from your stock
ownership of McKinley & Associates. Because of the conflict of interest rules {i.e. using a congressional office to solicit
personal business), Mr, Simpson and | befieve that it would still be advantageous for you to avoid service as an officer or
director of McKinley & Associates and to create a simple voting trust for your stock. In other words, the stock would still
be in your name but someone else will vote the stock. Because we do not have to follow the Blind Trust Rules, the
trustee of the voting trust can be family members or a combination of related parties {i.e. the trustees could be the
officers of McKinley & Associates and David H.). Give me a call when you can talk further about this so that | can get
back to My, Simpson and eliminate the Blind Trust. Best Regards,

Charles J. Kaiser, ., £sq.

PHILLIPS, GARDILL, KAISER & ALTMEYER, PLLC.
€1 Fourteenth Street

Whealing, WV 26003

T: 304-23 7000

fax: 304-232-4918 or 304.-232-6907

B ©oske.com

Iy L

CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message, together with any attachments is intendad only for the addressee and may contain
information which is legally privileged, confidential and exempt from disclasure. If you are not the intended recipient, vou are
hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, use, or any action or reliance on this communication is strictly

prohibited. i you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone {304) 232-6810 or by return
e-mail and delete the message along with any attachments.

(RS CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that any U.S. tax advice
contained in this communication {or in any attachment] is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose
of {i} avoiding penalties under the IRS Code or {ii} promoting, marketing or recommeanding to another party any transaction or
matter addressed in this communication {or in any attachment}.
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Frony: David B Mcintey <y @mckinleyassoc.com>
Sant: Saturday, Aprit 02, 2011 3:15 PM

To: ‘Kaiser, Charles ).

Cax “WV0IMcKinleyDavid

Subject: RE: House Committes on Standards

Lynn has informad me that a different determination may be being considered. Consequently { have already spoken
with Congressman Jo Bonner on Friday, He recommended that 1 get back to him next week because his staff was
already gone for the day. He claimed he remembered some of our previous discussions but showed no awareness of an
earlier recommendation by his staff. Nevertheless buthe was not particularly pleased that another decision may be
forthcoming and one thatreversing an earlier and more encouraging solution. Please remember that McKinley and
Associates is in many respects the successor company to Johnson B. McKinley, We have all of his drawings, files,
correspondence and furniture,

From: Kaiser, Charles J. [maiito S @oaka.com]
Sent: Wednesday, January 26, 2011 10:05 AM

To: David B McKinley

Cc: Lynn Adams

Subject: House Committee on Standards

David: | received a call from Mr. Simpson who is a staff member of the House Committee on Standards late yesterday
afternoon. He advised me that the staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Assaciates does not provide
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship. As you will recall this is the critical element that created the
difficulties under the House Ethics Manual. Mr. Simpson also agreed that McKinfey & Associates qualified as a "family
business” and so the name would not need to be changed. He stated that as a resuft of the first point, there is no need
for a blind trust to hold your stock in McKinley & Associates. There continues to be a strict prohibition on the part of
Congressman McKinley using his elected office to solicit or to direct business to McKinley & Associates. Thus, for
exampla, you could not specify earmarks or other federal funding for projects where McKinley & Associates is the
project engineer and you could not contact any federal agencies on behalf of McKinley & Associates. However, you
could be compensated by McKinley & Associates up to the earned income limits {$25,000 +/-) for employment with
McKinley & Associates. And there are no limits in your receipt of unearned income (i.e. dividends} from your steck
ownership of McKinley & Associates. Because of the conflict of interest rules {i.e. using a congressional office to solicit
personal business), Mr. Simpson and | believe that it would still be advantageous for you to avoid service as an officer or
director of McKinley & Associates and to create a simple voting trust for your stock. In other words, the stock would still
be in your name but someone else will vote the stock. Because we do not have to follow the Blind Trust Rules, the
trustea of the voting trust can be family members or a combination of related parties {i.e. the trustees could be the
officers of McKinlay & Associates and David H.). Give me a call when you can talk further about this so that | can get
back to Mr. Simpson and eliminate the Blind Trust. Best Regards.

Charles 1 Kaiser, Ir., Esq.

PHILLIPS, GARDILL, KAISER & ALTMEYER, PLLC.
61 Fourteenth Street

Wheeling, WV 26003

T: 304-23

Fax: 304-232-4918 or 304-232-6907

cikaiser@pgka.com

PENGAD 000-531-4689
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This messaga, together with any attachments is intended only for the addressae and may contain
information which is legally privileged, canfidential and exempt from disclosure. i you are not the intended recipient, you ars
hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, use, or any action or refiance on this communication Is strictly

prohibited. if you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone {304) 232-6810 or by return
e-mail and delete the message along with any attachments.

135 CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that any U.S, tax advice
contained in this communication {or in any attachment) is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose
of (i) aveiding penalties under the IRS Code or {§i) prometing, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or
matter addressed in thisc vication {or in any attachment).
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McKINLEY & ASSOCIATES

ARCHITESTS » ENGINEERS « INTERIDR DESIGN

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

To: David MeKinley

From: Ernest Dellatorre, ESOP Trustee

Subject: ESOP Purchase of Remaining McKinley & Associates Shares
Date: April 11,2011

As a result of your resignation as President of MeKinley & Associates and our
conversation last week regarding the potential for a perceived conflict with your
ownership of the company during your term in Congress, this letter will serve as our
Memorandum of Understanding that the ESOP will purchase your remaining shares in
McKinley & Associates. Once the share value is determined and the transferring
document is approved, your remaining shares will be purchased by the ESOP. Payment
for the shares will be similar to the funding you provided for the purchase of the original
ESOP Shares.

Details on the stock valuation, the financing for the ESOP purchase, and the final
transaction date will be detailed in a subsequent document to be developed by counsel for
both of our signatures.

It is our mutual understanding that by agreeing to this Memorandum of Understanding
that you will have no further control over the ownership and operations of McKinley &
Associates, Ine.

By signing below, both parties agree to the above terms.

sl A

Davidt B. McKinley, PE (E)ést Dellatorre, ESOP Trustee

T EESIER R
Date Date

The Maxveeh Contre - Suite 110/ Thirey-Twe Buentizth Steeet / Wheeling, WY 28003
Phone 04-233-0140 / Fax 304-233-4613 / £-Mal corgocate@mckinleyassos.cem

Maintain as Confidential
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Fram: Kaiser, Charles J. <JJJ®roka.com>

Sent: Thursday, April 14, 2011 451 PM

To: wyoLvckinleyDavid ¢ NN

e David B McKinley; Lynn Adams

Subject: Rasponse to Ms. Heather Jones

Attachments: McKinley House Ethics Jones Copy (PO083245).PDF

David: Attached is a copy of my letter setting forth the rationate of why McKinley & Associates should not be treated
tike a law firm, 12lso added the paragraph at the end reiterating the relationship between the Johnson McKintey
engineering practice and the present-day McKinley & Associates. | hope this will satisfy them. Regards.

Charles ). Kaiser, Jr., Esq.

PHILLIPS, GARDILL, KAISER & ALTMEYER, PLLC,
61 Fourteenth Street

Whealing, WV 26003

T: 304-232 8

Fax: 304-232-4918 or 304-232-6907

BN 2oz com
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message, together with any attachments is intandad only for the addressee and may contain
information which is legally privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, use, or any action or refiance on this communication is strictly

prohibited. If you have received this e-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by telaphone {304} 232-6810 or by return

e-mail and delete the massage along with any attachments.

1RS CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that any U.S. tax advice
contained in this communication (or in any attachment) is not intended or written {o be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose
of (i} avaiding penalties under the IRS Code or {§i) pramating, marketing or recommending to anather party any transaction or
matter addressed in this communication {or in any attachment),
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PHILLIPS, GARDILL, KAISER & ALTMEYER, RLLC @! ) l,(

LAWYERS
JAMES T GARDILL 61 FOURTEENTH STREET JOHN B PHILLIPS
CHARLES 4. RAISER, JR. . 0906-20000
. BRANN ALTMEYER = WHESLING, WEST VIRGINIA 26003
WILLIAM A, KOLIBASH OF counsEL
£DWARD M. GEQRGE, ROBERT 4 SAMOL »oe
DENIGE KNOUSE-SNYOES Aell 14 &
100D M. KILBCW = f\Pn‘ 14,2011 TELEPHONT
RITHARD N, BEAVER 300 202- gl
I CHRISTOPHER GARDILL
ROBERT O, PLUMAY * Fax
ANDREW R. THALMAN=2= €304y 232v4313

" ALSD ADMITTED 1 OHIO
ADMITTED WV PA AND OH
ar ALSO ADMITTED IN PENNSYLYANIA

Heather Jones, Esq., Counsel
Committee on Ethics

U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
10135 Longworth House Office Bldg,
Washington, DC 20515

Via E-Mail

RE: McKINLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Grreetings:

Thank you for your e-mail of April 13, 2011, Thave delayed i responding to check
facts cited in this fetter. As you are aware [ represent McKinley & Associates, Inc. which isa
West Virginia corporation that engages in the businesses of professional engineering and
architecture through its employed professionals who hold licenses to practice professional
engingering and tecture in & number of states including West Vi

nia.

Article 13 of Chapter 30 of the West Virginia Code sets forth the requirements for
engineers 1o be licensed in the state. West Virginia Code §30-13-3 defines a number of terms
that apply to the entire Article. Among those definitions are: Engincer, Professional Engineer,
Consulting Engineer, and Practice of Engineering. However, only the definition of a
“Consuiting Engincer” carries with it the responsibilities of @ fiduciary. The definition of 2
“Consulting Engineer” under the Code is:

{b) “Consulting engineer” means a professional engineer whose principal
occupation is the independent practice of enginesting; whosz livelihood is
obtaired by offering engincering services to the public; who serves clients as an
independent fiduciary; who is devoid of public, commercial, and product
affitiation that might tend to infer a conflict of interest; and who is cognizant of
their public and legal responsibilities and is capable of discharging them.
(emphasis added).

Under the same ¢ode section a “Professional Engincer” is defined as:

(f} “Professional engineer™ means a person who has besn duly registered or
licensed as a professional engineer by the board. The board may designate a
professional engineer, on the basis of education, experience and examination, as

Maintain as Confidential
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Heather Jones, Esq.. Counsel
Apdl 14,2011
Page 2

being licensed ina specific discipling or branch of engineering signifying the area
in which the engineer has demonstraled competence.

Throughout his career Congressman David B, MeKinley, P.E. has held himself out and been
Heensed in the State of West Virginie as a professional engineer, not 2 consuliing engineer.

The West Virginia Code of State Regulations leaves no doubt as to where the primary
respousibilities of a Heensed professional engineer lies. WV 7CSR1 §12.3 sets forth the
Registrant's Obligation to Society and states in subparagraph {8): “Registrants, in the
performance of their services for clients, employers, and customers, shall be cognizant that ¢
first and foremost responsibitity is 1o the public welfere” (emphasis added). Thus unlike a
lasvyer whose primary responsibility is o her client, 2 registered professional enginesr’s primary
responsibility is to the public welfare,

The provisions of the West Virginia Code that apply 1o architects do state that all
architects must meet the definision of “good moral character™ in order to be leensed. The

definition of “good moral character” wnder West Virginia Code §30-12-2(4) states:

(#) “Geood moral character” means such character as will enable a porson to
discharge the Gduciary duties of an archiieet to bis client and 1o the public for the
protection of heakh, safety and welfare. Evidence of inability to discharge such
duties include the commission of an offense justifying diseipline under section
cight of this article.

Thus, even though the definition docs state that an architect owes {iduciary duties to his client, an
architect also owes gqual fiduciary duties to the public for the protection of health, safety and
welfare. The Rules of Professional Conduet for Architects sel forh in the West Virginia Code of
State Regulations (WV ZCSR1 §9.3.3) also provides clarity that the public interest is paramonnt
by providing:

9.3.3. fin the course of his or her work on a project, a registered architeet
bacomes aware of a decision made by his or ber employer or client, against his or
her advice, which violates applicable state or municipal building taws and rules or
ordinances which will, in the registered architect’s judgment, materially and
adversely affect the safery 1o the public of the finishad project, the registered
architect shall:

9.3.3.a. Report the decision to the local building inspector or other
public official charged with the enforcement of the applicable state or

musticipal building laws and rules or ordinances.

9.3.3.b. Refuss to consent to the decisinn; and

A 1

faintain as Confidential
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Heather Jones, Esq., Counscl
April 14,2011

Page 3

9.3.3.c. In circumstances where the registered architect reasonzbly
believes that other similar decisions will be made notwithstanding his or
her objections, terminate his or her services with respect to the project.
tfthe registered architect torminates his or her services he or she has no
liabilivy o his or hee clisnt or cplover on ascount of the termination.

femphasis added)y. Failure to follow the Rules of Professionat Conduet can be grounds for the
loss of the license to practice architecturs in the State of West Virginta, WV Code §30-12-8.
Congressman McKianley is not a loensed architect; rather McKinley & Associaes, Inc. has onits
staff lconsed architects that must comply with these rules.

West Virginia law requires that business firms that practice professional engineering and
architecture designate a Hicensed professional in each field whose responsibility it is to supervise
the professionals employed by the firm to assure that they are following the requirements of
West Virginia law and regulations in the performance of their dutfes. McKinley & Asseciases,
tnc. has designated senfor professionals in each area to perform that function. Neither of those
supervising professionals is Congressroan McKinley. {n fact, for the past several years
Congressman MeKinley's rofe with the comparny has not been in the practice of professional
engineering but in the management of the approximately 40 employees (licensed and unficensed;
that are employed by the firm.

In conclusion, West Virginia imposes fiduciary responsibilities only upon consuliing
engincers, not professional engineers. Morcover, the House Rules were intended 1o apply to
areas where a professional had fiduciary responsibilities to his or her client which could
necessarily conflict with the responsibilities of a Member of Congress. As has been shown, West
Virginia law states clearly that the fiduciery responsibility of a licensed professional engineer or
ticensed architect is to the public, not the client. Thus the dangers that the House Rules were
trying lo guard against do not apply in this particalar instance.

Before closing, [ wanted to reiterate the history of the professional engineering firm
within the McKinley family., McKinley & Associates, Inc. is the successor business o tha
independent practice of professional enginsering by Johnson B. McKinley, Congressman David
B. McKinley's father, who first opened his office in Wheeling in 1934, Father and son worked
together for two years; Congressman McKinley purchased his father’s office furniture, acquired
his drawings and files, and assumed his clients when his father retired as a professional engineer,
Thus it is hard for me to understand the distinction that you are apparently making between an
unincorparated family business to practice professional engineering and an incorporaled famity
business using the same family name. Though the present McKinley & Assosiates, Ine. business
is much larger than the single-engineer office that was started in 1954, McKinley & Assoeiat
[nc. is the nataral and direct successor and should be recognized as such. The change to
corporate form is no different than if a business changes from a partnership to a corporation 1o a
timited liability company; the business is the same. only the fegal form has changed.

2N

FOSHEL
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Heather Jones, Esq., Counset
Aprit 14, 2011

Page 4

In the event you would like copies of any of the code sections or state regulations cited
above, 1 will be happy to send them to you. IT you would like to discuss these matters further,
please do not hesiiate to contact me. Thank you for your cooperation,

CIKrsis
Ve . .
Lo Congressman David B. MeKinley
ECaH AN

thaintain as Confidential
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Kaiser, Charles J.

n Kalser, Charles J.
[t Thursday, Aprit 14, 2011 3:.04 PM
To: “Jones, Heather'
Subject: RE: Rep. McKinley
Attachments: teKinley House Ethics Jones (P0083243).POF

Graetings: The “brief” is in the form of a letter to you. f you would fike me to change the format or provide you with
copies of the coda and state regulations cited in the letter, please let me knowe. If you would fike to discuss this further,
please do not hasitate to contact me.

From: Jones, Heather [maiito:Heather Jones®&mall house.qov
Sent: Wednesday, April 13, 2011 2:16 PM

To: Kaiser, Charles J.

Subject: Rep. McKiniey

Mr. Kaiser-
f wanted to remind you that the Committee on Ethics is waiting on your brief regarding whether architects and
enginesrs are fiduciaries under West Virginia taw. You may send i to me by email at this address.

Regards,
Heather Jones

Heather Jones
Counse!
“emmittee on Ethics

3. House of Represental
.15 Longwerth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515
{202) 225-7103

Maintain as Confidential
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Heather Jones, Esq., Counse!
Commitiee on Ethics
U.S. HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
1013 Longworth H’\u& Office Bidg.
Washington, DC 2031

Vin E-Mail

RE:  MKINLEY & ASSOCIATES, INC.

Greetings
Thank you for vour e-mail of April 13 l‘, 24 {1, Thave delayed in responding to cheek the
fmcis cied in this ketisr. Ag you are aware [ represent MeKinl ey & Associates, Ing, whichis s
\»'":;f Virginia corperation that engages in the bh;ms;a of professional engineering and
cure U’LuL.gh itse m!u;uipro:em nals who hold licenses o pxa:: e professiona!
eering and architechure in a number of states including West V ia,

Article {3 of Chapter 30 of the West Virginia Code sets forth the vequirements for
engineers to be licensed in the state. West Virginia Code §30-13-3 defines a mumber of terms
that ap 5y to the enfire Aru\.!e. Among those dzfinitiens are: Engineer, Professiona! Enginser,

g Engineer, and Practice of Enginearing HQM\ er, only the definition of 2
"Cons iting Engineer” carries with it the responsitilives of 2 fiduciary, The definition of a

Enginesr” undar the Code is:

(&) “Censulting engineer” professional engineer whose principal
seeupation is the indeoerdent practice of enainecring; whose livelihood is
ooza'ncd by offering enginsering services to the public; whe serves clients
indey ~enduh fiduciary; who is deveid of public, commercial, and product
aFE!n.u n that might tend to infer a conflict of ;‘.te&s., and who is coygnizant of
their p;zbhc and fegal respensibitities and is capable of discharging them.
(emphasis added).

2

s

Under the same code section a “Professivnal Enginser” is defined 2

(f; “Professional engineer” means a person who has been du!y
lu.mssd ¢saprofu:s nal engi b‘, the board. The board ma
professiona! engineer, on the

bib of education, experience md examination, a5

(SR EY
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Heather Jones, Esg., Counsel
April 14,2011

Page 2

2 David B, MceXKinley,
ginia as a professional er

has held bimself out and been

cer, not & consult

The West Virginia Code of State Rs,cru.at'o'xs leaves no doubt as to where the primary
responsibilities cfalicens d professional engineer lies. WV 7CSR1 §12.3 sets forth the
RL;,.:trant Obligation to Society and sta tes in .,ut:"arag,r aph {a): “Registrants, in the

r,g,r crmance of their services for clients, employers, and eustomers, shall be cognizant that their
first and foremost responsibility is to the public welfura ™ (emphasis added). Thus unlikea

[

lawye ~\\hc»:<.p imary respoecsibility is to her client, 2 registersd professicnal enginear’s primary
rasponsibility is to the public welfare,

The provisions of the West Virginia Code that apply to architects do state that ali
b ‘C‘

architects must meet the definition of “gocd moral ‘*a:a rcr“ in order to be Hcensed. Th
definition of "geed meral character” under West Vi ¢ §30-12-2(4) states:

{4} “Good 'ro*s! acter” means such character as will enable a person to
dischargs th ary autiea of an "rchnvu to kis cliont and to the public for the
pr')‘ccnor o‘ health, safety and welfare of inability to discherge such
dutizs mf‘z ude ion of an offense justifving discipline under section

eight of this article,

hus, even though the definition does state that an architect owes fiduciary duties to his clien:, an
architect 2 c_lso owes equal fiduciary duties to the public for the protection of health, safery end
welfare. The Rules of Professional Conduct for Architests sef forth in the West Virginia Cods of
Riate Recuizz:ans (WY ZCSR1 £9.3.3) alzo provides clarity that the public interest is paramaunt
by providing:

i1 the course of his or her work on 4 projee:, a registered architset
bzcomes aware of a decision made by his or her emph)c:' or cliznt, against his or
her advice, which violates applicable state or municipal building laws and rules or
ordinances which will, in the regis:cr-*d architect’s judgment, materially and
adversely affect the safety to the public of she finished project, the re
architect shall:

833.a Rep < decision to the local building inspector or other
publiz o*["c I cfnrgcd with the enforcernent of the applicable state or
municipal building faws aad rules or ordinances

9.3.3.b. Refuse to consent to the decision; and

£9083I5.3)
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9.3.3.c. In circumsiances where the registerad acchitect reasonably
Etelieves that other similar decisions will be madz notwithstanding his or
ker objections, teminate his or her services with respect to the rro%cc:
if the registered architect terminams his or ber sarvices he or

bility to his or her elient or emplover on account of the Pr'n‘na‘

ha has po
on.

(emphasis added). Failurs to foliow the RL ¢s of Professional Conduct can be grounds for the
loss of the license to pmcmc architecture in the State of West Virginia, WV Code §30-12-%.
Congressman MeKinley isnota b cenacJ a'chn sety rather McKinley & Associates, Tre. has on Qs
staff licensed architects that must comply with these rules.

West Virginia law requires that business firms that practise professional engineering and
architecture designate a2 licensed professional in each field whose responsibility it is 10 supervise
tba p'o;es<zo':a! empioyed by the firm to assure that th-,' are following the requirements of
2 law and regulations o the performance of their duties. MeKinley & Associates,
l }-'\5 dm_‘.‘ ted senior profossionals in cach area to perform that function. Neither of those
supervising professionals is Cou"'e»mnn McKinley. in fact, for (he past several years
Congressman MoKinley's roke with the company has rot been in the practice of profz
engineering but in the management of the zpproximately 4C employees (licensed and whu‘— se
that & ‘.p‘m:“ by the firm.

{n conclusion, Wes a imposes fiducia bilities enly upon consulting
nzers, not professiona ! engineers. Moreover, the Housc Rules were intended to applv o
as whers a professional had fiduciary responsibilities to his or her clisnt which could

ssarily conflict with the responsibilitics of 2 Member of Congress. As hus been shown, West
\" ginia faw states clc:*l_ ‘hat thc ﬁchxa responsibility of & licensed rrsfesdma‘ engineer or
lx:emv; archite Thus th" dmoera that the Hoase Rules were
trying to guard against C’.O noi &

I

Before closing, T wanted to reiterate the histary of the professional engincering firm
the McKinley family, MceKanley & Associates, Inc. is the suceessor business to th-

hin
ndependent pr actice of professional engineering by Johnson B. McKiniey, Conzrassman David
e

B M Rm (“thcr WN first qp"ncd his ofﬁcc in '»W}ealinz in 195" f"a'hu' \«4 son wo.‘ od
tog r¢, acquired
s

hi d awings and fileg, and as >Lmed his »Iwn‘s \»]un h}a fathr e md asa p:o syoml engineer,
5 itis hard for me to understand the distinction that you are appacently making between an

rxcorpamteu furnily business to practice professional engineering and en incorporated xmm-\y
ness using the same family name. Though the present MeKinley & Associates, Inc. business
is ﬁuzch largcr than the single-sngincer office that was started in 1954, I‘vchénIcy & Assoctates,

<. 5 the natural and direct suceessor and showld be recogaized as such. The change to
rp”r'f' form is no different than if & business changes fm'-x a p:l ncrshxp fox curporzuian s
ited lability corpany; the business is the same, only the Jegal form has

UG AL
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In the event you would like copies of any of the code sections or state regulations cited
zhove, [ will be happy 10 send them o you  IF you would like to discuss these matters further,

s¢ do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your cooperation,

plea
Very truly yours,

& Yl

Charles J. Kaisér, Jr

san David B. McKinley

weransdst

Maintain as Confidential



EXHIBIT 18



109

fFrom: David B McKinley <[ Il@mckinieyassoc.com>
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2011 6:26 PM

To: ‘Kaiser, Chades J.'

Subject: FW: Ethics advisory opinion

Attachments: ethicscommittee@mail house.gov_20110627_142125.pdi

This makes no sense. think aboutit: McKinley Enginearing is OK but McKinley & Associates is a problem. My father's
company was not McKinley Engineering and we never representad that it was. That name was the one lused as a sole
proprietor for the early years of the company. Let'stalk.

~---Qriginal Massage--—

From: Strickiand, Kelle [mailto:Kelle Strickland @mail house.gov}
Sent: Monday, June 27, 2011 5:55 PM

To: IS mckinteyassoc.com

Subject: Ethics advisory opinion

Congressman,

Please sae the attachad lstter, par your conversation with Mr. Bonner,

Also, if you or your counsel have questions regarding the attached, Mr. Bonner advised that our Staff Director and Chief
Counsal would be happy to speak with you regarding the details of the letter. Dan Schwager may be reached at 202-
225-7103.

Thank you.

Kelie Strickland

Counsel to the Chairman
Committee on Ethics

Maintain as Confidential
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1749 K STREET %

e oo Jan Witold Baran
WASKIRGIER, BC 20t Sentembe 14, 2012 202.719 S
UORE 202,719 7000 B owileyreir.com
FAY, 2087014 *
wa pii The Honorable J¢ Bonner, Chaimman
PHOME TUL.808 2000 The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Meaiber

FAL IO3ED5.280D

Committes on Fthics

Urlted States House of Reproseutatives
1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re:  Resposse of Bep. David B, MeKinley (v August 24, 2012 Commiitles Letior

Dear Chairmen Bonner and Ranking Member Sanchez:

By latter of August 24, 2012, you requested an explanation from the Honorable
David B. McKinley regarding the status of efferts 1o rename the Wes: Virgiria
engingering, architeciure, and interior dzsign tirm of McKinley & Associates, Inc.,
in light of the Conwrnitice™s concerns that continucd operation of the fir under that
name cantld violae provisions of the Ethics in Government Ast that “proaibit 2 fim
that provides fiduciary services from using the name of a Meraber, even if the
Member s not compensated” We were recently engazed by Rep. MeKinley to
represent iim in conneetion with his response w the Commitlze™s Auvgust 24
reques:t‘l

Tt s fmportan: fo note at the outset taat Rep. MeKinley and his wife no longer own
any stock in MeKinley & Associates. The Employee Stock. Option Plun ("ESOP™)
— in which neither Rep. MeKinley nor bis wife panticipate — now owzs af ol the
shares in McKinlsy & Associates proviously owned by Rep, McKinley. The ESOP
now owns 100% of the shares o7 MeKinloy & Associates. Further, Rep. McKinley
has no other sffiliaticn with McKinley & Associates as an owncr, board member,
exceutive, cmplovec, or consultant. Therelore, a3 deseribed in niore deteil balosy,
Rep. McKintey has no association or afliliction with McKinley & Associates which
coald raiss concerns — either for him or for McKinley & Associates ~ pursuant to

' yaar August 247 fatter requasted a respousa from Rep
Saptember 4, 2012, telephong call with Commitles Safl Dircetor and Chief Counset Daniel A,

Selwager we asked on behalt of Rep. McKinley foran additional week to raspond. Mr. Sclwager
informed vs by amail on September 5, 2012, thal you had approved aone week extansios for Rep.

3response, to Sepianbar 14,20 2.

Kinley by Septemaer 5, 2012 lna
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the “*fiduciary” restrictions set forth  the Frhics In Government Act wd by House
P 3
Rule KXV~

As explained further selow, 2 number of fastors support your approval of continned
use of the mame “MeKinley & Assoclates™ 3y Rep. McKinley's former {m.
“MeKinley” is a well-knowr farsily and historical name in West Virginia. The
“MeKinley” rame inengineering and building design was originally established in
West Virginia by Rep. McKinley's father, Johrson B. McKinley, und was
reinforced by him through his long, public association with McKinley &
Associates. Entirely independent of Rep. McKinley’s status as a Member of
Clongross, “MeKinley & Associates” has long beer. — and remains — an eslablished
brand name in the provision of the highest-quality sng'neering, architectural, and
interior design services.

As the legislative hisiory of the Brhdes in Government Sctmakes clear, the Act's
restrictions (and the parallel reswrictions under House Rule XXV)onthe use of'a
“Member's name” are intended to address “cases where outside intorests attemp. to
trade op (he prostige of Meinbers of Coagress.” This concern does not exist with
MeKinley & Associates. The company trades on the “McKinley"” name as an
historical pame in Wast Virginia and as a “family nama” in engineering and
building cesign, The company trades on —indeed, relies upon — the name
“Mekinley & Associates” as an established and well-known brund meme in its field.
Rep, McKinley therefore requests that vouapprove the company’s continued nse of
the name “MeKinley & Associates” for all business purpeses.

? As disclosad Ir hisannual fnancial disclosure form covering calundar year 2011, Rep. MeKinky
hakls the netes receivable with respect Lo Inan agesemauts entered into by the I30P w purchase
Rep. MeKinley's ownersalp hferest ir Mainlay & Associsles, Rep. MeKinley own2 the building
which housts MeKinley & Assocaies, be lewses spave 1 this building from MoKinloy & Assocares
for use as ua office (Aot for official purposes) aad ke pays the firm for use of thair ielephone and
inrernedemail services, Rep. MeKinley's wife, Mary, sevves a3 Secretary of the Board of Directors
wird w3 8 Vieo President of MeRinley & Assoctates; if roguired to do o by the Commitiee, Mary
MeKinley would relinquish these positions at the compeny. Rep McKinley's duughtsr-in-faw, Caty
MeKin'ey, 5 anemgloyee ofthe eompany aud an owng~ af the eompany by virue el hee
patticipation in tie Employes Stock Ovmership Plaa. Rep. MeKinley's oldest sonalsols the
fintncial sdviso: to the ESOP paricipants 1od the company’s secondary retirement fund.
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Background

The McKinley familv name; the *MeKinley & Associates” brand name

Nine gencrations of McKinleys arc associated with the Wheeling aren. Tae
MeKinley name in West Virginia dates back o the Revolutionary War Fra, wher,
Captain Johm McKinley iz known to have beep an early Wheeling landowner in
what was then Virginia. Several generations later, Johnson Camden McKinley,
Rep. McKinley's grandfather, (urther extablishad the MeKinley name in the state
through his ploneering activiy as an organizer and develaper - a “harmn” - of the
northera coal ficlds 1o West Vivginia; he was recogaized s such by induction into
the Coal Hall of Fanie. He operated the McKinley Cozl Company and was honored
when t1e community of McKinleyville in a neighboring county was mamed after
him. The Jolmson Canden MeKinley House - or “Willow Glen™ — in Wheeling, is
one of the besi-kknown historic heuses in the state aad endures as ¢ monvment to the
sigaificant vole Johnson C. McKinley played in the industrial history of West
Virginia.

Jolmson B, MaKinley, Rep. McKinley's father, established the MeKinley fanily
name in engineoring and construction in the Wheeling area. Johnson 8. McKinley
served ag fhe Cily Engineer for Bethiehem, West Virginia, for many years; among
mny othier prowioent projects, be was the engincer for a civic conterand fora
sewage treatment plant. Qver his many years of practize, Johnsor B, McKinley
appears to have operated under a number of business names, iscluding “Johnson B.
MecKinley Engincering” and, primarily, “Johnson B. McKinley, Consalting
Engiuger,” Although he was not an architcet, und Gerefoe Jid not refer to
architectural services in his business name, Jobnson B, McKinley designed
primarily in the arca of municipal sewer and water pro'ects and built many projents
under the name “Penn Construction.” M is unclear whether Johnson B. MeKenley
ever incoryorated his business operatiors.

From 1971 to 1973, Rep, MeKinley worked with his father tn his father’s
enginecring and construction. busincsses and, together, they continued to develop
the rgach and reputation of the MeKinley name for these skills and scrvices in the
tri-staly ard Wheeling regionul zrea. Rep. McKinley left his father’s business afar
about fwo years. He founded his own firm, Mclinley Engineering Company, in
1931, In 1989, after the fin began to offer architectwal services, the company
name changed to McKiney & Assoziates, Inc. Despits ary gap in time or
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variations in the company name, however, It is imporisnt W eppresiate the
continuily of core professional services and repatation cemrered on the McKinley
name, ILis cqually importan: to appreciate e continuty of the public professionat
collaboration between Johnson B, McKinley and David B. McKinley.

Fram the gme David B, McKinley began bis own firm in 1981 - and continuing for
some years beyowd the renaming of this firm as McKirley & Associates in 1989 -
Tolmson B. McKinley played aninstrumental and very public role in solidify.og and
expanding the reputation of that irm, and of the MeKialey family name ax used by
that finn, in cogircoring and architectural servises in West Virginia and bayend.
Pardcutarly during those perods when David MceKinley was required to e abseat
from the firm to attend the state legislature, Jobnson B McKinley served as the
cyes and ears for the nn that became McKinley & Associates on numerous profect
sites, and in so deing became a public face of the Grm. Although he afso
maintained hiz own business, Johnson B. McKinley aliended many meetings with
clicnts as the sepiesentative of McKinley & Associates; he walked many project
siles with owners as the reprasentative of McKinley & Associates.

The continuity and close connaction hetween Johnson B, McKinlsy and MeKinley
& Assoclates continued even afier Johnson B. MeKinley’s death in 1396 at zge 76,
MeKinley & Associates compleled all of Jobnson 3. McKinley's untinished work.
MeKinley & Associates acquired all of Johnson B, McKinley’s basiness assets.
MeKinloy &2 Aasociates hired a site design spesialist to centinue providing services
that Johnson 3. MeKinley's expertise had allowed the company to offer and that
clients of McXinley & Associates ad come o expect,

Rasced on Johnson B. MeKinley's long association with and sobstantial work for the
firm, “MeKinley & Associaes™ was and is inazguably a family name, independent
ol Rep. McKrnley’s service as a Member of Congress, Morcover, the established
brand name of "McKinley & Associates™ - its recognized reputadon for
professional exeellence in enginecring and avchiteeturs ~ (urther eliminales any
concern that the firm could be szen as trading on a Mamber’s “prostize.” With
three offices n West Virginia and Pennsylvania, McKinley & Associates has
compleled nwjor projects, not just in every county in West Virginia, but across (he
counuy in Worth Catulisg, South Caroliva, Ohio, Pevngylvania, Mew Yerk,
Kentueky, Minnesota, Wineis, and Urax. These projects include hospitals,
sezondary schools and colleges, federal and state govermment buildings, office and
corarvercial projects, historic preservation sites, and cothers. The teputation of
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MeKinley & Associates has beea earned - and continues tv be confiemed ~ by the
work of its over 40 archirecls and machanical, elecivical, struciural, and civil
engineers > The wotk of these professionals has gamered McKinfey & Associates
wide recogaition and numerous awards, including, naming ouly a fow, the
prestigious West Virginia AIA (Amcrican Institute of Avchitests) Honor Award and
Merit Award and thie Governor's Award for Historic Preservation. Building from
the solid foundation of the McKinley family name in epginccring, design, and
consteuction, it is on the wotk and reputation of these professionals —on the
MeKinley & Associales brand mime that they maistained and extended -~ that the
future success, and the future business, of MeRinley & Associates vests.

Sale of Rep. McKinlay’s intarest in McKinley & Asscclates

Five years ago and prior lo any consideration of public servies David B. Melinley,
PE hegan the first of two steps in fransforring ownzrstip of the company Lo his
employees by initiating an Employee Stock Ownershia Plan (ESOP) and selling it
30% of McKinley & Associates. Besides holding the stock of a compatty, a1 ESOP
is genarally considersd # fuwn of retirement beneft for erployess.

In April f 2011, Rep. McKinley then signed a Memorandum of Understanding
with the company ESOP to sell the balance of McXinley & Associaws to them.
Rep. McKinlsy understood, in good faith, that the sale of his entire ownership
interest in MeKinley & Associnies would resolve, and was an appropriate response
to, any concerns expressed by the Cammitee as to the company’s continued use of
the name “MeKinley & Associates.”

Az disclosed on iy annual financial disclosurs form for calendar year 2011, on
Dacémber 31, 2011, Rep. McKinley ertered into a formal agreement to sell his
entire remairing ownership interest in MeKinley & Assosiates — comprising 70% of
Lhe company's shares —to the ESOP. This sale was contingeat on an independent
valumion of the firm, Because ol tie Eme peedled to complete this valuation, and
because of ERISA requivement, the actual sule was not completed until Aprl 30,
2012. On lhat date McKinley & Associates became 100% ESOP owned. Rep.

? Of caurse, the professional yark of Davil B, McKinloy a3 an engireer has eoowebuted signifieantly
10 the “brand name” and reputation of McXinley & Associxies. But, as the Committee has been
infarmed previously, lor the past several years before eatering Congress <ep. MeKinley’s role wlth
itz company hos net been in the practica of pruftgsional engincering but in the msaagement of the
flnn’s more than 40 professionals ane support craployses,
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MeKinley holids the note receivable with respect to the loan undertaken by the
ESOP to £nance its purchase of this 7085 interest in MeKinley & Associates (us he
alsn helds the note receivable for (he loan undertaken by the BSOP to finance its
eartier purchase of i1s inidal 30% share of the company’s stock). According w0 the
sale documents, Rep. McKinley does not retain any awthority to direct or require the
FESOP to chapge the naras of the company.

Restriction on permitting one’s name to be nsed by an entity that provides

The Ethics in Government Act of 1689, at Title 5 U.S.C. app. 4 § 502(a)(2),
providas that a Mamber or covered employee saall nat “permit [is or he:] name to
beused by any . . . firm, parinership, association, corporation, or other entity”
whicly, by 1eferonce to § 502(a)(1) of the statute, “provides profossioral services
involving a fiduciary relationship.” House Rulz XXV. parngrph 2, §§ (2) and (b},
which reflect the same restrictions on fiduciary professions and uses of a Member's
or vovered employee’s name as are set forth in the Ethics 'n Government Acy, limit
the scope of § 502(a)(1) of the Act I cover auy culity that “provides professionel
services invelving a iduciary relationship excopt for the praciice of medicine”

(Emplasis added)

Kecognizing that neither Comumities actiou, nur sven @ House Rule, can trump the
stafutery requirements of the Ethies in Govermment Act, the Commitice on Lthigs
has sizted: “Notwithstanding the exisling statulory prohibition, the Standards
Commitice has authorized Member-physicians to praclice medicine for a limitee
amount of compensa.ion.” (Howse Fihics Manual, page 218 Ludeed, the
Commitlee has permitted member physicians o practice medicine for at least 5
limited amouat of compensation ever since the passags of the Ltkics in Government
Act, and notwithstanding the fact that the legislative history of the act makes clear
that “medicing” ~ like “erehitceure™ —is onc of the “professional activides
involvfing] a *fiduciary’ relationship” the practice of whish for compensalion was
spocifically intended to be covered hy the Act’

* Unfike architzcrure, the Commites docs not appenr to have concluded that cagineering is 2 coverce
“fiduetary™ profession.

* Howss Biguclisen Task Poree on Tihics, Heport of the Bipertivua Task Forca on Btkive on H.R.
3660, 101 Cony,, 1" Sess. 13-14 (Comm. Prine, Comm an Rules 1939), page 16: “The task forse
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The same legistative history makes elear that “consulting and advising,” without
apparcnt limifaticn, are interded to be included as *fiduciary” professions cavered
by the Act and, thus, by the House Rule. Yet - although ncither the Janguage of the
Act, the legistative history of the Act, nor the language of the House Rule on
fiduciary restriclions appear 1o contemplate such an exception — the Commitee vn
Ethics udvises that a senior stalfer, who is otherwise covered by the restrictions, “is
not prohibitad from accepting compensation fov pelitical consultiag services that he
or she provides to either a cendidare (inzluding one’s employing Meraber), a
political party, ora Monber's leadeeship PAC (House Ethicy Manzal, &t page
218

Qur purpoese in eiting these expansive interpretations snd applications by the
Commiittee of the language of House Rule XXV, of the Ethics in Government Act,
and of the legislive history of the Act (as coslained in the Report of the Riparfisan
Task Force on Fibies) isnot to eritizize the Committee’s past apgrosch to
inmerpreting and applying the fiduciary restrictions. To the contrary, the purpose in
ciling these well-known past instanees is to demonstrate clear Committes precedeont
- fn fzet, 2 Committes tradition — fur reading the Tainguage of the fidveiary
restrictions, and of the related legistative history, flexibly and pragmatically when
there is a reasonzble basis for doing so.

Appraval of the continued use of the name “MeKinley & Associatos™ by Rep,
McKinler's former finn would not require vou to reach outside of the language and
four corners of the Rule. the statue, or the logislative histery, as was argnably done
by the Cemmitee in the ingtances of interpretation and application cited above,
Your approval of the coatinued use of the name “McKinley & Associaws™ woud
simply require you to approach the “ficuciary” reetrictions - and, in paricular, the
veluted legislative history —as written in light of what they may be viewsd
reasonably and soundly to permit (not in Hgh! of what they niay be acgued o
prohibit).

(Continued .. .}
irtennds the banto reach, for sxomple, services suek ag lagal ronl estite, consuliing and addsing,
tnsurarce, medictng, architedure o fuancial.”
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Continged use of the name "MeKinley & Associules” iy vonsistent with the
reatrictions on ¥fiduciney ssrviees?

In its section by szetinn report on the Ethics in Government Act of 1989, and as
repeatedly referrad to above, the House Bipartisan Task Force on Gthics specifically
discussed a “family name” exception to the prohibition on the use of a Member’s
name by an entity that provides “liduciary services™

[T]he ask force understands that a law fivm, real estatz agency, oz other firm that
bears a “family” name, as opposed to the name of the individual Member, officer,
or employee, woulid aut bave 1o change its nance, Thus, the fact faat o Member,
officer or emploves is presantly associsted with a faw firm Founded by, and still
bearing the name of his father would net require the firm © drop the *family”™
naxe.”

Inits sune 24, 2011, fetier te Rep. MeKinley the Commitiee appears o read this last
quoted seaterce from the Bipardsan Task Force Report as deserizing and defining
the only circumstancs under which a firm nams will be considered a “family
name.” Admittedly, this alsy appears 1o be the uverly nanow reading of “family
name” taken oy the Camunillee in its Manucd, 7 But thase circumstances -- that i,
wharc the firm in question is legally and {sctually the same catity as founded by,
and still bearing the specific name of. the father or other relative of the Member—
can and show.d b2 viswed as srly one evample of the kind of family partcipution
i, and assosiaticn with an entity, that supports a etermination that the entity bears
a “lanily name ™

That the specitic circumstarces descvibed in the Bipartisen Task Force Report weic
inrcuded as only onc example of when the facts will support the finding of & “family
name” is evident from the fact that the key seatence (quoted above) begins with the
word “thus,” a common meandng o which is “as an example” or “Tor example.”

There may be a number of factual seenarics, therefore, uader which the Commitee
ceatld, and should, determine that an ertity bears & “tamily name ™ Rather than

B
i
7 House Ethics Manzal, 2 page 221 end page 222, Fxample 32,
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being applied rigidly only waere a present firm is legully and faciually the idontical
firpy founded by a Member's “father™ (the Bipertisan Tosk Foree Report does not,
afier all, identify any other permissible family relationship), interpretation and
applicution of the “farnily name” exception should serve the actual, underlying
purpose of the restrictiors on use of a Member's name by a “fiduciary services™
fien, As the Diportisan Task Force Report makes olear, this underlying »urpose is
to address the “potential for abuse .. . in cases where outside interests allempt to
trade on the prestige of Members of Coagress .. . Where there is a ressonable
basis for the Committee to determing that use in a Hro’s name of the surnawe (or
*furuily nune™) of'a Member reflects historical factors or reflects some
demonstrable family agsociation with the firm the Commitice should determine -hat
the firm name qualifies as a “family name.”

As detailed in this letter, there are ample grounds for the Commitiee w dotermine
that “McKinlay & Associgtes” qualifics as a “family name,” Independent of Rep.
MaKinley — end dating back to hig grandfather Johnson Camden MeKinley and,
before him, to the Revolutiopary War ~ “MeKinley” is a recognized and prominent
family name in Wes! Virginia history and busiuess. Initially io agriculture and then
in the coal ficlds of West Virgiria, the nwre of MeKinley has bean aszociated with
business, In the Jields of engincering, eonstruction, and design, Kep. McKirley's
father, Johnson B, McKiuley, first established and, for meny years, grew the
reputation of the “MecKinley” name in and wround the Wheeling reglonal area.
Johnson B, MeKinley founded the *MeKirley™ professional family rams. Johnson
R. McKinley imparted his professional bona fides. and the professional veputation
he first founded, to his association with “McKinley Enginccring Company™ and to
“McKinley & Assoclates” through 3is important and frequent werk over many
years as toe public eyes, curs, and mptesentative of the firm (undzr both firm
names).

Just a3 the Committce should net anduly and rigidly bmit application of the “family
nane” exception to the single set of circumstaaces cited 23 one example in the
Bipartisem Task Forze Report, the Commitee should recognize that — even apart
from a fitm rame being a “family name” - theee are other reesonable basss w0
delertaine that a firm name is not an “allempt to trade on the prestige” of a Member
of Congress and is, therefore, permissible under buth statatc and House Rule. One
such bazis should be found where a firm name that includes & Member's simame is

F Bipartisan Tusk Force Repart st page 14
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an extablished brand name in its professional field. As discussed above, *McKinley
& Agsoclates” Iz an established brand name and industry Teader —in Wheeling, in
West Virginia, in the tri-state area, and beyond — in engineering, architecure, and
interfor design. As “MceKinley & Associates” has successiully completed numerous
high-profile projects undar its current name for over 20 vears, und as hie reputation
and brand of the firm under this name has grown, tae professional excellanee of he
“MeKinley & Associates” firm bas been repeatedly recognized and awarded by
peer groups, professional associations and others. “MeKinloy & Assoctales™ docs
not trale on the “prestize” of Rep, MeKintey as a Member of Congress. Frankly,
that kind of “prestige” would be worthless to the firm in the technical, resulis-
oriented industries in which it aperates. *MeKinley & Associates” trades onjls
recognized and establishad name and repuiation for teehnical excellonce and
prectical suce2ss.

A fal, ralated point should be noted about the scepe of the “potential for abuse”
that the drafizrs of the Ethics in Government Act intended to address in imposing
restricions on the use of a Member’s name by a “(iduciary” servives fiem,
Throughout the discussion in the Biparisosr Fusk Furce Report on the restrictions
on the practice of “fiduciary” professions and the delivery of *fiduciary” services,
the crphasis is oa the potential for vontlict between a Meniber's offizial,
representetive ducy to the public in general and the personal, private duty thal may
be owed by a Member/professional to an individual client. The following pes
frem the Report mukss this focus clear:

Ssuge

When certain private positions end employment create for the Member or public
official a fiduciary or a ropresentational responsibility to a private elizut ot & lmited
number of private partics, then such owside activides crezte tac polential fora
serious cenflict of inerest. The cordlict occurs in the Slash of thess responshilities
and the divergence of public and prvate intorests on a particular governmeniat
matter or in general government policy,”

Ttis central passage leads direely into the discussion in the Report about “the
potential for abuse o7 hls type of income in cases where outside interests sttempt to
trade on the prestige of Members o) Congress . ..° (Emphasis added.) Thus, {0
appears that the concern of the draficrs of the Ethies in Government Act about
outside entitics “rading” on the “prastige of Members” was irevded primatily o

i
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addeess circumstance where such an entity would profit improperly by implving
that private c.iems would have, and would benefit from, wm actual fiduciary or
representational relationship with a Member of Congress. As 4 general matter —
and absert other faclors supporting use of a Member's sumare in a firm name - the
potential for such abuse may well existin a law firm ¢r in & consulting or advising
fran, parlicularly in a small firm or praclice, But the potential for this kind of abusc
by a firm providing architectural services (smong other services) would appear to
beminimal. {n the case of a large, estudlished, industry-leading architectural firm
like McKinley & Associates, the potential for such abuse - for “irading” on Reg.
McKinley's status as a Member in this misleading way -- is nonexistent,

Cenclusion

Az the Committee has beon infermed in previous subrmissions on belalf of Rep,
McKinley, a prohibition on MoKinley & Associates use of its exisling name would
create severe financial hardship forall of the current employes/owners of the

finm. For their compensation and for their retirement savings, these
cmploycc/owners are dependent on the cortinued success of McKintsy &
Assaciates in a diffteulr sconomy. The goodwill and positive profossional
reputation that the firm has engendered over the years attaches to the brand name
MzKialey & Associates and would be lost1f a name change were recuired.

Rut no such name change israquired. Based an the information, and for the
reasons, set forth above, the name “MeXinley & Associates,” as used by Rep.
David B. MeKinley’s former firm, is a “family name,” an cstablished brand name,
and iy otherwise consistent with the bnent und pursose of B restrictions impuosed
by stazute and House Rule on the provision of professional services iavolving a
fiduciary rclationship. On behalf of Rep. McKinley, therefore, we respestfully nrge
you to approve the fiem’s centinued use of the name *MeXinley & Assostates.”

{H5366% 1
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10 you have iy cusstions or wish (o discuss this mutter, please dv oot hesitate (o
contact me, at 202-719- R, o1 my colleague Robert L. Walker, at 207-71 0.

Sincerely,

W

aa Witold Baran
Bobert L. Walker
Counsel for Rep. David B. McKinley

1393860 4
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June 24,2011

‘The Honorable David B. McKinley
U.8. House of Representatives

313 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Colleague:

This responds to the letters dated January 3, 2011, and April 14, 2011, which were
submitted on your behalf by your counsel, Charles J. Kaiser, Jr., concerning your outside business
interests,

FACTUAL BACKGROUND

According to the information provided in Mr. Kaiser’s letters, additional information
provided to Committee counsel by you and Mr. Kaiser, and publicly-available information, the
background on this matter is as follows,

Prior to your election to the House, you worked as a licensed professional engineer at
McKinley & Associates, Inc. (the Firm), of which you were also an officer and director.
According to its Web site, the Firm opened its doors in 1981 as “a full-service architectural and
engineering firm.” Your counsel has represented that the Firm “provides professional
engineering and architectural services through its employees who are professional engineers and
licensed architects under the laws of West Virginia, Ohio, and Pennsylvania.” Your letters
concede that West Virginia law deems architecture to be a profession that involves fiduciary
duties.

The Firm has three offices, located in Wheeling, West Virginia; Charleston, West
Virginia; and Washington, Pennsylvania, and employs more than 40 individuals. The Firm
provides services in the Tri-state region and other mid-Atlantic states. Its Web site indicates that
past clients have included many state- and local-level government entities, as well as federal
entities such as the U.S. Postal Service, Department of Defense, NASA, and the Federal Aviation
Administration.

In January 2007, the Firm established a partial Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP).
You own approximately 70% of the Firm’s common stock, with the remaining 30% owned by
the Firm’s employees under the ESOP.

Your father, Johnson B, McKinley, was also a licensed professional engineer. Johnson
McKinley maintained a one-man office, McKinley Enginecring, as a consulting engineer in

EXHIBIT
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Wheeling, West Virginia, beginning in 1954 until his retirement in the 1980s. You worked with
your father at McKinley Engineering for approximately two years, prior to establishing the Firm
in 1981, which became “custodian of all of the drawings, files, and other assets accumulated” by
your father during his carcer as an engineer, and also serves many of the same clients, Your
letters stress that the name “McKinley” has been associated with enpgineering services in the
Wheeling area since 1954,

Finally, we understand that you wish to avoid changing the name of the Firm if at all
possible within the Rules.

LEGAL AUTHORITY AND ANATLYSIS

Federal law and House rules restrict the outside carnings of Members and senior staff of the
House of Representatives. These individuals may not receive more than 15 percent of the Executive
Level 1T (House Member) salary in outside earned income in a calendar year.' For 2011, this limit
is $26,955. Regardless of whether this income level is reached however, certain types of earnings
are absolutely prohibited.

Section 502 of the Ethics in Govemmént Act (5 US.C. app. 4 § 502(a)) provides that
Members and senior staff shall not —

(1) receive compensation for affiliating with or being employed by a
firm, partnership, association, corporation, or other entity which
provides professional services invelving a fiduciary relationship;

(2) permit that Member’s, officer’s, or employee’s name to be used
by any such firm, partpership, association, corporation, or other
entity;

(3) receive compensation for practicing a profession which involves
a fiduciary relationship; or

(4) serve for compensation as an officer or member of the board of
an association, corporation, or other entity.

See also House Rule 25, cl. 2. The Act gives this Comumittee responsibility for interpreting these
provisions for the House.

The statute does not define “fiduciary,” a term generally denoting an obligation to act in
another person’s best interests or for that person’s benefit, or a relationship of trust in which one
relies on the integrity, fidelity, and judgment of another.” However, in creating the exception,

'sys.c app. 4 § 501(a)(1); House Rule 25, ¢l 1{a)(1).

2 See Black’s Law Dictionary 658, 1315 (8th ed. 2004); Bipartisan Task Force Report, Report on HR
3660, 101" Cong., 1% Sess, (Comm. Print, Comm. on Rules 1989), reprinted in 135 Cong. Rec, H9253 (daily ed.
Nov. 21, 1989) at 16,
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the Bipartisan Task Force stated that in order for the underlying purposes to be achieved, “the
term fiduciary [should] not be applied in a narrow, technical sense.”® This report further states:

The task force intends the ban to reach, for example, services such
as legal, real estate, consulting and advising, insurance, medicine,
architecture, or financial.*

The legislative history of the statute clearly denotes architecture as a field involving a
fiduciary relationship. This determination is supported by West Virginia law,” and your letters
indicate you concur with this assessment.® Thus, the Firm is a business that provides fiduciary
services, and therefore is subject to the limitations stated in the statute and rule cited above.

These provisions prohibit a firm that provides fiduciary services from using the name of a
Member, even if the Member is not compensated. The ban extends, for example, to use of the
name of the Member on the letterhead, advertising, or signage of any covered organization.
Under this provision, when the name of an incoming Member is used in the name of a law firm,
real estate agency, or other organization that provides fiduciary services, the name of that
organization must be changed to eliminate the name of the Member. However, the requirement
does not apply when the organization’s name in fact reflects a “family” name, as opposed to that
of the individual Member or staff person. On this point, the Bipartisan Task Force Report states,
“the fact that a Member, officer, or employee is presently associated with a law firm founded by,
and still bearing the name of, his father would not require the firm to drop the ‘family’ name.”’

In the case of the Firm, the Commitiee accepts your representation that the current Firm
can reasonably be seen as a practical continuation of McKinley Engineering, the business
originally established in 1954 by your father, Johnson McKinley, for whom it was named.
However they are legally and factually distinct entities. Accordingly, the Committee finds
that, while a name change is required under current rules, guidelines and policies, a change
of the Firm name to the name of your father’s original business, McKinley Engincering,
along with a clear association with your father, such as adding to the letterhead the phrase
“Part of a Family Tradition since 1954*% if appropriate and consistent with relevant state

* Bipartisan Task Force Report at 16, 135 Cong, Rec. at H9257.
41

* West Virginia statute requires architects to practice “good moral character,” which means “character as
will enable a person to discharge the fiduciary duties of an architect to his client and to the public.” See W.V, Code
§ 30-12-2(4); W.V. Code § 30-12-4,

¢ Because both you and the Committee are in agreement on this point, we do not address whether the
provision of engineering services also involves fiduciary duties. This is because the rule addresses any of the firm’s
services, not the Member’s actual prior services.

7 See 2008 House Ethics Manual at 221; Bipartisan Task Force Report at 16, 135 Cong. Ree. at H9257.

¥ We note that any reference to Association with your father should not misrepresent the company’s actual
corporate history or status. However, should some other language be more appropriate or preferred, you should
consult with the Committes to defermine if the alternate language or proposal would satisfy the need to change the
name and satisfy the family name exception.
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laws, would be consistent with the family name exception to the Rules and would be
permissible for the purposes of House Rules.

Regarding the limitation on outside earnings, these limitations apply only to “income,”
that is, compensation for services (or “ecamed income™), and not to money received from
ownership or investment of equity income (“unearned mcome”) Because these provisions and
House Rules concern the receipt of compensation for services they do not generally restrict the
ability of a Member to have an ownership interest in a business or to receive dividends or other
income that results from their ownership interest. However, the Committes has taken the position
that when a Member has an ownership Interest in a “personal service” business — that is, a business
in which capital is not a material income-producing factor —~ the Member’s share of the profits from
the business will be deemed to be outside earned income, unless it can be demonstrated that the
income was in fact a return on investment. Even when the Member performs no personal services,
absent z strong showing to the contrary, it is presumed that the Member’s share of profits from a
service business is for attracting or retaining clients and thus constitutes earned income.!®

Your attorney has indicated that you resigned as an officer and director of the Firm prior
to taking the oath of office. However, for the sake of completeness, we address the rules related
to board service. The ban on paid board service arises from the same set of concerns as the
fiduciary relationship prohibitions. The ban on accepting compensation for serving as an officer
or board member applies to all entities, including nonprofit and campaign organizations, and
governmental entities. As a general matter, Members may serve in such capacities, but they may
not be paid any directors’ fees or other compensation for that service. Members may accept
reimbursements for travel and other expenses in carrying out the duties of a board member and
may be covered by an insurance pohcy as a member of a board, provided that acceptance is
permissible under the applicable provision of the gift rule (House Rule 25, ¢l. 5@

Finally, we note for your information an additional federal statute, 5 U.S.C. § 501, which
provides:

An individual, firm, or corporation practicing before an agency of
the United States may not use the name of a Member of either
House of Congress or of an individual in the service of the United
States in advertising the business.

This statute is enforced by the U.S. Department of Justice, and, thus, the Committee cannot give
definitive guidance on its scope or offer you any exception from its requirements. To be clear
this statute may prohibit the Firm, even with a revised name such as the one discussed in this
letter, from completing ot accepting work from the U.S. government or federal entities or
agencies. You should seek guidance from the Department of Justice or private counsel on that
issue.

® See House Rule 25, cl. 4(d)(1); 2008 House Ethics Manual at 228,
1 See 2008 House Ethics Manval at 231.
Y Seg id at 222,
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LIMITATIONS

The response above constitutes an advisory opinion concerning the application of
5U.S.C. app. 4 §§ 501 ef seq. and House Rule 25, clause 1, The following limitations apply to
this opinion;

» This advisory opinion is issued only to Representative David B. McKinley, the
requestor of this opinion, This advisory opinion cannot be relied upon by any other
individual or entity.

» This advisory opinion is limited to the provisions of House tule and federal statute
specifically noted above. No opinion is expressed or implied herein regarding the
application of any other federal, state, or local statute, rule, regulation, ordinance, or
other law that may be applicable to the proposed conduct described in this letter,
including, without limitation, 5 U.8.C. § 501.

+ This advisory opinion will not bind or obligate any entity other than the Committee
on Ethics of the United States House of Representatives.

o This advisory opinion is limited in scope to the specific proposed conduct described
in this letter, the specific facts represented to the Committee, and the understanding of
those facts to the extent indicated in this letter, and does not apply to any other
conduct or facts, including those which appear similar in nature or scope to that
described in this letier. Should this lotter misstato any facts in this mattcr, the opinion
and advice may no longer apply and you should inform the Committee as soon as
possible to determine if the advice and opinion in this letter applies to the accurate
factual basis.

The Committee will take no adverse action against you in regard to any conduct that you
undertake, or have undertaken, in good faith reliance upon this advisory opinion, so long as you
have presented a complete and accurate statement of all material facts relied upon herein, and the
proposed conduct in practice conforms with the information you provided, as addressed in this
opinion.

Changes or other developments in the law (including, but not limited to, the Code of
Official Conduct, House rules, Committee guidance, advisory opinions, statutes, regulations, or
case law) may affect the analysis or conclusions drawn in this advisory opinion. The Committee
reserves the right to reconsider the questions and issues raised in this advisory opinion and to
rescind, modify, or terminate this opinion if required by the interests of the House. However, the
Committee will rescind an advisory opinion only if relevant and material facts were not
completely and accurately disclosed to the Committee at the time the opinion was issued. In the
event that this advisory opinion is modified or terminated, the Commitiee will not take any
adverse action against you with respect to any action taken in good faith reliance upon this
advisory opinion so long as such conduet or such action was promptly discontinued upon
notification of the modification or termination of this advisory opinion.
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If you have any further questions, please contact the Committee’s Office of Advice and
Education at extension 5-7103.

Sinéerely,
ﬁ» - P
w b 7, a@aa&g
Jo Bonner Linda T. Sdnchez
Chairman Ranking Member

JB/LTS:ced
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August 22, 2016

The Honorable Charles W, Dent, Chairman

The Honorable Loretta T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
Members of the Committee on Ethics

U.S. House of Representatives

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re:  Response of Representative David B. McKinley to the Committee’s proposed report and
fetter

Dear Members of the Committee on Ethics:

Thank you for this opportunity to respond to the draft report and draft letter of reproval provided
to me by the staff of the Committee on Ethics.

Following the clear and repeated advice of my attomey at that time, after 1 was elected and
sworn into my first term in Congress 1 sold my remaining interest in the McKinley & Associates
architecture and engineering firm to that firm’s Employee Stock Option Plan to comply with my
obligations under House ethics requirements, specifically with the so-called “fiduciary
restrictions.” | have since come to understand that the advice of my then attorney in explaining
and interpreting to me House Committee on Ethics requirements and guidance, and my reliance
on that advice, were mistaken. [ regret relying on that advice.

[ appreciate that, after a long review, the Committee on Ethics in its proposed report has not
found that I acted in bad faith in relying on my then attorney’s legal advice; that there is no
finding by the Committee of any knowing or willful violation by me; and that, in fact, the
Committee’s own proposed findings indicate that my actions were, at worst, negligent. And vet,
based on these findings, the Committee proposes the disproportionate response of issuing a letter
of reproval to me.

Even recognizing that a Committee on Ethics reproval is not considered a sanction under the
Committee’s own procedural rules, I take the strongest exception to this disproportionate and
unjustified proposed response. [ urge the Committee to handle this matter as an advisory matter,
without issuing any public report. But, even if you decide that my good faith reliance on the
advice of counsel merits a public report to keep others in the House community from making a

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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similar mistake, | respectfully ask you to agree that this important educational end can be fully
achieved without reproving me through that report and without a finding that my actions
reflected on the House. The issuance of a separate letter of reproval in this matter, where any
violations by me were unintentional, is clearly not merited and would be contrary to the most
recent Committee precedent.

As noted, this matter concerns my compliance with restrictions on affiliating with or receiving
compensation from a firm that provides professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.
That is, this matter concerns the House “fiduciary restrictions.” In its inquiry, the Committee has
focused on the continued use of the name McKinley & Associates by the West Virginia
architecture and engineering firm [ founded in 1981. Prior to entering Congress in 2011, Iwas a
principal, officer, and director of McKinley & Associates, but my wife Mary McKinley and I no
longer own any stock in McKinley & Associates; [ have no other affiliation with the firm either
as an owner, board member, executive, employee, or consultant. Through letters submitted on
my behalf by my current counsel, Jan Witold Baran and Robert L. Walker, to the Committee on
September 24, 2012 and May 1, 2013, and through a substantial volume of accompanying
documents, [ have described and discussed at length my efforts to understand and to comply with
these “fiduciary restrictions.”’ The two earlier letters are included as Exhibits 1 and 2 to this
letter and, although they are lengthy, [ urge you to read through them carefully. I believe
strongly that your review will convinee you that, based on the advice of my attorney at that time,
T acted in good faith to comply with the “fiduciary restrictions” and did not intentionally violate
those restrictions.

Although I urge my colleagues on the Committee to carefully review all the arguments and
information in my earlier letters, [ want to emphasize in this letter the following points:

+ Relying on the advice and guidance of my former attorney, after entering Congress
1 sold my ownership interest in McKinley & Associates with the understanding that
this sale would satisfactorily address and eliminate the need for that firm to remove
“McKinley” from its name. My good faith reliance on this legal advice and
guidance occurred in the context of receiving what I reasonably perceived as self-
contradictory and confusmg guxdance from the then Committee staff. The
Committee’s proposed report in this matter, and the proposal to issue a reproval
based on the findings in that report, unrealistically and unfairly minimizes that
context of confusion.

* The Commiitee’s proposed report appears to suggest, incorrectly, that I did not
notify the Committee:of the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates until
sometime after August 24, 2012. In fact, as clearly described in'my May 1, 2013
submission to the Committee on Ethics, in June 2011 1 told the then Chairman of
the Committee that I had sold my interest in the firm. I do not know why the
Committee’s proposed report ignores this fact, especially when the report cites other
parts of this same exchange with the then Chairman as apparent fact. I do know
that a determination by the Committee to issue a report or reproval based, even in

! T have also argued — and | maintain — that the facts in this case do not make out a violation because the name
“McKinley & Associates” should be found to fall within the “family name” exception to the “fiduciary restrictions.”

2
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part, on an erronecus and incomplete understanding of when I informed the
Committee of this sale would be unfair.

¢ I have cooperated fully with the inquiry the Committee began in this matter in
August 2012, 1 have provided exhaustively detailed factual information and over
550 pages of documents in response to the Committee’s requests for information
and documents. In doing so, T also continued to advance what I still regard as a
reasonable position in this matter: the Committee should determine that McKinley
& Associates falls within the “family name” exception to the fiduciary restrictions.

In the remainder of this letter I address at greater length cach of the three points outlined above.”

« Relying on the advice and guidance of my former attorney, after entering Congress
1 sold my ownership interest in McKinley & Associates with the understanding that
this sale would satisfactorily address and eliminate the need for that firm to remove
“McKinley” from its name. My good faith reliance on this legal advice and
guidance occurred in the context of receiving what I perceived as self-contradictory
and confusing guidance from the then Committee staff. The Committee’s proposed
report in this matter, and the proposal to issue a reproval based on the findings in
that report, unrealistically and unfairly minimizes that context of confusion.

To a non-lawyer layperson like me — and, I imagine, even to some of you on the Committee — the
requirements, the “do’s and don’ts,” of the “fiduciary restrictions” under the Ethics in
Government Act and House rules do not seem to be based on common sense and require clear
and consistent exposition to understand. As I think the record and documents I provided to the
Committee show, in 2010 and 2011 Committee on Ethics staff did not provide consistent
guidance on the “fiduciary restrictions” to me.

Yes, as my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee fully describes and acknowledges, soon after my
election to Congress in November 2010 there were members of the Committee staff who were
providing the “informal opinion™ that the “fiduciary restrictions” would necessitate changing the
name of McKinley & Associates (by removing my surname “McKinley™) because, as a provider
of architectural services, it is apparently considered to be a provider of professional services
imposing fiduciary obligations. However, in clear contrast to and in complete contradicrion of
this staff advice, on January 25, 2011 another counsel to the Committee - in fact the Director of

? Apart from the specific points covered in this letter, there numerous other statements and conclusions in the
Committee’s proposed report and proposed letter with which 1 disagree, including, but not limited to, the following,

On page 10, the Commiitee’s proposed report states: “Nevertheless, it must be noted that, at that time, both
Representative McKinley and his counsel and Committee staff knew that the only procedural solation to the matter
was a formal opinion from the Committee, not informal advice from its staff.”’ I am not sure what “procedural
solution” is intended to mean here, but if this statement is intended to mean that in 2011 I knew that the only
solution of the issues arising under the “fiduciary restrictions™ was a formal opinion letter from the Committes, this
statement is wrong. As ] have emphasized throughout this letter and in my other responses to the Committee, at that
time { believed — based on my then attorney’s firm advice ~ that, if issues existed under the “fiduciary restrictions,”
these issues could be resolved by the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates.
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Financial Disclosure at that time - called my attorney at that time, Charles J. Kaiser, to tell him
(as Mr. Kaiser emailed to me the following day):

[The Committee] staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Associates does not
provide professional services involving a fiduciary relationship. As you will recall, this
is the critical element that created the difficulties under the House Ethics Manual. [He]
also agreed that McKinley & Associates qualified as a “family business” and so the name
would not need to be changed.

For two months, McKinley & Associates and I operated on the understanding ~ based on this
analysis and opinion (albeit informal) by Committee counsel - that McKinley & Associates
would not need to change its name. Then, yet again in clear contrast and complete contradiction
~ but this time of the guidance received on January 25 from the Director of Financial Disclosure
- yet another Committee counsel contacted Mr, Kaiser to tell him the counsel he had spoken
with on January 25 was no longer with the Committee and that this new counsel was going to
recommend, in sum, that the Committee take the position that McKinley & Associates did
provide services involving a fiduciary relationship and that the name “McKinley” would have to
be removed from the firm name.

Throughout the process of receiving contradictory, and so to me, unclear guidance from
Committee staff, my attorney Mr. Kaiser provided an essentially consistent and clear explanation
of the requirements imposed by the “fiduciary restrictions™ “If McKinley & Associates is
considered to be a firm providing professional services involving a fiduciary relationship, then it
appears you are left with two choices: (1) change the name, or (2) completely divest yourself of
your interest in the company.. . " This clearly stated analysis from Mr. Kaiser — either change
the company name or divest myself of my interest in the company ~ established a firm frame of
understanding for me through which I viewed my obligations under House Ethics standards with
respect to McKinley & Associates. Even the Committee’s proposed report appears to take note
of the consistency and persistency of Mr. Kaiser’s guidance: “[] Mr. Kaiser’s internal discussions
with Representative McKinley and his team repeatedly referenced the sale [of my interest in
McKinley & Associates] as a fully-fleshed alternative pathway to EIGA compliance.”

? See the November 24, 2010 email from Mr. Kaiser to me, inciuded as Exhibit 3 to this letter. Please note that, if
my discussion and documentation (in this and other responses by me to the Committes) of communications between
me and attorney Charles J. Kaiser may be viewed as constituting a waiver by me of attorney-client privilege with
respect to communications with Mr. Kaiser, no such waiver is intended to be implied, and none should be inferred,
respecting any other communications between me and any other counsel.

“ See the Committee’s proposed report at page 9. As I have previously described to the Committee, and as the
Committee discusses in its proposed report, a plan to have the McKinley & Associates ESOP purchase my interest
over time was in the works before my election to Congress. But this does not at all contradict the fact that I also
understood and believed, based on advice from Mr. Kaiser, that the sale of my interest was, in the Committee’s
description, “a fully-fleshed alternative pathway to EIGA compliance.” At page 7 in its proposed report, the
Committee states: “While it is true that Representative McKinley may have mistakenly viewed full divestment as a
solution to the ethics issues the Firm presented for him, it is not the only reason for such a sale.” For the
Committee’s purposes in concluding that any violation by me in this matter was unintentional, the only relevant part
of this sentence should be the first part: It is true that I “mistakenly viewed full divestinent as a solution to the ethics
issues” in this matter,

It also appears that McKinley & Associates and its President, Ernie Dellatorre, also understood that sale of my
ownership interest in the company would resolve any ethics issues and would permit the company to keep the name

4
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The proposed Comumittee report unrealistically and unfaitly minimizes the context of
contradictory guidance on the “fiduciary restrictions” provided by Committee staff to me and my
then counsel in 2010 and 2011.° Please understand that I am not saying that the Committee’s
inconsistent guidance caused me to rely on the consistent - but, as I now understand, mistaken —
guidance of my attorney at that time. [ am, however, asking you ~ as my colleagues who have
come to the House from varied private businesses, occupations, and professions - to put
yourselves in my shoes as a novice to the House and to the House ethics process in late 2010 and
early 2011. I am asking you to understand from that perspective that it was an understandable -
not an unreasonable — impulse to rely on the clear counsel of a trusted attorney to make sense of
what | perceived to be self-contradictory guidance from the Committee on the arcane
requirements of the “fiduciary restrictions.”

Again, I am not trying to say that the Comumittee or its staff is to blame for what occurred here. 1
am not saying that, viewed in hindsight, I should have relied on private counsel. But neither
should I be “reproved” by the Committee for relying on my own attorney at that time to make
sense for me — in a matter of great importance to me and the hardworking employee-owners of
McKinley & Associates — of what [ reasonably perceived as the confusing counsel being
provided by the Committee. The proposed Committee report itself states: “The evidence
suggests that Representative McKinley did indeed disclose all pertinent facts to Mr. Kaiser, and
Representative McKinley appears to have actually relied on the advice Mr. Kaiser gave him.”

“McKinley & Associates.” In an April 30, 2013 email to attorney George B. Sanders explaining the company’s
understanding of the requirements imposed by the “fiduciary restrictions,” Mr. Dellatore wrote: “It was our
understanding that a name change would be required if DBM [David B. McKinley] maintained any percentage
ownership.. .. This understanding - which appears to have been the same as my understanding of the relevant
ethics requirements — was also based on guidance provided to the company by attorney Kaiser, who was advising
the company through the process at that time. (This email s cited as document MCK000079 in Exhibit 8 to the
Committee’s proposed report.)
* For example, regarding the January 23, 2011 call from the Committee’s the Director of Financial Disclosure to Mr.
Kaiser, the Committee’s proposed report says:
Neither the Director of Financial Disclosure nor the Committee has a similar record or recollection of such
a conversation. The Commities does not know what Mr. Kaiser told the Director of Financial Disclosure
regarding the facts of the matter on this call, whe initiated the call and for what purpese. Without this
information, it is difficult for the Committee to judge precisely why Mr. Kaiser recalls this single
teleconference resulting in advice so vastly different than that provided by the Committee on a consistent
basis throughout the remainder of this process.
The purely theoretical approach of this analysis ignores the often messy and inconvenient way in which events occur
in the real world, Things happen. And this call from the Committee’s then Director of Financial Disclosure
happened, even if what he said in the call did not fit in with what some others from the Committee staff had said or
would say. Look carefully at the detail of Charles Kaiser’s email to me the day after this call occurred recounting
with specificity the range of things discussed in the call. {See Exhibit 4 to this Jetter, previousty provided to the
Comunittee in the document production accompanying my letter of May 1, 2013; this email is Exhibit 13 to the
Commitiee’s proposed report.] Isn’t plain to from your reading that Mr. Kaiser ~ the very day following his call
with the Committes’s Director of Financial Disclosure - recalled this “vastly different” advice because Committee
counsel actually provided this “vastly different” advice? Against this essentially contemporaneous evidence, the
proposed report offers no actual evidence at all in contradiction in contradiction of Mr. Kaiser’s email narrative.
Whatever the Committee determines to do in this matter, wouldn’t it better for the Committee to forthrightly accept
and factor into its determination how its guidance and advisory function may have misfired here, so that there is less
chance of a similar misfire affecting other Members in the future?
¢ Committee proposed report at page 17.



138

As 1 stated at the outset of this letter, I urge the Committee to handle this matter as an advisory
matter, without issuing any public report. If you decide, however, that my good faith reliance on
the advice of counsel merits a public teport to keep others in the House community from making
a similar mistake, I ask you to agree that this important educational end can be achieved fully
without reproving me and without finding that my actions reflected on the House.

The Committee’s proposed report suggests, incorrectly, that I did not notify the Committee
of the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates until sometime after August 24, 2012.
In fact, as clearly described in my May 1, 2013 submission to the Committee on Ethics, in
June 2011 I told the then Chairman of the Committee that I had sold my interest in the
firm. A determination by the Committee to issue a report or reproval based, even in part,
on an erroncous and incomplete understanding of when I informed the Committee of this
sale would be unfair.

The Committee’s proposed report states, at page 12, that a telephone conversation between me
and the Committee’s Chief Counsel at that time “appears to be the first time in which
Representative McKinley notified the Committee of his sale of his interest in” McKinley &
Associates. This is contrary to the record before the Committee in this matter. Shortly after June
27, 2011 — within days of receiving the Committee’s advisory letter dated June 24, 2011 ~1 told
the then Committee Chairman that I had already sold McKinley & Associates.” My May 1, 2013
letter to the Committee, submitted through counsel, describes the following exchange in June
2011 with the then Chairman of the Committee:

Rep. MeKinley recalls that, within a day or two of receiving the Committee’s {June 24,
2011] letter on June 27, 2011, he approached Chairman Bonner before the Speaker’s
podium on the floor of the House. With regard to the Committee’s letter, Rep. McKinley
recalls saying to Chairman Bonner, “what the [heck] is this,” or some other similarly
expressive phrase. Rep. McKinley told Chairman Bonner that “McKinley Engineering”
was the original name of is firm, not the name of his father’s firm (as the Comumittee’s
letter incorrectly stated). Rep. McKinley recalls Chairman Bonner responding, in
substance, that the Comunitiee was not aware of this but had thought that “McKinley
Engineering” was the name of his father’s firm; Chairman Bonner said that this could
make a difference to the Comumittee’s determination. Rep. McKinley then responded

? As described in greater detail in my May 1, 2013 letter to the Commitiee, on April 11, 2011 I entered into
a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) with the McKinley & Associates Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP”). Through this MOU, 1 1) committed to the sale of all my remaining stock in the company to the ESOP
and 2) agreed that I had “no further control over the ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates, Inc.” As
discussed above, previous to my eatering into this MOU my then attorney Charles Kaiser had advised me
consistently that there were two compliance options with respect 1o the House ethics restrictions on providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship: either change the name of the company or divest my
interest in the company. By entering into the MOU with the McKinley & Associates ESOP on April 11, 2011,1
believed that I had taken satisfactory good faith steps to effectuate this second compliance option as described by
attorney Kaiser, that is, divestment of my interest in the company. On December 31, 201 1, this MOU was followed
up by a formal agreement regarding the sale of my ownership interest in McKinley & Associates to the ESOP. This
sale was contingent on an independent valuation of the fitin; because of the time needed to complete this valuation,
and because of ERISA requirement, the actual sale was not completed until April 30, 2012.

6
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that, in any event, it did not matter anymore because he had already sold his company, by
which Rep. McKinley meant the arrangement put in place by the MOU.} Chairman
Bonner said that he did not know this and that he had hoped it would not come to this.

Why doesn’t the fact of my June 2011 exchange on the House floor with the then Chairman of
the Committee on Ethics regarding the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates appear in
the Committee’s proposed report? Referencing my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee as the
source, the Committee report does cite other portions of this same House floor exchange with the
Committee’s former Chairman as apparent fact.”

My June 2011 exchange with the then Chairman of the Committee regarding the sale of my
interest in McKinley & Associates is another rough fact about the Committee’s past process in
this matter that should be fully acknowledged and considered by the Committee in this case, not
ignored because it does not fit into a predetermined narrative and conclusion. Does this fact
mean that I provided procedurally perfect notice to the Committee at that early stage about the
sale of McKinley & Associates? No, not at all. As my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee
states with regard to this exchange with the former Committee Chairman, I regret not having
responded more formally at the time — including by providing a more formal notification of the
sale - to the Committee’s June 24, 2011 letter regarding McKinley & Associates. But I did
respond to and did inform the then Committee Chairman. To the extent that this fact is ignored,
to the extent that the Committee’s determination as to whether or not to issue a reproval to me
would be based on the erroneous suggestion that I did not inform the Committee of the sale until
essentially forced to do so in late August 2012, that determination would be unfair and wrong.

I have cooperated fully with the inquiry the Committee began in this matter in August
2012. I have provided exhaustively detailed factual information and over 550 pages of
documents in response to the Committee’s requests for information and documents. In
doing so, I also continued to advance what I still regard as a reasonable position in this
matter: the Committee should determine that McKinley & Associates falls within the
“family name” exception to the fiduciary restrictions.

On August 24, 2012, the Committee sent me a letter requesting an explanation of the status of
efforts to rename McKinley & Associates. On March 18, 2013, the Committee sent me a
detailed written request for documents and explanatory information. Through letters submitted
on my behalf by my current counsel, Mr. Baran and Mr. Walker, I responded to these requests at
length and in specific detail, including with over 550 pages of responsive documents that
accompanied my May 1, 2013 response to the Committee’s March 18, 2013 letter. My responses
also argued and supported my strong and continuing central view on this matter: the name
“McKinley & Associates” for my former architecture and engineering firm is a “family name,”
therefore meeting an exception to the “fiduciary restrictions.” The Committee’s proposed report
rejects this position, but I respectfully urge the full Committee to reconsider my position. 1
won’t repeat in this letter all the facts and arguments that support finding that “McKinley &

® See footnote 2.

® See page 12 of the Committee’s proposed report, regarding the Comenittee’s error in assuming that McKinley
Engineering was the name of my father’s firm: “[Representative McKinley] apparently approached Representative
Bonner on the floor of the House and stated, ‘what the [heck] is this,” and explalued the factual error.”

7
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Associates” is a family name. These facts and arguments are set out primarily in my September
14, 2012 letter to the Committee (Exhibit 1 to this letter), and I again ask the Members of the
Committee to review that letter in full. The following paragraph from that September 14, 2011
letter, however, summarizes the substantial basis for determining that use of the McKinley &
Associates name is not contrary to the restrictions relating to fiduciary professions:

[A] number of factors support your approval of continued use of the name
“McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley’s former firm. “McKinley” is a
well-known family and historical name in West Virginia. The “McKinley” name
in engineering and building design was originally established in West Virginia by
Rep. McKinley's father, Johnson B. McKinley, and was reinforced by him
through his long, public Association with McKinley & Associates. Entirely
independent of Rep. McKinley’s status as a Member of Congress, “McKinley &
Associates” has long been — and remains — an established brand name in the
provision of the highest-quality engineering, architecture, and interior design
services.

As the legislative history of the Ethics in Government Act makes cleat, the Act’s
restrictions (and the parallel restrictions under House Rule XX V) on the use of a
“Member’s name” are intended to address “cases where outside interests attempt
to trade on the prestige of Members of Congress.” This concern does not exist
with McKinley & Associates. The company trades on the “McKinley” name as
an historical name in West Virginia and as a “family name” in engineering and
building design. The company trades on ~ indeed, relies upon — the name
“Mclfoinley & Associates” as an established and well-known brand name in its
field.

'® The discussion in the Committees proposed report regarding the business names used by my father is
yet another point at which that report minimizes or ignores hard, contrary evidence. The report provides a
list of some names used by my father professionally from about 1954 through 1992, This list was compiled
through a review of still extant engineering drawings from my father’s records. This list includes such
titles as “Engineers,” “Consulting Engineer,” “Eng’r,” and “P.E.”; none of the names on this list include the
word “engineering.” The report, at page 5, concludes that “Johnson McKinley appears to have done
business” under the names on this list. [ provided this list to the Committee as a document accompanying
my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee.

In my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee, I also provided the Committee with an online link to a PDF of
the minutes of the regular meeting of the Council of Beech Bottom, West Virginia, for November 4, 1986
(http://beechbottomwy org/pdfs/1986.pdf, at page 257) which publicly record and refer to my father’s
business as “Johnson B. McKinley £ngineering” (Emphasis added; although I have previously provided
the Committee with a link to these minutes, 1 include the relevant pages from those minutes with this letter
as Exhibit 5.) And yet, in contrast to the Comumittee’s apparent willingness to accept as authoritative a list
of names (provided by me) that does not include the word “engineering,” it seems to dismiss (and, frankly,
seems to mischaracterize) the use of the name “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering” by an independent
source. About the evidence supporting use of the name “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering,” the proposed
report, at page 6, states, vaguely and dismissively: “Representative McKinley, through his counsel, has
stated that the name ‘Johnson B. McKinley Engineering’ was also used at some point.” In its investigation,
did the Committee not go to the link I provided to actually view the relevant document? As of August 19,
2016, the refevant minutes of the Beech Bottom Council were still there. My point here is not that this
independent source showing the use of the name “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering” for my father’s
practice 13, by itself, determinative of the question of whether “McKinley & Associates” meets the “family

8
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Thank you again for the opportunity to respond directly to all of you on the Committee’s draft
proposed report and draft letter. As I have discussed above, the proposed response of a reproval
~in whatever form issued by the Committee ~ is disproportionate and unjustified in this matter,
in which I acted in good faith reliance on the advice of my counsel at the time that T was
complying with House requirements. And, certainly, because any violation by me of House
standards was unintentional, no separate letter of reproval is merited here."!

Sincerely,

m?E&«\

B. McKinley
nber of Congress

name” exception. My point here is that this source seems to have been unfairty weighed and accounted for
in the Committee’s review and consideration of the evidence relevant to determination of the “famity
name” guestion.

1 : . ; . . .
! See, for example, the most recent public action taken by the Committee on July 14, 2016 in a matter in which the
Committee determined that the Member’s violations were not intentional.
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Joe Courtney, Connecticut COMMITTEE ON ETHICS Facsimile: (202) 225-7392
August 24, 2012

The Honorable David B. McKinley
U.8. House of Representatives

313 Cannon House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Dear Representative McKinley:

On June 24, 2011, the Committee on Ethics {Committee) issued a letter to you in response
to your letters dated January 3, 2011, and April 14, 2011, regarding your engineering firm. As the
letter indicated, the Commitiee determined that pursuant to Section 502 of the Ethics in
Government Act (5 U.S.C. app. 4 § 502(a)) and House Rule XXV, clause 2, your engineering
firm, McKinley & Associates, Inc. (the Firm), provides fiduciary services. As such, your name
could not be used as a part of the Firm’s name. The Comunittee thus instructed you in its letier that
a change of the Firm’s name was required. The Committee noted that it accepted your indication
that the current Firm could reasonably be seen as a practical continuation of a firm started by your
father, Johnson McKinley, and found that changing the Firm’s name to McKinley Engineering, the
name of your father's former firm, along with a clear association to your father, would be
permissible for the purposes of House Rules.

To date, it does not appear that you have changed the name of the Firm. Your 2011
Financia! Disclosure Statement, that you filed on May 15, 2012, continues to list the Firm as
McKinley and Associates. In addition, the Firm's Web site still Hsts McKinley and Associates as its
name and there is no indication that the name of the Firm has or will be changed. Further,
according to publicly available information, the Firm appears to still be registered with the West
Virginia Secretary of State as McKinley and Associates.

The Commitiee expects you to change the name of the Firm, as directed. Failure to do so
may be viewed as a knowing violation of the Ethics in Government Act and House Rule XXV,
clause 2, and may result in further proceedings against you by the Committes. The Committee
thus requests a detailed explanation of the status of your efforfs to change the name of the Firm,
and what that name will be. If the firm intends to use the name McKinley Engineering, please
inform the Committee how the firm will indicate the clear association between the name and
your father,

We request that you provide a response to this letter by September 7, 2012. To the extent
that any part of your response is not a complete written response signed by you, we request that
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The Honorable David B, McKinley
Page 2

the response.be provided under vath or affitmation. (We have enclosed a declaration for this
purpase.)

i you have any further questions regarding this letier, please contact the Commitiee’s Chief
Counsel and Staff Director Dan Schwager, the Director of Investigations, Deborah Sue Mayer, or
Comumitiee counsel Patrick McMullen, at extension 5-7103.

%BOW% SS&Z«& Z. {at

Jo Bonner Linda T, Sénchez
Chairman Ranking Member
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Declaration

I, Representative David B. McKinley, declare (certify, verify, or state) under penalty of
perjury that the response and factual assertions contained in the attached letter dated
2012, relating to my response to the August 24, 2012, Committee on

Ethics request for information, are true and correct.

Signature:

Name: Representative David B. McKinley

Date: , 2012
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Jan Witold Baran
202.7:9 008

April 19, 2016 G wileyrein.com

The Honorable Charles W. Dent, Chairman

The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
Committee on Ethics

U.S. House of Representatives

1015 Longworth House Office Building

! Washington, D.C.

Re:  Response to request for additional information
Dear Chairman Dent and Ranking Member Sanchez:

Through an oral request from Patrick McMullen, Director of Investigations, the
Committee has asked for additional information from Rep. David B, McKinley
regarding receipt of pay by Rep. McKinley's father, Johnson B. McKinley, for
consulting work performed for Rep. McKinley’s former firm (the “Firm”). In
response to this request, Rep. McKinley has authorized counsel to transmit the
following representations by him to the Committee:

Rep. McKinley recalls several of the projects on which his father was
very much involved with the Firm in the 1980s, including: the water
line expansion of the Glendale Heights Public Service District; the
West Liberty College sewage treatment plant; the Martins Ferry
retaining walls; and contract administration of Tire America and of
the Ohio Valley Drug Company.

As for compensation, Rep. McKinley recalls his father was paid
$10,000 for one of these projects. He specifically recalls this
payment because his father had been generous with his professional
time but had not billed the Firm for every quarter hour. When the
company nonetheless provided appropriate payment of $10,000,
Johnson B. McKinley balked at cashing the check for several weeks
but eventually deposited the funds, just as he did previous

payments. Rep. McKinley recalls that these previous payments were
for smaller amounts, in the range of $2,000 to $4,000 each.

Rep. McKinley notes that the payments were made as much as 30
years ago (or more) and that the Firm at the time of those payments
was using a different bank, different CPA, and a different
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April 19,2016
Page 2

comptroller than today; further the Firm was not computerized or
automated at the time of these payments (that did not occur until the
early 1990s). Rep. McKinley also emphasizes that none of the
records of the Firm are now available to him.

Although submitted by counsel on his behalf, the information and representations
provided through this letter were thoroughly reviewed by Rep. McKinley, were
authorized and confirmed by him as accurate to the best of his knowledge,
recollection, and belief at this time, and were approved and authorized by him for
submission to the Committee, as was this letter.

We hope the information provided through this letter will enable a prompt
resolution of this matter. If the Committee has further questions, however, please

. do not hesitate to let us know.

Sincerely,

Jian Witold Baran

Counsel for Rep. David B. McKinley
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August 22, 2016

The Honorable Charles W. Dent, Chairman

The Honorable Loretta T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
Members of the Committee on Ethics

U.S. House of Representatives

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re:  Response of Representative David B, McKinley to the Committee’s proposed report and
letter

Dear Members of the Committee on Ethics:

Thank you for this opportunity to respond to the draft report and draft letter of reproval provided
to me by the staff of the Committee on Ethics.

Following the clear and repeated advice of my attorney at that time, after I was elected and
sworn into niy first term in Congress I sold my remaining interest in the McKinley & Associates
architecture and engineering firm to that firm’s Employee Stock Option Plan to comply with my
obligations under House ethics requirements, specifically with the so-called “fiduciary
restrictions.” I have since come to understand that the advice of my then attorney in explaining
and interpreting to me House Committee on Ethics requirernents and guidance, and my reliance
on that advice, were mistaken. I regret relying on that advice.

1 appreciate that, after a long review, the Committee on Ethics in its proposed report has not
found that I acted in bad faith in relying on my then attorney’s legal advice; that there is no
finding by the Committee of any knowing or willful violation by me; and that, in fact, the
Committee’s own proposed findings indicate that my actions were, at worst, negligent. And yet,
based on these findings, the Committee proposes the disproportionate response of issuing a letter
of reproval to me.

Even recognizing that a Committee on Ethics reproval is not considered a sanction under the
Committee’s own procedural rules, I take the strongest exception to this disproportionate and
unjustified proposed response. I urge the Committee to handle this matter as an advisory matter,
without issuing any public report. .But, even if you decide that my good faith reliance on the
advice of counsel merits a public report to keep others in the House community from making a

PRINTED ON RECYCLED PAPER
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similar mistake, I respectfully ask you to agree that this important educational end can be fully
achieved without reproving me through that report and without a finding that my actions
reflected on the House. The issuance of a separate letter of reproval in this matter, where any
violations by me were unintentional, is clearly not merited and would be contrary to the most
recent Committee precedent.

As noted, this matter concerns my compliance with restrictions on affiliating with or receiving
compensation from a firm that provides professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.
That is, this matter concerns the House “fiduciary restrictions.” In its inquiry, the Committee has
focused on the continued use of the name McKinley & Associates by the West Virginia
architecture and engineering firm I founded in 1981. Prior to entering Congress in 2011, I was a
principal, officer, and director of McKinley & Associates, but my wife Mary McKinley and I no
longer own any stock in McKinley & Associates; I have no other affiliation with the firm either
as an owner, board member, executive, employee, or consultant. Through letters submitted on
my behalf by my current counsel, Jan Witold Baran and Robert L. Walker, to the Commitiee on
September 24, 2012 and May 1, 2013, and through a substantial volume of accompanying
documents, I have described and discussed at length my efforts to understand and to comply with
these “fiduciary restrictions.”’ The two earlier letters are included as Exhibits 1 and 2 to this
letter and, although they are lengthy, I urge you to read through them carefully. I believe
strongly that your review will convince you that, based on the advice of my attorney at that time,
1 acted in good faith to comply with the “fiduciary restrictions™ and did not intentionally violate
those restrictions.

Although I urge my colleagues on the Committee to carefully review all the arguments and
information in my earlier letters, [ want to emphasize in this letter the following points:

+ Relying on the advice and guidance of my former attorney, after entering Congress
I sold my ownership interest in McKinley & Associates with the understanding that
this sale would satisfactorily address and eliminate the need for that firm to remove
“McKinley” from its name. My good faith reliance on this legal advice and
guidance occurred in the context of receiving whit I reasonably perceived as self-
contradictory and confusing guidance from the then Committee staff. The
Committee’s proposed report in this matter, and the proposal to issue a reproval
based on the findings in that report, unrealistically and unfairly minimizes that
context of confusion.

+ The Committee’s proposed report appears to suggest, incorrectly, that I did not
notify the Committeeof the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates until
sometime after August 24, 2012. In fact, as clearly described in'my May 1, 2013
submission to the Committee on Ethics, in June 2011 I told the then Chairman of
the Committee that I had sold my interest in the firm. I do not knew why the
Committee’s proposed report ignores this fact, especially when the report cites other
parts of this same exchange with the then Chairman as apparent fact. I do know
that a determination by the Committee to issue a report or reproval based, even in

! 1 have also argued ~ and T maintain — that the facts in this case do not make out a violation because the name
“McKinley & Associates” should be found to fall within the “family name” exception to the “fiduciary restrictions.”

2
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part, on an erroneous and incomplete understanding of when I informed the
Committee of this sale would be unfair.

e I have cooperated fully with the inquiry the Committee began in this matter in
August 2012. I have provided exhaustively detailed factual information and over
550 pages of documents in response to the Committee’s requests for information
and documents. In doing so, T also continued to.advance what I still regard asa
reasonable position in this matter: the Committee should determine that McKinley
& Associates falls within the “family name” exception to the fiduciary restrictions.

In the remainder of this Jetter | address at greater length cach of the three points outlined above”

o Relying on the advice and guidance of my former attorney, after entering Congress
1 sold my ownership interest in McKinley & Associates with the understanding that
this sale would satisfactorily address and eliminate the need for that firm to remove
“McKinley” from its name. My good faith reliance on this legal advice and
guidance occurred in the context of receiving what I perceived as self-contradictory
and confusing guidance from the then Committee staff. The Committee’s proposed
report in this matter, and the proposal to issue a reproval based on the findings in
that report, unrealistically and unfairly minimizes that context of confusion.

To a non-lawyer layperson like me — and, I imagine, even to some of you on the Committee — the
requirements, the “do’s and don’ts,” of the “fiduciary restrictions™ under the Ethics in
Government Act and House rules do not seem to be based on common sense and require clear
and consistent exposition to understand. As I think the record and documents I provided to the
Committee show, in 2010 and 2011 Committee on Ethics staff did not provide consistent
guidance on the “fiduciary restrictions™ to me.

Yes, as my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee fully describes and acknowledges, soon after my
election to Congress in November 2010 there were members of the Committee staff who were
providing the “informal opinion” that the “fiduciary restrictions” would necessitate changing the
name of McKinley & Associates (by removing my surname “McKinley™) because, as a provider
of architectural services, it is apparently considered to be a provider of professional services
imposing fiduciary obligations. However, in clear contrast to and in complete contradiction of
this staff advice, on January 25, 2011 another counsel to the Committee — in fact the Director of

? Apart from the specific points covered in this letter, there numerous other statements and conclusions in the
Committee’s proposed report and proposed letter with which 1 disagree, including, but not limited to, the following.

On page 10, the Committee’s proposed report states: “Nevertheless, it must be noted that, at that time, both
Representative McKinley and his counsel and Committee staff knew that the only procedural solution to the matter
was a formal opinion from the Committee, not informal advice from its staff.” I am not sure what “procedural
solution™ is intended to mean here, but if this statement is intended to mean that in 2011 I knew that the only
solution of the issues arising under the “fiduciary restrictions” was a formal opinion letter from the Committee, this
statement is wrong. As I have emphasized throughout this letter and in my other responses to the Committee, at that
time I believed — based on my then attorney’s firm advice - that, if Issues existed under the “fiduciary restrictions,”
these issues could be resolved by the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates.
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Financial Disclosure at that time ~ called my attorney at that time, Charles J. Kaiser, to tell him
(as Mr. Kaiser emailed to me the following day):

[The Committee] staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Associates does not
provide professional services involving a fiduciary relationship. As you will recall, this
is the critical element that created the difficulties under the House Ethics Manual, [He]
also agreed that McKinley & Associates qualified as a “family business” and so the name
would not need to be changed.

For two months, McKinley & Associates and | operated on the understanding — based on this
analysis and opinion (albeit informal) by Committee counsel ~ that McKinley & Associates
would not need to change its name. Then, yet again in clear contrast and complete contradiction
— but this time of the guidance received on January 25 from the Director of Financial Disclosure
- yet another Committee counsel contacted Mr. Kaiser to tell him the counsel he had spoken
with on January 25 was no longer with the Committee and that this new counsel was going to
recommend, in swm, that the Committee take the position that McKinley & Associates did
provide services involving a fiduciary relationship and that the name “McKinley” would have to
be removed from the firm name.

Throughout the process of receiving contradictory, and so to me, unclear guidance from
Committee staff, my attorney Mr. Kaiser provided an essentially consistent and clear explanation
of the requirements imposed by the “fiduciary restrictions™ “If McKinley & Associates is
considered to be a firm providing professional services involving a fiduciary relationship, then it
appears you are left with two choices: (1) change the name, or (2) completely divest yourself of
your interest in the company.. ..”»> This clearly stated analysis from Mr. Kaiser - cither change
the company name or divest myself of my interest in the company — established a firm frame of
understanding for me through which 1 viewed my obligations under House Ethics standards with
respect to McKinley & Associates. Even the Committee’s proposed report appears to take note
of the consistency and persistency of Mr. Kaiser’s guidance: “[] Mr. Kaiser’s internal discussions
with Representative McKinley and his team repeatedly referenced the sale {of my interest in
McKinley & Associates] as a fully-fleshed alternative pathway to EIGA compliance.”

? See the November 24, 2010 email from Mr. Kaiser to me, included as Exhibit 3 to this letter. Please note that, if
my discussion and documentation (in this and other responses by me to the Committee) of communications between
me and attorney Charles J. Kaiser may be viewed as constituting a waiver by me of attorney-client privilege with
respect to communications with Mr. Kaiser, no such waiver is intended to be implied, and none should be inferred,
respecting any other communications between me and any other counsel.

4 See the Committee’s proposed report at page 9. As T have previously described to the Committee, and as the
Committee discusses in its proposed report, a plan to have the McKinley & Associates ESOP purchase my interest
over time was in the works before my election to Congress. But this does not at all contradict the fact that 1 also
understood and believed, based on advice from Mr. Kaiser, that the sale of my interest was, in the Committee’s
description, “a fully-fleshed alternative pathway to EIGA compliance.” At page 7 in its proposed report, the
Committee states: “While it is true that Representative McKinley may have mistakenly viewed full divestment as a
solution to the ethics issues the Firm presented for him, it is not the only reason for such a sale.” For the
Committee’s purposes in concluding that any violation by me in this matter was unintentional, the only relevant part
of this sentence should be the first part: It is true that I “mistakenly viewed full divestment as a solution to the ethics
issues™ in this matter.

1t also appears that McKinley & Associates and its President, Ernte Dellatorre, also understood that sale of my
ownership interest in the company would resolve any ethics issues and would permit the company to keep the name

4
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The proposed Committee report unrealistically and unfairly minimizes the context of
contradictory guidance on the “fiduciary restrictions” provided by Committee staff to me and my
then counsel in 2010 and 2011.° Please understand that [ am not saying that the Committee’s
inconsistent guidance caused me to rely on the consistent — but, as I now understand, mistaken -
guidance of my attorney at that time. 1am, however, asking you ~ as my colleagues who have
come to the House from varied private businesses, occupations, and professions -~ to put
yourselves in my shoes as a novice to the House and to the House ethics process in late 2010 and
early 2011. I am asking you to understand from that perspective that it was an understandable ~
not an unreasonable — impulse to rely on the clear counsel of a trusted attorney to make sense of
what I perceived to be self-contradictory guidance from the Committee on the arcane
requirements of the “fiduciary restrictions.”

Again, I am not trying to say that the Comumittee or its staff is to blame for what oceurred here. 1
am not saying that, viewed in hindsight, I should have relied on private counsel. But neither
should I be “reproved” by the Committee for relying on my own attorney at that time to make
sense for me ~ in a matter of great importance to me and the hardworking employee-ownets of
MeKinley & Associates — of what I reasonably perceived as the confusing counsel being
provided by the Committee. The proposed Committee report itself states: “The evidence
suggests that Representative McKinley did indeed disclose all pertinent facts to Mr. Kaiser, and
Representative McKinley appears to have actually relied on the advice Mr. Kaiser gave him.”®

“McKinley & Associates.” In an April 30, 2013 email 1o attorney George B. Sanders explaining the company's
understanding of the requirements imposed by the “fiduciary restrictions,” Mr. Dellatore wrote: “It was our
understanding that a name change would be required if DBM [David B. McKinley] maintained any percentage
ownership.. . .” This understanding - which appears to have been the same as my understanding of the relevant
ethics requirements ~ was also based on guidance provided to the company by attorney Kaiser, who was advising
the company through the process at that time. (This email is cited as document MCKO000079 in Exhibit 8 to the
Committee’s proposed report.}
* For example, regarding the January 25, 2011 call from the Committee’s the Director of Financial Disclosure to Mr.
Kaiser, the Committee’s proposed report says:
Neither the Director of Financial Disclosure nor the Committee has a similar record or recollection of such
a conversation. The Committee does not know what Mr. Kaiser told the Director of Financial Disclosure
regarding the facts of the matter on this call, who initiated the call and for what purpose. Without this
information, it is difficuit for the Committee to judge precisely why Mr. Kaiser recalls this single
teleconference resulting in advice so vastly different than that provided by the Committee on a consistent
basis throughout the remainder of this process.
The purely theoretical approach of this analysis ignores the often messy and inconvenient way in which events occur
in the real world. Things happen. And this call from the Committee’s then Director of Financial Disclosure
happened, even if what he said in the call did not fit in with what some others from the Committee staff had said or
would say. Look carefully at the detail of Charles Kaiser’s email to me the day after this call occurred recounting
with specificity the range of things discussed in the call. [See Exhibit 4 to this Jetter, previously provided to the
Committee in the document production accompanying my letter of May 1, 2013; this email is Exhibit 13 to the
Commitiee’s proposed report.] Isn’t plain to from your reading that Mr. Kaiser ~ the very day following his call
with the Comumittee’s Director of Financial Disclosure -- recalled this “vastly different” advice because Committee
counsel actually provided this “vastly different” advice? Against this essentially contemporaneous evidence, the
proposed report offers no actual evidence at all in contradiction in contradiction of Mr. Kaiser’s email narrative.
Whatever the Committee determines to do in this matter, wouldn't it better for the Committee to forthrightly accept
and factor into its determination how its guidance and advisory function may have misfired here, so that there is less
chance of a similar misfire affecting other Members in the future?
¢ Committee proposed report at page 17.
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As I stated at the outset of this letter, ] urge the Committee to handle this matter as an advisory
matter, without issuing any public report. If you decide, however, that my good faith reliance on
the advice of counsel merits a public report to keep others in the House community from making
a similar mistake, I ask you to agree that this important educational end can be achieved fully
without teproving me and without finding that my actions reflected on the House.

The Committee’s proposed report suggests, incorrectly, that I did not notify the Committee
of the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates until sometime after August 24, 2012.
In fact, as clearly described in my May 1, 2013 submission to the Committee on Ethics, in
June 2011 I told the then Chairman of the Committee that T had sold my interest in the
firm. A determination by the Committee to issue a report or reproval based, even in part,
on an erroneous and incomplete understanding of when I informed the Committee of this
sale would be unfair.

The Committee’s proposed report states, at page 12, that a telephone conversation between me
and the Committee’s Chief Counsel at that time “appears to be the first time in which
Representative McKinley notified the Committee of his sale of his interest in” McKinley &
Associates. This is contrary to the record before the Committee in this matter. Shortly after June
27, 2011 — within days of receiving the Committee’s advisory letter dated June 24, 2011 - I told
the then Committee Chairman that 1 had already sold McKinley & Associates.” My May 1, 2013
letter to the Committee, submitted through counsel, describes the following exchange in June
2011 with the then Chairman of the Committee:

Rep. McKinley recalls that, within a day or two of receiving the Committee’s [June 24,
2011} letter on June 27, 2011, he approached Chairman Bonner before the Speaker’s
podium on the floor of the House. With regard to the Committee’s letter, Rep. McKinley
recalls saying to Chairman Bonner, “what the [heck] is this,” or some other similarly
expressive phrase. Rep. McKinley told Chairman Bonner that “McKinley Engineering”
was the original name of his firm, not the name of his father’s firm (as the Committee’s
letter incorrectly stated). Rep. McKinley recalls Chairman Bonner responding, in
substance, that the Committee was not aware of this but had thought that “McKinley
Engineering” was the name of his father’s firm; Chairman Bonner said that this could
make a difference to the Committee’s determination. Rep. McKinley then responded

7 As described in greater detail in my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee, on April 11, 2011 I entered into
a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU) with the McKinley & Associates Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP™). Through this MOU, 1 1) committed to the sale of all my remaining stock in the company to the ESOP
and 2) agreed that | had “no further coatrol over the ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates, Inc.” As
discussed above, previous to my entering into this MOU my then attorney Charles Kaiser had advised me
consistently that there were two compliance options with respect to the House ethics restrictions on providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship: either change the name of the company or divest my
interest in the company. By entering into the MOU with the McKinley & Associates ESOP on April 11, 2011, ]
believed that 1 had taken satisfactory good faith steps to effectuate this second compliance option as described by
attorney Kaiser, that is, divestment of my interest in the company. On December 31, 2011, this MOU was followed
up by a formal agreement regarding the sale of my ownership interest in McK.inley & Associates to the ESOP. This
sale was contingent on an independent valuation of the fitm; because of the time needed to complete this valuation,
and because of ERISA requirement, the actual sale was not completed until April 30, 2012,

6
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that, in any event, it did not matter anymore because he had already sold his company, by
which Rep. McKinley meant the arrangement put in place by the MOU.® Chairman
Bonner said that he did not know this and that he had hoped it would not come to this.

Why doesn’t the fact of my June 2011 exchange on the House floor with the then Chairman of
the Committee on Ethics regarding the sale of my interest in McKinley & Associates appear in
the Committee’s proposed report? Referencing my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee as the
source, the Committee report does cite other portions of this same House floor exchange with the
Committee’s former Chairman as apparent fact.”

My June 2011 exchange with the then Chairman of the Committee regarding the sale of my
interest in McKinley & Associates is another rough fact about the Committee’s past process in
this matter that should be fully acknowledged and considered by the Committee in this case, not
ignored because it does not fit into a predetermined narrative and conclusion. Does this fact
mean that I provided procedurally perfect notice to the Commiittee at that early stage about the
sale of McKinley & Associates? No, not at all. As my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee
states with regard to this exchange with the former Committee Chairman, I regret not having
responded more formally at the time — including by providing a more formal notification of the
sale — to the Committee’s June 24, 2011 letter regarding McKinley & Associates. But I did
respond to and did inform the then Committee Chairman. To the extent that this fact is ignored,
to the extent that the Committee’s determination as to whether or not to issue a reproval to me
would be based on the erroneous suggestion that I did not inform the Committee of the sale until
essentially forced to do so in late August 2012, that determination would be unfair and wrong.

I have cooperated fully with the inquiry the Committee began in this matter in August
2012. I have provided exhaustively detailed factual information and over S50 pages of
documents in response to the Committee’s requests for information and documents. In
doing so, I also continued to advance what I still regard as a reasonable position in this
matter: the Committee should determine that McKinley & Associates falls within the
“family name” exception to the fiduciary restrictions.

On August 24, 2012, the Committee sent me a letter requesting an explanation of the status of
efforts to rename McKinley & Associates. On March 18, 2013, the Committee sent me a
detailed written request for documents and explanatory information. Through letters submitted
on my behalf by my current counsel, Mr. Baran and Mr, Walker, I responded to these requests at
length and in specific detail, including with over 550 pages of responsive documents that
accompanied my May 1, 2013 response to the Committee’s March 18, 2013 letter. My responses
also argued and supported my strong and continuing central view on this matter: the name
“McKinley & Associates” for my former architecture and engineering firm is a “family name,”
therefore meeting an exception to the “fiduciary restrictions.” The Committee’s proposed report
rejects this position, but I respectfully urge the full Committee to reconsider my position. I
won’t repeat in this letter all the facts and arguments that support finding that “McKinley &

® See footnote 2.

See page 12 of the Committee’s proposed report, regarding the Committee’s error in assuming that McKinley
Engineering was the name of my father’s firm: “[Representative McKinley] apparently approached Representative
Bounner on the floor of the House and stated, ‘what the [heck] is this,” and explained the factual error.”

7
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Associates” is a family name. These facts and arguments are set out primarily in my September
14, 2012 letter to the Committee (Exhibit 1 to this letter), and | again ask the Members of the
Committee to review that letter in full. The following paragraph from that September 14, 2011
letter, however, summarizes the substantial basis for determining that use of the McKinley &
Associates name is not contrary to the restrictions relating to fiduciary professions:

[A] number of factors support your approval of continued use of the name
“McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley’s former firm. “McKinley” is a
well-known family and historical name in West Virginia. The “McKinley” name
in engineering and building design was originally established in West Virginia by
Rep. McKinley’s father, Johnson B. McKinley, and was reinforced by him
through his long, public Association with McKinley & Associates. Entirely
independent of Rep. McKinley’s status as a Member of Congress, “McKinley &
Associates” has long been — and remains ~ an established brand name in the
provision of the highest-quality engineering, architecture, and interior design
services.

As the legislative history of the Ethics in Government Act makes clear, the Act’s
restrictions (and the parallel restrictions under House Rule XXV) on the use of a
“Member’s name” are intended to address “cases where outside interests attempt
to trade on the prestige of Members of Congress.” This concern does not exist
with McKinley & Associates. The company trades on the “McKinley” name as
an historical name in West Virginia and as a “family name” in engineering and
building design. The company trades on ~ indeed, relies upon — the name
“Mcl%nley & Associates” as an established and well-known brand name in its
field.

'® The discussion in the Committee’s proposed report regarding the business names used by my father is
yet another point at which that report minimizes or ignores hard, contrary evidence. The report provides a
list of some names used by my father professionally from about 1954 through 1992. This list was compiled
through a review of still extant engineering drawings from my father’s records. This list includes such
titles as “Engineers,” “Consulting Engineer,” “Eng’r,” and “P.E.”; none of the names on this list include the
word “engineering.” The report, at page 5, concludes that “Johnson McKinley appears to have done
business” under the names on this list. [ provided this list to the Committee as a document accompanying
my May 1, 2013 letter to the Committee.

In my May {, 2013 letter to the Committee, ] also provided the Committee with an online link to a PDF of
the minutes of the regular meeting of the Council of Beech Bottom, West Virginia, for November 4, 1986
(http://beechbottomwy.org/pdfs/1986.pdf, at page 257) which publicly record and refer to my father’s
business as “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering” (Emphasis added; although I have previously provided
the Committee with a link to these minutes, ! include the relevant pages from those minutes with this letter
as Exhibit 5.) And yet, in contrast to the Comimittee’s apparent willingness 1o accept as authoritative a list
of names (provided by me) that does not include the word “engineering,” it seems to dismiss (and, frankly,
seems to mischaracterize) the use of the name “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering” by an independent
source. About the evidence supporting use of the name “Johnson B, McKinley Engineering,” the proposed
report, at page 6, states, vaguely and dismissively: “Reps ive McKinley, through his counsel, has
stated that the name ‘Johnson B. McKinley Engineering’ was also used at some point.” In its investigation,
did the Committee not go to the link I provided to actually view the relevant document? As of August 19,
2016, the relevant minutes of the Beech Bottom Council were still there. My point here is not that this
independent source showing the use of the name “Johnson B. McKinley Engineering” for my father’s
practice is, by itself, determinative of the question of whether “McKinley & Associates” meets the “family

8
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Thank you again for the opportunity to respond directly to all of you on the Committee’s draft
proposed report and draft letter. As I have discussed above, the proposed response of a reproval
— in whatever form issued by the Committee — is disproportionate and unjustified in this matter,
in which I acted in good faith reliance on the advice of my counsel at the time that I was
complying with House requirements. And, certainly, because any violation by me of House
standards was unintentional, no separate letter of reproval is merited here.'’

Sincerely,
B IVl

d B. McKinley
efmber of Congress

—

name” exception. My point here is that this source seems to have been unfairly weighed and accounted for
in the Committee’s review and consideration of the evidence relevant to determination of the “family
name” question.

i See, for example, the most recent public action taken by the Committee on July 14, 2016 in 2 matter in which the
Committee determined that the Member’s violations were not intentional.
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Jan Witold Baran
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The Honorable Jo Bonner, Chairman

The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
Committee on Ethics

United States House of Representatives

1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re:  Response of Rep. David B. McKinley to August 24, 2012 Committee Letter

Dear Chairman Bonner and Ranking Member Sanchez:

By letier of August 24, 2012, you requested an explanation from the Honorable
David B. McKinley regarding the status of efforts to rename the West Virginia
engineering, architecture, and interior design firm of McKinley & Associates, Inc.,
in light of the Committee’s concerns that continued operation of the firm under that
name could violate provisions of the Ethics in Government Act that “prohibit a firm
that provides fiduciary services from using the name of a Member, even if the
Member is not compensated,” We were recently engaged by Rep. McKinley to
represent him in connection with his response to the Committee’s August 24%

request, !

It is important to note at the outset that Rep. McKinley and his wife no longer own
any stock in McKinley & Associates. The Employee Stock Option Plan (“ESOP”)
- in which neither Rep. McKinley nor his wife participate — now owns all of the
shares in McKinley & Associates previously owned by Rep. McKinley. The ESOP
now owns 100% of the shares of McKinley & Associates. Further, Rep. McKinley
has no other affiliation with McKinley & Associates as an owner, board member,
executive, employee, or consultant. Therefove, as described in more detail below,
Rep. McKinley has no association ot affiliation with McKinley & Associates which
could raise concerns - either for him or for McKinley & Associates -- pursuant to

U Your August 24 letter requested a respouse from Rep. McKinley by September 7, 2012, Tna
September 4, 2012, telephone call with Committee Staff Director and Chief Counsel Daniel A.
Schwager we asked on behalf of Rep. McKinley for an additional week to respond. Mr. Schwager
informed us by email on September §, 2012, that you had approved a one week extension for Rep.
McKinley's response, to September 14, 2012.
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the “fiduciary” restrictions set forth in the Ethics in Government Act and by House
Rule XXV.2

As explained further below, a number of factors support your approval of continued
use of the name “McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley's former firm.
“McKinley” is a well-known family and historical name in West Virginia. The
“McKinley” name in engineering and building design was originally established in
West Virginia by Rep. McKinley’s father, Johnson B. McKinley, and was
reinforced by him through his long, public association with McKinley &
Associates. Entirely independent of Rep, McKinley's status as a Member of
Congress, “McKinley & Associates” has long been —~ and remains ~ an established
brand name in the provision of the highest-quality engineering, architectural, and
interior design services.

As the legislative history of the Ethics in Government Act makes clear, the Act’s
restrictions (and the paralle] restrictions under House Rule XXV) on the use of a
“Member’s name” are intended to address *cases where outside interests attempt to
trade on the prestige of Members of Congress.” This concern does not exist with
MeKinley & Associates. The company trades on the “McKinley” narne as an
historical name in West Virginia and as a “family name” in engineering and
building design. The company trades on — indeed, relies upon - the name
“McKinley & Associates” as an established and well-known brand name in its field.
Rep. McKinley therefore requests that you approve the company’s continued use of
the name “McKinley & Associates” for all business purposes.

* As disclosed in his annual financial disclosure form covering calendar year 2011, Rep. MeKinley
holds the notes receivable with respect to loan agreements entered into by the ESOP to purchase
Rep. McKinley’s ownership interest in McKinley & Asseciates, Rep. McKinley owns the building
which houses McKinley & Associates; he jeases space in this building from McKinley & Associates
for use as an office (not for official purposes) and he pays the firm for use of their telephone and
internet/email services. Rep. McKinley’s wife, Mary, ssrves as Seoretary of the Board of Directors
and as a Vice President of MeKinley & Associates; if required to do so by the Committes, Mary
McKinley would relinquish these positions at the company. Rep. McKinley's daughier-in-law, Katy
MeKinley, is an employee of the company and an owner of the company by virtue of her
participation in the Employee Stock Ownership Plan, Rep. McKinley's oldest son also is the
financial advisor to the TSOP participants and the company’s secondary retivement fund,
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Background

The McKinley family name; the “McKinley & Associates” brand name

Nine generations of McKinleys are associated with the Wheeling area. The
MoKinley name in West Virginia dates back to the Revolutionary War Era, when
Captain John McKinley is known to have been an early Wheeling landowner in
what was then Virginia. Several generations later, Johnson Camden MeKinley,
Rep. McKinley’s grandfather, further established the McKinley name in the state
through his pioneering activity as an organizer and developer — a “baron” - of the
northern coal fields in West Virginia; he was recognized as such by induction into
the Coal Hall of Fame. He operated the McKinley Coal Company and was honored
when the community of McKinleyville in a neighboring county was named after
him. The Johnson Camden McKinley House — or “Willow Glen” — in Wheeling, is
one of the best-known historic houses in the state and endures as a monument to the
significant role Johnson C. McKinley played in the industrial history of West
Virginia.

Johnson B. McKinley, Rep. McKinley’s father, established the McKinley family
name in engineering and construction in the Wheeling area. Johnson B. McKinley
served as the City Engineer for Bethlehem, West Virginia, for many years; among
many other prominent projects, he was the engineer for a civic center and for a
sewage treatment plant. Over his many years of practice, Johnson B. McKinley
appears to have operated under a number of business names, including “Johnson B.
MeKinley Engineering” and, primarily, “Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting
Engineer.” Although he was not an architect, and therefore did not refer to
architectural services in his business name, Johnson B. McKinley designed
primarily in the area of municipal sewer and water projects and built many projects
under the name “Pean Construction.” It is unclear whether Johnson B. McKinley
ever incorporated his business operations.

From 1971 to 1973, Rep. McKinley worked with his father in his father’s
engineering and construction businesses and, together, they continued to develop
the reach and reputation of the McKinley name for these skills and services in the
tri-state and Wheeling regional area. Rep. McKinley left his father’s business after
about two vears. He founded his own firm, McKinley Engineering Company, in
1981. In 1989, after the firm began to offer architectural services, the company
name changed to McKinley & Associates, Inc. Despite any gap in time or
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variations in the company name, however, it is important to appreciale the
continuity of core professional services and reputation centered on the McKinley
name. It is equally important to appreciate the continuity of the public professional
collaboration between Johnson B, McKinley and David B. McKinley.

From the time David B. McKinley began his own firm in 1981 — and continuing for
some years beyond the renaming of this firm as McKinley & Associates in 1989 -
Johnson B, McKinley played an insttumental and very public role in solidifying and
expanding the reputation of that firm, and of the McKinley family name as used by
that firm, in engineering and architectural services in West Virginia and beyond.
Particularly during those periods when David McKinley was required to be absent
from the firm to attend the state legislature, Johnson B. McKinley served as the
eyes and ears for the firm that became McKinley & Associates on numerous project
sites, and in so doing became a public face of the firm. Although he also
maintained his own business, Johmson B. McKinley attended many meetings with
clients as the representative of McKinley & Associates; he walked many project
sites with owners as the representative of McKinley & Associates.

The continuity and close connection between Johnson B. McKinley and McKinley
& Associates continued even after Johnson B. McKinley’s death in 1996 at age 76.
McKinley & Associates completed all of Johnson B. McKinley’s unfinished work.
McKinley & Associates acquired all of Johnson B. McKinley’s business assets.
McKinley & Associates hired a site design specialist to continue providing services
that Johnson B. McKinley’s expertise had allowed the company to offer and that
clients of McKinley & Associates had come 10 expect.

Based on Johnson B, McKinley’s long association with and substantial work for the
firm, “McKinley & Associates” was and is inarguably a family name, independent
of Rep. McKinley’s service as a Member of Congress. Moreover, the established
brand name of “McKinley & Associates” -~ its recognized reputation for
professional excellence in engineering and architecture — further eliminates any
concern that the firm could be seen as trading on a Member’s “prestige.” With
three offices in West Virginia and Pennsylvania, McKinley & Associates has
completed major projects, not just in every county in West Virginia, but across the
couniry in North Carolina, South Carolina, Ohio, Pennsylvania, New York,
Kentucky, Minnesota, Tllinois, and Utah. These projects include hospitals,
secondary schools and colleges, federal and state government buildings, office and
commercial projects, historic preservation sites, and others. The reputation of
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McKinley & Associates has been earned — and continues to be confirmed - by the
work of its over 40 architects and mechanical, electrical, structural, and civil
engineers 2} The work of these professionals has garnered McKinley & Associates
wide recognition and numerous awards, including, naming only a few, the
prestigious West Virginia ATA (American Institute of Architects) Honor Award and
Merit Award and the Governor’s Award for Historic Preservation. Building from
the solid foundation of the McKinley family name in engineering, design, and
construction, it is on the work and reputation of these professionals — on the
MeKinley & Associates brand name that they maintained and extended -- that the
future success, and the future business, of McKinley & Associates rests.

Sale of Rep. McKinley’s interest in McKinley & Associates

Five years ago and prior to any consideration of public service David B. McKinley,
PH began the first of two steps in transferring ownership of the company to his
employees by initiating an Employee Stock Ownership Plan (ESOP) and selling it
30% of McKinley & Associates. Besides holding the stock of a company, an ESOP
is generally considered a form of retirement benetit for employees.

In April 0f 2011, Rep. McKinley then signed a Memorandum of Understanding
with the company ESOP to sell the balance of McKinley & Associates to them.
Rep. McKinley understood, in good faith, that the sale of his entire ownership
interest in McKinley & Associates would resolve, and was an appropriate response
to, any concerns expressed by the Comunittee as to the company’s continued vse of
the name “McKinley & Associates.”

As disclosed on his annual financial disclosure form for calendar year 2011, on
December 31, 2011, Rep. McKinley entered into a formal agreement to sell his
entire remaining ownership interest in McKinley & Associates - comprising 70% of
the company’s shares ~ to the ESOP. This sale was contingent on an independent
valuation of the firm. Because of the time needed to complete this valuation, and
because of ERISA requirement, the actual sale was not completed until April 30,
2012. On that date McKinley & Associates became 100% ESOP owned. Rep.

* Of course, the professional work of David B. MeKinley as an engineer has contributed significantly
to the “brand name” and reputation of McKinley & Associates, But, as the Commitize bas been
informed previously, for the past several years before entering Congress Rep. McKinley’s role with
the company bas not been in the practice of professional engineering but in the managerment of the
firm's more than 40 professionals and support employees.
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McKinley holds the note receivable with respect to the loan undertaken by the
ESOP to finance its purchase of this 70% interest in McKinley & Associates (as he
also holds the note recetvable for the loan undertaken by the ESOP to finance its
earlier purchase of its initial 30% share of the company’s stock). According to the
sale documents, Rep. McKinley does not retain any authority to direct or require the
ESOP to change the name of the company.

Restriction on permitting one’s name to be used by an entity that provides
covered services

The Ethics in Government Act of 1989, at Title 5 U.S.C. app. 4 § 502(a)(2),
provides that a Member or covered employee shall not “permit [his or her] name to
be used by any . . . firm, partnership, association, corporation, or other entity”
which, by reference to § 502(a)(1) of the statute, “provides professional services
involving a fiduciary relationship.” House Rule XXV, paragraph 2, §§ (a) and (b),
which reflect the same restrictions on fiduciary professions and uses of a Member’s
or covered employee’s name as are set forth in the Ethics in Government Act, limit
the scope of § 502(a)(1) of the Act to cover any entity that “provides professional
services involving a fiduciary relationship except for the practice of medicine.”
(Emphasis added.)

Recognizing that neither Committee action, nor even a House Rule, can trump the
statutory requirements of the Ethics in Government Act, the Committee on Ethics
has stated: “Notwithstanding the existing statutory prohibition, the Standards
Committee has authorized Member-physicians to practice medicine for a limited
amount of compensation.” (House Ethics Manual, page 218.) Indeed, the
Committee has permitted member-physicians to practice medicine for at least a
limited amount of compensation ever since the passage of the Ethics in Government
Act, and notwithstanding the fact that the legislative history of the act makes clear
that “medicine” ~ like “architecture™ — is one of the “professional activities
involv{ing] a ‘fiduciary’ relationship® the practice of which for compensation was
specifically intended to be covered by the Act’

¢ Unlike architecturs, the Committee does not appear to have concluded that engineering is a covered
“fiduciary” profession.

* House Bipartisan Task Force on Ethics, Report of the Bipartisan Task Force on Ethics on HR.
3660, 101* Cong., 1% Sess. 13-14 (Comm. Print, Comm. on Rules 1989), page 16: “The task force
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The same legistative history makes clear that “consulting and advising,” without
apparent limitation, are intended to be included as “fiduciary” professions covered
by the Act and, thus, by the House Rule. Yet -~ although neither the language of the
Act, the legislative history of the Act, nor the language of the House Rule on
fiduciary restrictions appear to contemplate such an exception — the Committee on
Fthics advises that a senior staffer, who is otherwise covered by the testrictions, “is
not prohibited from accepting compensation for political consulting services that he
or she provides to either a candidate (including one’s employing Member), a
political party, or a Member's leadership PAC.” (House Ethics Manual, at page
218)

Our purpose in citing these expansive interpretations and applications by the
Committee of the language of House Rule XXV, of the Ethics in Government Act,
and of the legislative history of the Act (as contained in the Report of the Bipartisan
Task Force on Ethics) is not to eriticize the Committee’s past approach to
interpreting and applying the fiduciary restrictions. To the contrary, the purpose in
citing these well-known past instances is to demonstrate clear Committee precedent
— in fact, a Commitiee tradition ~ for reading the language of the fiduciary
restrictions, and of the related legislative history, flexibly and pragmatically when
there is a reasonable basis for doing so.

Approval of the continued use of the name “McKinley & Associates” by Rep.
McKinley’s former firm would not require you to reach outside of the language and
four corners of the Rule, the statue, or the legislative history, as was arguably done
by the Committee in the instances of interpretation and application cited above.
Your approval of the continued use of the name “McKinley & Associates” would
simply require you to approach the “fiduciary” restrictions -- and, in particular, the
related legislative history — as written in light of what they may be viewed
reasonably and soundly to permit (not in light of what they may be argued to
prohibit),

(Continued . . .)
intends the ban to reach, for example, services such as legal, real estale, consulting and advising,
insurance, medicine, architecture or financial.”
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Continued use of the name “McKinley & Associates” is consistent with the
restrictions on “fiduciary services”

In its section by section report on the Ethics in Government Act of 1989, and ag
repeatedly referred to above, the House Bipartisan Task Force on Ethics specifically
discussed a “family name” exception to the prohibition on the use of a Member’s
name by an entity that provides “fiduciary services™

[TThe task force understands that a law firm, real estate agency, or other firm that
bears a “family” name, as opposed to the name of the individual Member, officer,
or employee, would not have to change its name. Thus, the fact that a Member,
officer or employee is presently associated with 2 law firm founded by, and still
bearinég the name of his father would not require the firm to drop the “family”
name.

In its June 24, 2011, letter to Rep. McKinley the Committee appears to read this last
quoted sentence from the Bipartisan Task Force Report as describing and defining
the only circumstance under which a firm name will be considered a “family
name.” Admittedly, this also appears to be the overly narrow reading of “family
name” taken by the Committee in its Manual! But these circumstances -- that is,
where the firm in question is legally and factually the same entity as founded by,
and still bearing the specific name of, the father or other relative of the Member ~
can and should be viewed as only one example of the kind of family participation
in, and association with an entity, that supports a determination that the entity bears
a “family name.”

That the specific circumstances described in the Biparrisan Task Force Report were
intended as only one example of when the facts will support the finding of a “family
name” is evident from the fact that the key sentence (quoted above) begins with the
word “thus,” a common meaning of which is “as an example” or “for example.”

There may be a number of factual scenarios, therefore, under which the Committee
could, and should, determine that an entity bears a “famity name.” Rather than

“1d
7 House Ethics Manual, at page 221 and page 222, Example 32.
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being applied rigidly ouly where a present firm is legally and factually the identical
firm founded by a Member’s “father” (the Bipartisan Task Force Report does not,
after all, identify any other permissible family relationship), interpretation and
application of the “family name” exception should serve the actual, underlying
purpose of the restrictions on use of a Member's name by a “fiduciary services”
firm. As the Bipartisan Task Force Report makes clear, this underlying purpose is
to address the “potential for abuse . . . in cases where outside interests attempt to
trade on the prestige of Members of Congress . . .78 Where there is a reasonable
basis for the Comumitiee to determine that use in a firm’s name of the surname (or
“family name”) of a Member reflects historical factors or reflects some
demonstrable family association with the firm the Committee should determine that
the firm name gqualifies as & “family name.”

As detailed in this letier, there are ample grounds for the Committee to determine
that “McKinley & Associates” qualifies as a “family name.” Independent of Rep.
McKinley - and dating back to his grandfather Johnson Camden McKinley and,
before him, to the Revolutionary War — “MeKinley” is a recognized and prominent
family name in West Virginia history and business. Initially in agriculture and then
in the coal fields of West Virginia, the name of McKinley has been associated with
business. In the fields of engineering, construction, and design, Rep. McKinley’s
father, Johnson B. McKinley, first established and, for many years, grew the
reputation of the “McKinley” name in and around the Wheeling regional area,
Johnson B, McKinley founded the “McKinley” professional family name. Johnson
B, MeKinley imparted his professional bona fides, and the professional reputation
he first founded, to his association with “McKinley Engineering Company” and to
“McKinley & Associates” through his important and frequent work over many
years as the public eyes, ears, and representative of the firm (under both firm
names).

Just as the Committee should not unduly and rigidly limit application of the “family
name” exception to the single set of circumstances cited as one example in the
Bipartisan Task Force Report, the Committee should recognize that — even apart
from a firm name being a “family name” — there are other reasonable bases to
determine that a firm name is not an “attempt to trade on the prestige” of a Member
of Congress and is, therefore, permissible under both statute and House Rule. One
such basis should be found where a firm name that includes a Member’s surname is

8 Bipartisan Task Force Report at page 14.
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an established brand name in its professional ficld. As discussed above, “McKinley
& Associates” is an established brand name and industry leader — in Wheeling, in
West Virginia, in the tri-state area, and beyond - in engineering, architecture, and
interior design, As “McKinley & Associates™ has successfully completed numerous
high-profile projects under its current name for over 20 years, and as the reputation
and brand of the firm under this name has grown, the professional excellence of the
“McKinley & Associates” firm has been repeatedly recognized and awarded by
peer groups, professional associations and others. “McKinley & Associates” does
not trade on the “prestige” of Rep. McKinley as a Member of Congress. Frankly,
that kind of “prestige” would be worthless to the firm in the technical, results-
oriented industries in which it operates. “McKinley & Associates™ trades on its
recognized and established name and reputation for technical excellence and
practical success.

A final, related point should be noted about the scope of the “potential for abuse”
that the drafters of the Ethics in Government Act intended to address in imposing
restrictions on the use of a Member’s name by a “fiduciary” services firm.
Throughout the discussion in the Bipartisan Task Force Report on the restrictions
on the practice of “fiduciary” professions and the delivery of “fiduciary” services,
the emphasis is on the potential for conflict between a Member’s official,
representative duty to the public in general and the personal, private duty that may
be owed by a Member/professional to an individual client. The following passage
from the Report makes this focus clear:

‘When certain private positions and employment create for the Member or public
official a fiduciary or a representational responsibility to a private client or a limited
number of private parties, then such outside activities create the potential for a
serious conflict of interest. The conflict occurs in the clash of those responsibilities
and the divergence of public and private interests on a particular governmental
matter or in general government policylg

This central passage leads directly into the discussion in the Report about “the
potential for abuse of this fype of income in cases where outside interests attempt to
trade on the prestige of Members of Congress ., . (Emphasis added) Thus, it
appears that the concern of the drafters of the Ethics in Government Act about
outside entities “trading” on the “prestige of Members” was intended primarily to

°id
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address circumstance where such an entity would profit improperly by implying
that private clients would have, and would benefit from, an actual fiduciary or
representational relationship with a Member of Congress. As a general matter -
and absent other factors supporting use of a Member’s surname in a firm name ~ the
potential for such abuse may well exist in a law firm or in a consulting or advising
fitm, particularly in a small firm or practice. But the potential for this kind of abuse
by a firm providing architectural services (among other services) would appear to
be minimal. In the case of a large, established, industry-leading architectural firm
like McKinley & Associates, the potential for such abuse ~ for “trading” on Rep.
MeKinley’s status as a Member in this misleading way -~ is nonexistent.

Conclusion

As the Committee has been informed in previous submissions on behalf of Rep.
McKinley, a prohibition on McKinley & Associates use of its existing natme would
create severe financial hardship for all of the current employee/owners of the

firm. For their compensation and for their retirement savings, these
employee/owners are dependent on the continued success of McKinley &
Associates in a difficult economy. The goodwill and positive professional
reputation that the firm has engendered over the years attaches to the brand name
McKinley & Associates and would be lost if a name change were required.

But no such name change is required. Based on the information, and for the
reasons, set forth above, the name “McKinley & Associates,” as used by Rep.
David B, McKinley’s former fium, is a “family name,” an established brand name,
and is otherwise consistent with the intent and purpose of the restrictions imposed
by statute and House Rule on the provision of professional services involving a
fiduciary relationship. On behalf of Rep. McKinley, therefore, we respectfully urge
you to approve the firm’s continued use of the name “McKinley & Associates.”

13498665.1
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If you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter, please do not hesitate to
contact me, at 202-715-JJJiil or my colleague Robert L. Watker, at 202-719{il}

Sincerely,

an Witold Baran
Robert L. Walker
Counsel for Rep. David B. McKinley

13498665.1




171

Exhibit 2




172

i G0

OMBITTED A o e
1776 K STREET W COMMITTEE S Linics
WASHINGTON, OC 20006 Jan Witold Baran
PHONE  202.719.700¢ May 1’ 2013 202'719-

" Ellovieyrein.com

FAX  202.714.7049
7925 JONES BRANCH ORIVE
HCLEAN, VA 22102 The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
PHONE  703.905.2800 The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member

FAX  703.905.2820 . .
Committee on Ethics

U. S. House of Representatives
www.wileyrein.com 1015 Longworth House Office Building
Washington, DC 20515

Re:  Committee Request for Information, March 18, 2013
Dear Chairman Conaway and Ranking Member Sanchez:

Congressman David B. McKinley, through counsel, respectfully submits to the
Committee on Ethics his responses to the requests for information set forth by the
Committee in its March 18, 2013 letter. Documentary materials responsive to the
Committee’s requests are included on an accompanying disk at Bates Numbers
DBMO00000001 through DBM00000554.

Rep. McKinley did not knowingly or intentionally violate any law, standard of
conduct, or Committee directive with respect to use of the name McKinley &
Associates by his now former firm. Indeed, as the Committee will see from the
responses and materials p rovided, based on his understanding of the relevant
standards and legal compliance options as explained to him by attorney Charles J.
Kaiser, Rep. McKinley believed that he had resolved ethics concerns with respect
to the name of McKinley & Associates when he entered into a Memorandum of
Understanding (“MOU”) with the company’s Employee Stock Ownership Plan
(“ESOP™) on April 11, 2011. Through this MOU, Rep. McKinley 1) committed to
the sale of all his remaining stock in the company to the ESOP and 2) agreed that
he had “no further control over the ownership and operations of McKinley &
Associates, Inc.” Previously, attorney Kaiser had advised then Congressman-elect
McKinley consistently that there were two compliance options with respect to the
House ethics restrictions on providing professional services involving a fiduciary
relationship: either change the name of the company or divest his interest in the
company.

By entering into the MOU with the McKinley & Associates ESOP on April 11,
2011, then Congressman-elect McKinley believed that he had taken satisfactory
good faith steps to effectuate this second compliance option as described by
attorney Kaiser, that is, divestment of his interest in the company. As to what
representatives of McKinley & Associates knew of Committee guidance at that
time, prior to signing and entering into the MOU on behalf of the McKinley &
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Associates ESOP on April 11, 2011, ESOP Trustee Emest Dellatorre (also a
member of the company’s management team) had been informed of recent
guidance from Committee staff counsel that she was going to recommend that the
Committee determine that the name “McKinley” would have to be removed from
the company’s name; other representatives of McKinley & Associates also knew of
this guidance at that time. (In January 2011, McKinley & Associates personnel
had also been apprised of Comumittee Counsel Stan Simpson’s guidance that
McKinley & Associates would not need to change its name because the company
qualified as a “family business.”)

Notwithstanding his good faith belief that he had resolved ethics concerns over the
use of the name McKinley & Associates by his former company by entering into
the MOU with the ESOP in April 2011, Rep. McKinley regrets that he did not
respond more formally at the time to the Comumittee’s letter to him dated June 24,
2011 (but received June 27, 2011), in which the Committee informed him that “a
name change [of the company] is required under current rules . . . .” In considering
the question of Rep. McKinley’s responsiveness, the Committee should keep a
number of important factors in mind.

First, as summarized above and explained in more detail below, as of June 24,
2011, Rep. McKinley believed that he had taken appropriate and satisfactory ethics
compliance steps with respect to McKinley & Associates when he entered into the
MOU with the ESOP more than two months earlier.

Second, within a few days of receiving the letter from the Committee on June 27,
2011, Rep. McKinley told then Ethics Committee Chairman Jo Bonner on the
House floor that he had already sold the company to which Chairman Bonner
replied, in substance, that he wished it had not come to that. Through this
exchange with the Chairman, Rep. McKinley believed that he had effectively
provided notice to the Committee of his action and of the status of the company.

Third, by the time he received the Committee’s letter on June 27, 2011, Rep.
McKinley had not been treated well by the Committee process. In January 2011, a
Committee counsel informed his attorney that be agreed that “McKinley &
Associates qualified as a ‘family business’ and so the name would not need to be
changed.” More than two months later, another Committee counsel informed the
attorney that, in a potential total reversal of the Committee’s apparent position, she



174

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 3

was going to recommend that the Committee determine that the name “McKinley”
would have to be removed from the company’s name. The Committee did not
provide its formal written guidance on this matter to Rep. McKinley - via the June
24,2011, Committee letter — until almost six full months after Rep. McKinley's
attorney submitted his letter requesting written Committee guidance.

For these and other reasons discussed below, the Committee’s process regarding
and handling of this matter was seriously flawed. Rep. McKinley was concerned
and upset by this process. However, Rep. McKinley believes that he may have
allowed these understandable concerns to affect his responsiveness to the
Committee and, if he did, he regrets having done so. He believes he should have
responded in a more formal manner to the Committee’s June 24, 2011, letter to
inform the Committee of the good faith compliance steps he had already taken.

This letter incorporates all arguments supporting the continued use of the name
“McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley’s former firm that were previously
made to the Committee through undersigned counsels’ September 14, 2012, letter
submitted on behalf of Rep. McKinley. (Bates Numbers DMB00000527-38.)
Although the Committee’s March 18, 2013, letter seeks information and documents
as part of an investigation, Rep. McKinley wrges the Committee not to lose sight of
the important advisory question underlying this whole matter, that is, whether
“McKinley & Associates” is a “family name” under a long-recognized exception to
the restrictions on providing fiduciary services imposed by the Ethics in
Government Act. The Committee’s implicit determination in June 2011 that
“McKinley & Associates” is not a “family name” was not required by the facts, by
the relevant laws and standards, by legislative history, or by policy. Indeed, all of
these factors — the facts, laws and standards, legislative history, policy — provide
substantial and sound support for a different, de novo determination by the
Commiittee, a determination that “McKinley & Associates” is a “family name” or
that its use by the company is otherwise permissible under the relevant fiduciary
profession restrictions.

We urge the Committee to review Rep. McKinley’s September 14, 2012, letter in
its entirety. However, the following quoted paragraphs from that letter provide a
summary of the substantial basis for determining that use of the McKinley &
Associates name is not contrary to the restrictions relating to fiduciary professions:
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[A] number of factors support your approval of continued use of the
name “McKinley & Associates” by Rep. McKinley's former firn.
“McKinley” is a well-known family and historical name in West
Virginia. The “McKinley” name in engineering and building design
was originally established in West Virginia by Rep. McKinley’s
father, Johnson B. McKinley, and was reinforced by him through his
long, public Association with McKinley & Associates. Entirely
independent of Rep. McKinley’s status as a Member of Congress,
“McKinley & Associates” has long been — and remains - an
established brand name in the provision of the highest-quality
engineering, architecture, and interior design services.

As the legislative history of the Ethics in Government Act makes
clear, the Act’s restrictions (and the parallel restrictions under House
Rule XXV) on the use of a “Member’s name” are intended to
address “cases where outside interests attempt to trade on the
prestige of Members of Congress.” This concern does not exist with
McKinley & Associates. The company trades on the “McKinley”
name as an historical name in West Virginia and as a “family name”
in engineering and building design. The company trades on —
indeed, relies upon — the name “McKinley & Associates” as an
established and well-known brand name in its field. )

As explained above and supported in detail below, at the time Rep. McKinley
received the Committee’s June 24, 2011, letter, he believed that he had already
taken sufficient good faith steps to resolve any ethics concerns arising in
connection with McKinley & Associates such that the company’s continued use of
that name was permissible. Rep. McKinley did not act with any bad intent in this
matter, including in not responding more formally to the Committee’s June 24,
2011, letter. However, regardless of any position the Commiitee may take with
respect to Rep. McKinley’s responsiveness to its June 24 letter, the Committee may
and should reconsider its previous determination with respect to use of the name
McKinley & Associates by Rep. McKinley’s former company. The Committee
may now make a more fully informed determination. The Committee should
determine that continued use of the name “McKinley & Associates” by the
company is not contrary to law, rule, or regulation and is, therefore, permissible.
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Although submitted by counsel on his behalf, the responses and materials provided
with this letter were thoroughly reviewed by Rep. McKinley, were authorized and
confirmed by him as accurate to the best of his knowledge, recollection, and belief
at this time, and were approved and authorized by him for submission to the
Committee, as was this letter. It should be noted that the Committee’s request for
details on conversations and interactions covers a period of two and half years; the
request for information regarding Rep. McKinley’s father goes back decades.
Understandably, there may have been communications and there may be
information responsive to the Committee’s request which the Congressman does
not recall at this time. With respect specifically to his wife and other members of
his family, including his four adult children, Rep. McKinley believes he had
numerous communications or discussions with them on matters relevant to the
Committee’s request which he does not now specifically recall. He also believes
that he likely complained to other individuals, including other Members, aboul
some of the matters covered in this letter, but he does not recall specific
conversations.

Note that, to the extent that discussion and documentation in the following
responses of communications between Rep. McKinley and attorney Charles J.
Kaiser may be viewed as constituting a waiver by the Congressman of attorney-
client privilege with respect to communications with Mr. Kaiser, with respect to
any other communications between Rep. McKinley and any other counsel, no such
waiver is intended to be implied, and none should be inferred.

With respect to the log of privileged or protected communications requested in
Committee Request 1, please note that, as previously discussed with and agreed to
by Committee Counsel, communications with undersigned counsel — who were
initially retained by the Congressman to assist in responding to the Committee’s
August 24, 2012, letter ~ and communications in connection with obtaining
information in response to the Committee’s March 18, 2012, letter, are attorney-
client privileged and/or work product protected and are not separately entered or
noted on a log. A privilege log is provided herewith at Exhibit A with respect to
withheld communications involving other counsel.

Thank you for your careful consideration of the information and documents
provided by Rep. McKinley in response to the Committee’s requests.
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Response to Committee Requests 1 and 4

In Request 1 of its March 18, 2013, letter to Rep. McKinley, the Committee asked
the Congressman to provide it with “any and all details of meetings, conversations,
or other interactions . . . after your election to the U.S. House of Representatives
regarding the use of your name by the Firm.” In Request 4, the Committee asked
the Congressman to “state the steps you took, if any, in response to the
Committee’s letter dated June 24, 20117 and asked related questions. Committee
Requests 1 and 4 are both addressed in the discussion below.

Rep. McKinley first became aware of possible concerns regarding the continued
use of his naroe by the firm McKinley & Associates in communications with Ms.
Carol E. Dixon, Counsel to the Committee, on November 5, 2010. In an email of
that date to the Congressman (Bates Number DMB00000003), Ms. Dixon
referenced a related call earlier that same day and stated: “The informal opinion of
the Committee staff is that these [fiduciary] restrictions would necessitate changing
the name of your firm, since it is one that provides fiduciary services and currently
utilizes your name.”

Rep. McKinley’s understandably strong response to this “informal opinion” on the
use of his name by the firm can be seen by his November 6, 2010, email to Martin
Baker, a direct mail consultant to his campaign: “How absurd is that advice. They
expect me to change the name of my company . . . I have not read the manual as
yet, but her *informal opinion’ is disturbing.” (Bates Numbers DMBO0000004-
05.) Rep. McKinley explained what he viewed as “absurd” at this time when he
wrote in this email: “hiding behind a name change makes it OK to do business with
the Federal government. Unbelievable.” Note that the Tim Garon “cc’d” on this
email was the Political Director of the National Republican Congressional
Committee (“NRCC™) at the time.

On the momming of November 9, 2010, Andy Sere — then Regional Press Secretary
for the NRCC and soon thereafter to become Rep. McKinley’s first congressional
chief of staff — reached out to the Congressman by email to say that Tim Garon had
mentioned the Committee “lawyer’s opinion on your company’s name” and to ask
if there had “been any further developments.” Mr. Sere stated that he was going to
make a few calls to see “how this issue has been handled in the past with other
members in similar situations.” Later that day, Mr. Sere emailed Rep, McKinley to
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let him know that he had spoken with two people on the issue: John Tosch,
apparently a corporate attorney for Rep. Vern Buchanan; and Todd Ungerecht, who
had been counsel to Rep. Doc Hastings during his tenure as Chairman of the Ethics
Committee. (Bates Numbers DMB00000020-22.)

On November 10, 2013, Andy Sere followed up with an email to Rep. McKinley
into which he appears to have “cut and pasted” the content of an email from “a
GOP lawyer who used to work on the ethics committee, to whom I previously
referred.” (Bates Number DMB00000023.) It appears that this “GOP lawyer” may
have been Todd Ungerecht, but Rep. McKinley does not know if it was he. In this
email, the “GOP lawyer” discussed whether “engineering consulting” is covered by
the restrictions on “fiduciary professions” and provided his thoughts on how the
Congressman’s divestment of his interest in the firm could affect any necessity to
change the name of the firm, depending on to whom he divested his interest.

Rep. McKinley recalls that orientation activities for his class of new Members
began on about November 14, 2010. During this orientation period, Rep.
McKinley recalls speaking about his business holdings with a young woman from
the Ethics Committee staff after the ethics presentation. The Committee staffer
stated that it was possible that Rep. McKinley would have to sell his company and
might have to change the name of the company as well. Rep. McKinley asked the
staffer what he was supposed to do if he was a one-term congressman and had no
business to return to. Rep. McKinley recalls that the staffer responded by asking,
cither naively or cavalierly, “Wouldn’t you just start a new business?” Rep.
McKinley told the staffer that the next time she heard from him it would be
through his attorney. The Congressman recalls that Mary McKinley, his wife, was
part of this discussion. (Materials that appear to have been provided to
Congressman-elect McKinley at, or in connection with, orientation are included at
Bates Numbers DMB00000006-19.)

Sometime during the new Member orientation period in 2010, Rep. McKinley
spoke in person with Rep. Jo Bonner, then Ranking Member and soon to become
Chairman of the Ethics Committee, about the informal opinion of Committee staff
that he might have to change the name of McKinley & Associates and/or sell his
interest in the company. Rep. McKinley recalls Rep. Bonner saying there was a
possibility of his receiving a waiver with respect to matters concerning McKinley
& Associates, including with respect to the name of the company. Rep. McKinley
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also recalls Rep. Bonner advising him to get in touch with Kelle Strickland, his
Counsel for Ethics Committee matters.

On their drive back to West Virginia after orientation, Rep. McKinley and his wife
talked about the opinions provided by Ethics Committee staff regarding McKinley
& Associates. Sometime after he arrived back in West Virginia, Rep. McKinley
contacted attorney Charles J. Kaiser.! On November 17, 2010, attorney Kaiser:

-wrote to Rep. McKinley at McKinley & Associates. This letter was headed
“Business Restructuring” and in it Mr. Kaiser provided a brief overview of “a
series of Rules that apply to professional businesses.” (Bates Numbers
DMBO00000025-26.) From the documents collected and provided with this
response, it appears that Rep. McKinley and Mr. Kaiser spoke about the House
ethics issues on November 22, 2010, although Rep. McKinley does not recall if
that was the date on which he first spoke to Mr. Kaiser about these matters. (Bates
Numbers DMB00000027-28.) Rep. McKinley recalls that Mr. Kaiser was
surprised by the ethics restrictions as applied to McKinley & Associates.

On November 23, 2010, Rep. McKinley followed up with an email to Mr. Kaiser,
forwarding Andy Sere’s November 10 email (referenced above) and summarizing
points and questions covered in their discussion the previous day, including:
“Keeping the name McKinley as the corporate identity is a huge and over-riding
priority”; “Would simply selling to the ESOP make this [moot}?”; and “What is the
waiver that has been discussed by Bonner?” (Bates Numbers DMB00000027-28.)
Later on November 23, Rep. McKinley forwarded to Mz. Kaiser the November 9
emails from Andy Sere, discussed above. (Bates Numbers DMB00000029-30.)

On Wednesday, November 24, 2010 — the day before Thanksgiving — at 5:04 PM,
Mr. Kaiser sent a highly significant email to Rep. McKinley in which, as the
attorney advising Rep. McKinley on complying with House ethics requirements,
Mz. Kaiser framed for Rep. McKinley the issues and the options for action

! With respect to the legal and ethics issues raised by Mr. McKinley’s election to Congress,
Mr. McKinley understands that, through early to mid-April 2011, Mr. Kaiser was providing legal
advice and counsel to both Mr. McKinley and McKinley & Associates (which, until April 11,2011
- as explained below — was both 70% owned by and controlled by Mr. McKinley). McKinley &
Associates paid for these legal services,
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available to him. With regard to the “company name change,” Mr. Kaiser wrote
and advised Rep. McKinley as follows:

The question as to the change of name boils down to whether
McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm “providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.” An
example of this definition in the Rules is a company providing
architectural services, but we can certainly ask for a ruling and argue
that it does not apply to you because you are not an architect. If the
ruling comes back favorable, you can keep your interest in the
company, but not work or receive earned income from it. If
McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm providing
professional services invelving a fiduciary relationship, then it
appears that you are left with two choices: (1) change the name,
or (2) completely divest yourself of your interest in the company
(this appears to include Mary as well), Please understand that
your situation is different than family businesses that do not provide
professional services (i.e. car dealerships), though I think the logic
got lost when this Rule/law was formulated. In addition, it is
important for you to understand that this is not simply a House Rule,
but a federal statute.

(Bates Numbers DMB00000033-34.) (Emphasis added.) .

This clearly stated analysis from Mr. Kaiser — either change the company name or
divest yourself of your interest in the company — established a firm framework of
understanding for Rep. McKinley through which he viewed his obligations under
House ethics standards with respect to McKinley & Associates. This framework,
to a very significant and persistent extent, guided his subsequent actions regarding
his interest in McKinley & Associates, regarding the use of that name by the
company, and regarding his understanding of, and steps taken in response to,
Fthics Committee communications on these issues in 2010 and 2011,

The extent to which Mr. Kaiser’s email of November 24, 2010, both galvanized
Rep. McKinley’s understanding of the options for compliance available to him and
prompted him to preliminary action to effectuate one of these options can be seen
in two emails from November 29, 2010. In the first email — sent by Rep. McKinley
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to his cousin Jon in response to a congratulatory message — Rep. McKinley talked
about orientation, his House office assignment and swearing in, and then added:
“In the meantime I apparently have to wrap up ownership of my A/E practice to
comply with the Federal ethics rules.” (Bates Number DMB00000044.)

In the sccond email of November 29, Lynn Adams, Office Manager for McKinley
& Associates and a member of the company management team, forwarded to Rep.
McKinley the agenda for the upcoming company management meeting. Item 2 on
this agenda is “ESOP buyout,” that is, discussion of having the McKinley &
Associates ESOP — which already owned 30% of the company’s stock — purchase
the remaining 70% of shares owned by Rep. McKinley. (Bates Number
DMBO0000057.) As this second email indicates, in November 2010, Rep.
McKinley spoke to personnel of McKinley & Associates — including Lynn Adams,
Ernie Dellatorre and, likely, others — about company-related issues arising from
House ethics standards, but he does not recall specific conversations.

Also on the morning of November 29, 2010, Mr. McKinley had an exchange of
emails with Andy Sere and Mr. Kaiser in the morning in which Rep. McKinley
forwarded Mr, Kaiser’s November 24 email to Mr, Sere and asked Mr. Kaiser to
“coordinate” with Mr. Sere, who by that time had become Rep. McKinley’s Chief
of Staff. On November 29, by email, Mr. Sere also asked Rep. McKinley if he had
“talked to Jo Bonner’s staffer” and recalled that “NRCC Counsel Jessica Furst” had
given Rep. McKinley a “name and contact info” for this purpose. (As discussed
below, Rep. McKinley met and spoke with Ms. Furst about ethics-related issues
during the orientation period in Washington, D.C.) Mr. Sere stated to Rep.
McKinley in this same email: “It does seem like we’ll have to ask for a ruling.”
And, by email later that morning, Mr. Sere told Rep. McKinley: “Just talked with
CJ [Kaiser]. We discussed possible next steps . . . will advise later today. (Bates
Numbers DMBO00000035-43, 45-51.)

It appears that Mr. Sere and Mr. Kaiser then talked on the phone on the morning of
November 29, 2010. Based on a summary email about that call from Mr. Kaiser to
M. Sere, copied to Rep. McKinley, Mr. Kaiser provided Mr, Sere with essentially
the same analysis and the same two compliance options he presented to Rep.
McKinley in the November 24, 2010, email discussed above: “If McKinley &
Associates is considered to be a firm providing prefessional services involving
a fiduciary relationship, it appears that there are two choices: (1) change the
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name; or (2) completely divest DBMeK’s interest in the company (this appears
to include David’s wife as well).” (Bates Number DMB00000052.) (Emphasis
added.) Mr. Sere followed up later that day with two more emails, sent to Mr.
Kaiser and Rep. McKinley, relating to his apparent notification to NRCC “in-house
counsel [Jessica Furst] of the issue.” Mr. Sere also refers to a proposed discussion
on the issue with NRCC “outside counsel,” but it appears that this discussion did
not oceur that day and Rep. McKinley does not specifically recall if it did occur at
some later time. {Bates Numbers DMB00000053-56.) In closing out this
particular email exchange on the morning of November 30, 2010, Rep. McKinley,
in an email to Mr. Sere and Mr. Kaiser, twrned the focus of his attorney’s steps to
“[Mr.] Bonner’s staff,” noting: “Bonner had confidently suggested that something
could be worked out and not to worry; he then turned me over to Kelle, his
committee counsel. I am anxious to hear what Bonner’s people have to add to this
discussion.” (Batcs Numbers DMB00000058-59.)

As the emails included at Bates Numbers DMBO00000061-63 show, Mr. Kaiser
spoke with both Jessica Furst and Kelle Strickland on November 30, 2010. Before
reviewing more information about these discussions, however, it is worth noting
the strength and urgency of Rep. McKinley’s concern at this time about the future
of the company to which he had devoted 30 years of his life. In an email to Mr.
Sere and Mr. Kaiser sent at 11:46 AM on November 30, 2010, Rep. McKinley
wrote: “Think about it: if a member-elect were 40 years old and had started his
own firm 15 years previously, forcing him to divest himself of the company
ownership and changing the name leaves him with what to return to if he were
defeated two years later? Bonner said there is a solution; what is it.” (Bates
Number DMBO00000060.)

According to the December 1, 2010, email from Mz, Kaiser to Rep. McKinley
(Bates Number DMB00000068), when Mr. Kaiser spoke to Ms. Furst on
November 30, afier she “reviewed all of the email traffic,” Ms. Furst “confirmed
[his] concerns,” presumably about the stark choice facing Rep. McKinley: either
change the name of the company or divest his interest in if. In this same email, Mr.
Kaiser notes that he also spoke to Kelle Strickland on November 30, telling Rep.
MecKinley, 1 explained the issues and the background and told her that I would
place all of this in a letter to her so that she could advise the best way to proceed.”
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Mr. Kaiser attached the letter to Ms. Strickland to his email to Rep. McKinley,
which is discussed below. (Bates Numbers DMB00000069-70.)

In concluding his December | email to Rep. McKinley, Mr. Kaiser makes a point
about the restrictions on the practice of the designated “fiduciary professions” that
explains and underscores the frustration of many non-lawyer Members and
Senators covered by these restrictions: “Adding architects and engineers to a legal
prohibition that was clearly intended to apply to lawyers and business advisers
makes no logical sense — if a lobbyist is intending to curry favor with a
Congressman he can do it just as easily by purchasing a car from the car dealership
as he can by hiring the architect to design his house.” As an historical observation,
Mr. Kaiser’s statement is pretty close to the mark. There is certainly support for
the conclusion that the drafters of the “fiduciary profession” restrictions — many of
whom were lawyers — did not want to single out the legal profession as being
singularly susceptible to creating the potential for a financial conflict, so the
restrictions were made to apply to a category created and defined more broadly, the
“professions that provide services involving a fiduciary relationship.” But,
importantly and as Mr. Kaiser further notes in this email: “Nonetheless, the law is
the law; and we must find a way to comply with it.” That is what Rep. McKinley
tried to do, and believed he did, following his understanding of the law as it had
been explained to him.

In his November 30, 2010, letter to Kelle Strickland (Bates Numbers
DMBO00000069-70), Mr. Kaiser sought guidance “in order to advise Congressman-
elect McKinley regarding his options concerning the business [McKinley &
Associates] and his relationship with it while he remains a Member of Congress.”
As the following quoted paragraph shows, Mr. Kaiser’s letter to Ms. Strickland
was informed by the same two-option understanding and framework he set out for
Rep. McKinley in the November 24 email quoted above ~that is, Rep. McKinley
could either change the company name or divest his interest in the company —
although in the letter to Ms. Strickland Mr. Kaiser also explored the possibility of a
“waiver” exempting McKinley & Associates from the fiduciary profession
restrictions?

Paramount among our concerns is the future use of the name:
McKinley & Associates, Inc. Over more than twenty years in the
region considerable goodwill and name-recognition bas accrued to
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this name. Moreover, Congressman-elect McKinley's deceased
father, though not associated with the current firm, was also a
licensed professional engineer and had a long career in the area.
Much of the company’s goodwill that has accrued as a result of the
name would be lost if the name must be changed Accordingly, we
would like to explore the possibility of retaining the name McKinley
& Associates, Inc, if Congressman-elect McKinley would sever his
other relationships with the business by for example: (a) selling his
stock to the ESOP in return for a note payable over a period of
years; (b) alternately giving or selling his stock to his wife or
children; (c) resigning as an officer and director; and (d) having the
company designate other professionals as its supervising architect
and supervising professional engineer. If you believe that McKinley
& Associates, Inc. can escape being designated as engaging ina
“profession that involves a fiduciary relationship” by requesting a
waiver or clarification of the definition, please advise as to the best
way to go about that process. Obviously, if we could simply keep
the status quo so far as the name and stock ownership of the
business is concerned that would be most desirable to Congressman-
elect McKinley, even if he must take a sabbatical so far as his
employment and other responsibilities toward the firm while a
Member. )

With regard to Mr. Kaiser’s statement in this November 30, 2010, letter that Rep.
McKinley’s father — Johnson B. McKinley — was “not associated with the current
firm,” this staternent was not accurate. Although the elder MeKinley does not
appear to have been an on-the-payroll employee of McKinley & Associates, he was
“associated” with the firm as a consultant and otherwise, as we have described for
the Committee previously in our Septemberl4, 2012, letter (Bates Numbers
DMBO00000527-38) and as we also describe in our response below to Committee
Request 2. '

While awaiting a response to the letter to Ms. Strickland — and in conformity with
thé guidance and framework of understanding provided by Mr. Kaiser — Rep.
McKinley continued to take steps preparatory to selling McKinley & Associates, as
a legal alternative to changing the company name. Two email exchanges between
Lynn Adams, of McKinley & Associates, and George B. Sanders, Jr., attorney for
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the McKinley & Associates ESOP, show Rep. McKinley’s increasing focus on
selling his remaining 70% interest in the company to the ESOP (or 60% to the
company and 10% to another individual}) as soon as possible. Ina December 2,
2010, exchange of emails with the subject heading “Urgent Question” (Bates
Number DMB00000071-73) Ms. Adams wrote to Mr. Sanders, with a copy to Rep.
McKinley: “Mr, McKinley would like to know what stock valuation date would be
used if he were to sell his remaining 70% of McKinley & Associates, Inc. to the
ESOP on 1/5/11 . . . He needs this information to make an informed decision
concerning the Company prior to taking office in the U.S. House in early January
due to House ethics rules.” In his response, Mr. Sanders noted: “If David is going
to do this, we need to start ASAP. 1am not sure we could get it done by 1/5/2011
but would surely come close.”

By December 10, 2010, a plan for Rep. McKinley to resolve potential ethics issues
by selling his remaining interest in the company was closer to execution, as Ms.
Adams’ email to Mr. Sanders, copied to Rep. McKinley, shows: “It appears as
though we may be moving toward the sale of the remaining McKinley stock, or at
least 60% of it [10% would go to another individual], to the ESOP ...
{UInderstanding that this transaction and valuation will take time, our Jocal
attorney [apparently Mr. Kaiser] has indicated that as long as we can initiate the
sale by January 5, 2011, we would be demonstrating good-faith and could
complete the sale later in the year.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000090.)
(Emphasis added.) Attorney Sanders’ December 12, 2010, response to Ms. Adams,
also copied to Mr. McKinley, may be read as confirming the “local attorney’s”
point {cited by Ms. Adams in her email) that, even if Rep. McKinley’s sale of the
company were not completed until later in the year, initiation of the sale by January
5, 2011, would show Rep. McKinley’s good faith in the effort to comply with
congressional ethics requirements. (Bates Numbers DMB00000093-94.)

A number of other email exchanges during this same period relate to efforts by
Rep. McKinley to resolve ethics issues arising in connection with McKinley &
Associates before he took office in January 2011. As reflected in an email from
Ms. Adams to Rep. McKinley, dated December 3, 2010 (Bates Number
DMBO0O000076), it appears that at a McKinley & Associates management meeting
held on December 2, 2010, there was discussion of the possibility of splitting the
company to create an engineering company that could retain the name McKinley &
Associates and an architectural firm with a different name. Ms. Adams asked Mr.
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Kaiser for his opinion on this possibility and inquired about “the prohibitions from
putting the company into Mary’s name” in a December 7, 2010 email. (Bates
Numbers DMB00000077-78.) In a December 10 email to Ms. Adams, copied to
Rep. McKinley, Mr. Kaiser discussed the “problem with Mary McKinley being a
significant owner of McKinley & Associates.” (Bates Number DMB00000092.)
| In aDecember 14, 2010, email to Mr, Kaiser, copied to Rep. McKinley, Ms.
Adams asked for guidance with respect to whether other steps — closing Rep.
McKinley’s corporate card, discontinuing use of Mary McKinley’s personal card
for company purchases, and designating new officers — might be needed to
dissociate Rep. McKinley and his wife from McKinley & Associates before he
took office. (Bates Numbers DMB00000096-102.)

While Rep. McKinley, attorney Kaiser, and personnel at McKinley & Associates
were taking the steps described above for Rep. McKinley and his wife to sell their
interests in McKinley & Associates, if necessary, to comply with House ethics
standards, Mr. Kaiser heard back from Ms. Strickland in response to his November
30, 2010, letter to her. Mr. Kaiser informed Rep. McKinley, in a December 7,
2010, email that Ms. Strickland had consulted with Carol Dixon and “[t}hey are
both of the opinion that while McKinley & Associates, Inc. is providing
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship that the company may be
able to avoid changing the name under the ‘family name exception” based upon the
similar name of Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting Engineer. She suggested that
we request written advice from the Committee and lodge this letter prior to David
being sworn in on January 5, 2011.” Mr. Kaiser advised, however, that despite the
informal Committee staff guidance that the company “may be able to avoid
changing the name,” the transfer of the company would likely have to proceed:
“Because the ‘family name’ exception does not eliminate the other two
prohibitions (i.e. compensation and management affiliation), I believe that David
will have to deal with the management structure and ownership of McKinley &
Associates in any event. This will have to be accomplished prior to Jannary 5 and
should be done in time so that we can explain the reorganization to the Committee
in the letter requesting the opinion on the name.” (Bates Number DMB00000079.)

After Ms. Strickland advised Mr. Kaiser to seek written advice from the |
Committee, Rep. McKinley and Mr. Kaiser communicated on a number of
occasions on drafts of the letter and on questions related to the request for
Committee guidance on complying with the restrictions on a Member’s providing
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professional service involving a fiduciary profession. (Bates Numbers
DMBO00000095, DMB00000103-63.) Lynn Adams, a member of the management
team at McKinley & Associates, participated in or was copied on many of these
email communications. As these email communications show, during the process
of drafting a letter to the Committee the possibility of Rep. McKinley putting his
interest in McKinley & Associates in a blind trust was added to the compliance
options to be put before the Committee.

On January 3, 2011, at 3:53 PM, Mr. Kaiser emailed a signed letter to the Ethics
Committee seeking an advisory opinion on matters relating to Rep. McKinley’s
interest in McKinley & Associates and on permitting McKinley & Associates “to
retain its existing name under the well-recognized family name exception.” (Bates
Numbers DMB00000164-78). (Note that, although Mr. Kaiser emailed this signed
letter to Kelle Strickland and Daniel Taylor at the Coramittee on January 3, the
copy of the letter in the Committee’s files, provided to Rep. McKinley in
connection with the Committee’s current request for information, bears a date of
January.14,2011.) Mr. Kaiser informed the Committee in this letter that “[p]rior to
being sworn in as a Member of the House of Representatives, David B. McKinley
will resign as an officer and director of McKinley & Associates, Inc. and place his
stock in a blind trust that will be held for as long as he remains a member of the
House of Representatives or otherwise holds an elected federal office.”

Rep. McKinley recalls that sometime between his election to Congress and his
being sworn in on January 5, 2011, he spoke with former Ohio Congressman
Charlie Wilson about the informal guidance he had received from Ethics
Committee staff with regard to his relationship with McKinley & Associates. Mr.
Wilson — who had two businesses bearing the Wilson name in Ohio during his
congressional tenure - told Rep. McKinley he did not think McKinley &
Associates would have to change its name. Rep. McKinley also recalls speaking
with Rep. Westmoreland at the Members’ Retreat in January 2011, about these
matters; Rep. McKinley recalls that at some point Rep. Westmorcland
recommended that Rep. McKinley might want to confer with attorney Randy
Evans.

A January 12, 2011, email indicates that Rep. McKinley had a brief contact with
attorney Harry Buch regarding the letter pending before the Ethics Committee.
(See entry on privilege log at Exhibit A.) Mr. Buch, in addition to being the
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proposed trustee listed on the materials submitted to the Committee with Mr.
Kaiser’s January 3, 2011, letter, was also an attorney for Rep. McKinley.

On January 25, 2011, attorney Kaiser received a crucial telephone call from Stan
Simpson, Counsel at the Ethics Committee, As Mr, Kaiser informed Rep.
McKinley the next day, in an email copied to Ms. Adams of McKinley &
Associates management, Mr. Simpson notified Mr. Kaiser in this call “[t{hat the
staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Associates does pot provide
professional services involving a fiduciary relationship . . . Mr. Simpsen also
agreed that McKinley & Associates qualified as a ‘family business’ and so the
name would not need to be changed. He stated that as a result of the first point,
there is no need for blind trust to hold your stock in McKinley & Associates.”
(Bates Numbers DMB00000185-86.) (Emphasis added.) Mr. Simpson’s guidance
to Mr. Kaiser, although oral and informal, could not have been clearer or more
absclute; the name of McKinley & Associates would not need to be changed.

On January 26, 2011, Mr. Kaiser forwarded to Mary McKinley his January 25,
2011, email summarizing his call with Committee Counsel Sirapson. It appears
that on January 26, Mrs. McKinley and Mr, Kaiser also spoke by phone about Mr.
Simpson’s guidance. (See Bates Numbers DMB00000187-89 for this email and
for what appears to be a page of notes by Mrs. McKinley on a January 26 call with
Mr. Kaiser.)

Despite the clarity and specificity of Ethics Committee Counsel Stan Simpson’s
advice to Mr. Kaiser that McKinley & Associates did not provide professional
services involving a fiduciary relationship and that the name McKinley &
Associates would not need to be changed, more than two full months later — on
March 31, 2011 — Mr. Kaiser received a call from another Committee Counsel,
Heather Jones, completely contradicting Mr. Simpson’s advice. Mr. Kaiser
immediately informed Lynn Adams of the call. Then, in an “urgent” March 31,
2011, email to Mr. McKinley (Bates Number DMB00000216) — and copied to -
Ernie Dellatorre and Tim Mizer, both of McKinley & Associate management — Ms.
Adams summarized the new Ethics Committee guidance from Ms. Jones: “She
says that Stan Simpson, who provided the Ethics’ position to him on you and the
company is no longer with them and that she is going to recommend that the
House Committec take a stand that you do have a fiduciary relationship and
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also that the McKinley name must be removed from the company.” (Emphasis
added.)

1t is well known, based on media reports, that, during this period of time in early
2011, the Ethics Committee was undergoing considerable organizational turmoil,
with some Members and staff apparently under suspicion by other Members and
staff. To some extent this confusion within the Committee staff appears to be
reflected in Chairman Bonner’s reaction when Rep. McKinley spoke with him
about Ms. Jones’ call, In an April 2, 1011, email to Mr. Kaiser (Bates Number
DMB00000207-08), Rep. McKinley summarized his call with the Ethics
Committee Chair: :

Lynn {Adams, of the McKinley & Associates management team])
has informed me that a different determination may be being
considered. Consequently I have already spoken with Congressman
Jo Bonner on Friday. He recommended that I get back to him next
week because his staff was already gone for the day. He claimed he
remembered some of our previous discnssions but showed no
awareness of an earlier recommendation by his staff. Nevertheless
but [sic] he was not particularly pleased that another decision may
be forthcoming and one that reversing [sic] an earlier and more
encouraging solution.

‘Whatever was going on internally within the Committee, it is difficult to
understand how the Committee could permit two of its staff counsel to provide
entirely contradictory advice to a Member on a matter of such vital personal
importance to him and of such financial importance not only to the Member, but
also to his family, to his company, and to the many people employed by that
company and dependent on it for their livelihood. This was not an abstract legal
problem for Rep. McKinley or for the management and employees of McKinley &
Associates. So it cannot be difficult for the current leadership and Members of the
Committee to appreciate how the Committee’s apparent 180 degree turnabout in its
advice surprised, shocked, and bewildered Rep. McKinley.

In response to the Committee’s reversal of opinion on the issues of whether
McKinley & Associates provides services involving a fiduciary relationship and
whether the company could retain its name, Rep. McKinley and members of




190

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 19

McKinley & Associates management team determined to proceed with the plan for
Rep. McKinley to transfer his remaining ownership interest in the company to the
McKinley & Associates ESOP. This plan had been abandoned when Committee
Counsel Stan Simpson advised on January 25 that the company would not have to
change its name. Rep. McKinley cannot recall whether the idea to proceed with
this transfer was his or whether it originated with Ernie Dellatorre or someone else
at McKinley & Associates; after Ms. Jones’s call to Mr. Kaiser on March 31, 2011,
Rep. McKinley did discuss this matter with Mr. Dellatorre and others at McKinley
& Associates, but he does not recall the details of any specific discussion.

On April 11, 2011, Mr. McKinley and Mr. Dellatorre, as ESOP Trustee, entered
into and signed a Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”) on the “ESOP
Purchase of Remaining McKinley & Associates Shares.” (Bates Number
DMB00000217.) Rep. McKinley believes that Mr. Dellatorre drafted this MOU.
The MOU provided as follows:

As a result of your resignation as President of McKinley &
Associates and our conversation last week regarding the potential
for a perceived conflict with your ownership of the company during
your term in Congress, this letter will serve as our memorandum of
Understanding that the ESOP will purchase your remaining shares in
McKinley & Associates. Once the share value is determined and the
transferring document is approved, your remaining shares will be
purchased by the ESOP. Payment for the shares will be similar to
the funding you provided for the purchase of the original ESOP
Shares.

Details on the stock valuation, the financing for the ESOP purchase,
and the final transaction date will be detailed in a subsequent
document to be developed by counsel for both of our signatures.

It is our mutual understanding that by agreeing to this
Memorandum of Understanding that you will have no further
control over the ownership and operations of McKinley &
Associates, Inc.

{Emphasis added.)
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The Committee should recall that, at the time he signed and entered into this MOU
with Rep. McKinley, Mr. Dellatorre knew of the Committee’s likely reversal of its
position on whether the company could maintain the name McKinley &
Associates. Mr. Dellatorre had been copied on Lynn Adams March 31, 2011,
email in which she stated that Committee Counsel Heather Jones was “going to
recommend that the House Committee take a stand that you do have a fiduciary
relationship and also that the McKinley name must be removed from the
company.”

Rep. McKinley entered into the MOU with Mr. Dellatorre and the ESOP on April
11,2011, with the good faith understanding that — by committing to complete the
transfer of his interest when a share value could be determined and by also
committing specifically that, as of the date of the MOU, he had “no further control
over the ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates, Inc.” —he would be
in compliance with the advice and framework for understanding previously
provided to him by attorney Kaiser. Rep. McKinley believes he did not confer
with Mr. Kaiser on the MOU, however. Rep. McKinley recalls that Mr. Kaiser
took a “just change the name” stance in response to hearing from Heather Jones on
March 31, 2011, that she was going to recommend that the company be required to
change its name. Rep. McKinley understood Mr. Kaiser’s stance as advocating
what Mr. Kaiser saw — as a practical matter — as easiest option to put into effect.
Rep. McKinley viewed Mr. Kaiser’s practical stance, however, as being entirely
consistent with Mr. Kaiser’s guidance with respect to the two legal options for
compliance — either change the company name or divest his interest — that were
available to Rep. McKinley.

On April 14, 2011, Mr. Kaiser emailed a signed letter to Ms. Jones at the
Committee explaining why the Committee would be in error if it found that
McKinley & Associates was a firm providing professional services involving a
fiduciary relationship. (Bates Numbers DMB00000222-26.) Mr. Kaiser sent his
letter to Ms. Jones on April 14 following an Aprit 13, 2011, email from Ms, Jones
to him “reminding” him “that the Committee on Ethics is waiting on your brief
regarding whether architects and engineers are fiduciaries under West Virginia
law.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000476-80.) Mr. Kaiser’s argument in this April
14, 2011, letter is summed up in the following paragraph:
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West Virginia imposes fiduciary responsibilities only upon
consulting engineers, not professional engineers. Moreover, the
House Rules were intended to apply to areas where a professional
had fiduciary responsibilities to his or her client which could
necessarily conflict with the responsibilities of a Member of
Congress. As bas been shown, West Virginia law states clearly that
the fiduciary responsibility of as licensed professional engineer or
licensed architect is to the public, not the client. Thus the dangers
that the House Rules were trying to guard against do not apply in
this particular instance.

(Emphasis added.)

In this April 14, 2011, letter to Ms. Jones, Mr. Kaiser also reiterated “the history of
the professional engineering firm within the McKinley family.” By reiterating this
history, Mr. Kaiser demonstrated that the name McKinley & Associates is a
“family name,” subject as such to a recognized Committee exception to the
prohibition on a Member “permitting” his name to be used by an entity that
provides professional services involving a fiduciary relationship.

By email on April 14, 2011, at 4:52 PM (Bates Numbers DMB00000222-26), Mr.
Kaiser forwarded to Rep. McKinley and to Ms. Adams, at McKinley & Associates,
a copy of this signed letter to Ms. Jones at the Ethics Committee. In this email, Mr.
Kaiser notes that he “added the paragraph at the end reiterating the relationship
between the Johnson McKinley engineering practice and the present-day McKinley
& Associates.” However, Rep. McKinley does not recall discussing drafts of the
letter to Ms. Jones with Mr. Kaiser.

On May 2, 2011, apparently at the request of Andy Sere, Ms. Jackie Barber, then
Deputy General Counsel at the NRCC, emailed Mr. Sere about laws and standards
applicable to participation in a contract with the federal government by a Member
or by a corporation with a relationship with a Member. (Bates Number
DMB00000233.) :

More than two months later, On June 23, 2011, Mr. Kaiser heard again from Ms
Jones at the Committee. Mr. Kaiser described this call in a June 24, 2011, email to
Rep. McKinley, copied to Ms. Adams at McKinley & Associates (and included at
Bates Number DMB00000235): “While she did not give me any indication as to
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the Committee’s decision on this matter, she wanted confirmation from me that
you had resigned your position as an officer and director of McKinley &
Associates. 1told her that your resignation letters were signed and delivered prior
to your being sworn into office as a Member of Congress.”

On June 27, 2011 ~ almost six months after his counsel submitted a letter to the
Committee on January 3, 2011, seeking a formal Committee advisory opinion —
Rep. McKinley received word in a phone call from Chairman Bonner that a letter
would be forthcoming. In an email that same day at 5:29 PM to Mr. Kaiser, Rep.
McKinley summarized the key point of the call with Chairman Bonner: “He says
we must change the name of the company to McKinley Engineering.” (Bates
Number DMB00000237.) Kelle Strickland forwarded the actual letter — dated June
24, 2011 —to Rep. McKinley by email at 5:55 PM on June 27, 2011. (Bates
Numbers DMB00000245-51.) As to why, in his June 27 call with Chairman
Bonner, Rep. McKinley “countered with the option of selling the company to [his]
wife or son” ~ notwithstanding the fact that the MOU was in place with the
McKinley & Associates ESOP regarding transfer of shares and relinquishment of
“control over the ownership and operations of the company” —~ Rep. McKinley
believes he mentioned that option to see if the Committee would receive it
favorably and in case the MOU could somehow be withdrawn in favor of that
option. Rep. McKinley understood at the time, however, that he did not have
control over the ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates, or the
ESOP, and that the ESOP would have to agree to any modification of the terms of
the MOU.

In reviewing the letter, Rep. McKinley quickly focused on a fundamental factual
flaw in the Committee’s analysis regarding what would qualify as a “family name”
for the company, as he pointed out in a June 27, 2011, email to Mr. Kaiser: “This
makes no sense. [TThink about it: McKinley Engineering is OK but McKinley &
Associates is a problem. My father’s company was not McKinley Engineering and
we never represented that it was. That name was the one I used as a sole proprietor
for tzhe early years of the company. Let’s talk.” (Bates Numbers DMB00000238-
44.) ’ :

2 The Committee’s letter dated June 24, 2011, letter does state that Rep. McKinley’s father,
Johnson McKinley, “maintained a one-man office, McKinley Engineering, as a consulting engineer
in Wheeling, West Virginia, beginning in 1954 until his retirement in the 1980s.” It.is not clear
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Rep. McKinley recalls that, within a day or two of receiving the Committee’s letter
on June 27, 2011, he approached Chairman Bonner before the Speaker’s podium
on the floor of the House. With regard to the Committee’s letter, Rep. McKinley
recalls saying to Chairman Bonner, “what the [heck] is this,” or some other
similarly expressive phrase. Rep. McKinley told Chairman Bonner that “McKinley
Engineering” was the original name of Ais firm, not the name of his father’s firm
(as the Committee’s letter incorrectly stated). Rep. McKinley recalls Chairman
Bonner responding, in substance, that the Committee was not aware of this but had
thought that “McKinley Engineering” was the name of his father’s firm; Chairman
Bonner said that this could make a difference to the Committee’s determination.
Rep. McKinley then responded that, in any event, it did not matter anymore
becanse he had already sold his company, by which Rep. McKinley meant the
arrangement put in place by the MOU. Chairman Bonner said that he did not know
this and that he had hoped it would not come to this.

Shortly after receipt, Rep. McKinley shared the Cormitiee’s letter dated June 24,
2011, with members of management at McKinley & Associates.

With respect to steps taken in response to the Committee’s latter dated June 24,
2011, Rep. McKinley reasonably believed that no such steps were necessary
because — first through the MOU and then, at the end of 2011 and as discussed
below, through the final redemption of his remaining shares by McKinley &
Associates — he believed he had complied with the guidance from Mr. Kaiser that
any ethics concerns that would arise for him in connection with the name
“McKinley & Associates” would be resolved by either changing the company
name or divesting his interest in the company. Rep. McKinley believed that the

(Continued . . .)

where the Committee got the information — or the incorreet idea — that Rep, McKinley's father
called his practice “McKinley Engineering.” It does not appear to be in.any written submissions
that had been made to the Committee by counsel for the Congressman. Given Rep. McKinley’s
recollection and understanding that his father did not call his own practice “McKinley Engineering”
and given that “McKinley Engineering” was the original name of McKinley & Associates, there
appears to be just as much basis for the Committee to determine that “McKinley & Associates™ is a
family name as there is for the Committee to determine that “McKinley Engineering” is a family
name. Therefore — and for the other reasons in fact, law, and policy set forth in the instant response
Ietter and in the September 14, 2012, letter to the Committee from the undersigned counsel for Rep.
McKinley — the Committee should reconsider its guidance on this point and determine that
“MeKinley & Associates” itgelf is a “family name.”
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MOU represented a satisfactory good faith effort to resolve the matter by
complying with this second option. Rep. McKinley also believed that by the terms
of the MOU - through which, as of April 11, 2011, he had given control over the
ownership and operations of McKinley & Associates to the ESOP — he no longer
bhad the power or authority to direct or control a change in the name of McKinley &
Associates. Further, Rep. McKinley considered that, through his brief conversation
with Chairman Bonner on the House floor soon after receiving the Committee’s
letter dated June 24, 2011 — in which he told the Chairman that he had sold the
company ~ he had effectively notified the Committee about the action he had
taken.

Nonetheless, Rep. McKinley regtets not having responded to the Committee’s
letter more formally at that time. Rep. McKinley was concerned and upset at the
way the Committec had treated him. As described above, Rep. McKinley’s
concerns with the Committee’s process in this matter included: being asked by
Committee counsel why, if he had to sell McKinley & Associates, he could not just
start another company when he left Congress; being advised by Committee counsel
in January that the company would not have to change its name, hearing nothing
from the Committee for two months, and, then being advised by a different
Committee counsel that the company would have to change its name; hearing
nothing from the Committee on this for more than another two months; having to
wait a total of almost six months for a written response to his January 3, 2011,
written request for formal written guidance on a matter of great personal and
financial importance to him and to the management and employees of McKinley &
Associates; learning that the Committee, in determining a “family name” for the
business, relied upon a name for his father’s business that did not exist and that, in
any case, did not convey the actual business of McKinley & Associates. These are
serious concerns that should not be minimized. However, Rep. McKinley believes
that he may have allowed these concerns about the Committee’s handling of this
matter to affect his responsiveness to the Committee and, if he did, he regrets
having done so; he believes he should have responded in 2 more formal manner to
the Committee’s letter dated June 24, 2011,

Documents indicate that, in late August 2011, Rep. McKinley had preliminary
discussions with attorney Stefan Passantino in connection with this matter. Rep.
McKinley did not sign an engagement letter with Mr. Passantino, but the
Congressman considers these discussions to be covered by attorney-client
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privilege. Documents related to these discussions have been entered on the
privilege log accompanying these responses at Exhibit A.

On October 11, 2011, Congressman and Mrs. McKinley had dinner with former
Congressman Tom Reynolds and his associate Sally. It appears that “ethics
matters” were discussed at the dinuer, including discussion relating fo what the
Congressman, in an email to Mr. Reynolds the next day, refers to as his *““fifth’
child,” i.e., McKinley & Associates. (Bates Number DMB00000252.) On October
13, 2011, Mr. Reynolds responded by email to Rep. McKinley, saying that he had
spoken with an attorney and asking the Congressman to call him. Mr. Reynolds
followed up with Rep. McKinley again by email on November 4, 2011, on their
“previous discussion about your business ownership and the house ethics
committee”; in this same email Mr. Reynolds forward the contact information for
attorney Rob Kelner. (Bates Number DMBO00000257.) It appears that Rep.
McKinley did not follow up on this recommendation.

Sometime in the late fall of 2011, Rep. McKinley, perhaps because of discussions
with Ernie Dellatorre or others at McKinley & Associates, turned his attention to
consummating the sale of his remaining shares in McKinley & Associates to the
ESOP, as contemplated by the MOU he signed and entered into on April 11, 2011.
There are a substantial number of documents related to this transaction, included
with these responses at Bates Numbers DMB00000260-458. Rep. McKinley also
had a number of discussions with individuals, including attorneys Ben Sanders and
Charles Kaiser, persons at McKinley & Associates, and possibly others, about this
transaction. An email from Mr. Sanders, distributed on December 31, 2011, to
Ernie Dellatorre, Gregg Dorfner, and Tim Mizer at McKinley & Associates,
discussed the transaction, its timing, and its effect, (Bates Number
DMB00000369-70.) In this email, also sent to Rep. McKinley, Mr. Sanders
explained that, “[blecause of the press of other business, particularly David’s duties
as a newly elected member of the House of Representatives, a closing of that sale
[committed to through the MOU] has not occurred.” Mr. Sanders noted that,
“although the [MOU] in [Rep. McKinley’s] mind means for all intents and
purposes he no longer has an ownership interest in the Company, the [MOU} is
apparently insufficient evidence of that fact from the point of view of House ethics
rules.” Mr. Sanders further noted that, as of that date ~ i.e., December 31, 2011 —
“requirements imposed on the ESOP by ERISA” made it impossible to finalize the
transaction with the ESOP by the end of 2011. Therefore, because Rep. McKinley
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wanted “to start 2012 without an ownership interest in the company,” as of
December 31, 2011, the corporation MeKinley & Associates redeemed all of Rep.
McKinley’s remaining shares in the company “on the condition that the Company
[would] assume [Rep. McKinley’s obligation under the [MOU] to sell the shares to
the ESOP as soon in 2012 as time [would] permit.” So, as of December 31, 2011,
the transfer of all of Rep. McKinley’s remaining shares in McKinley & Associates,
committed to in good faith in the April 2011 MOU, was finalized, albeit
temporarily to the company rather than the ESOP. The company’s sale of the
shares to the ESOP was completed on April 22, 2012.

Because he reasonably believed that none were necessary, Rep. McKinley took no
farther steps in connection with this matter until he received the Committee’s letter
to him of August 24, 2012. In connection with that letter, Rep. McKinley had
some preliminary contacts with Mr. Kaiser, but shortly after receiving the letter
Rep. McKinley retained undersigned counsel. As previously noted, Rep.
McKinley’s communication with undersigned counsel in connection with that letter
and with the Committee’s letter of March 18, 2013, are covered by attorney-client
privilege and are not separately noted or entered on the privilege log. Further, any
communications by Rep. McKinley with others and any communication by others
in connection with compliance with the Committee’s request for documents and
information as set forth in its March 18, 2013, letter are covered by attorney-client
privilege and/or work product protection and are also not separately noted or
entered on the privilege log.

Response to Committee Request 2

Committee Request 2 requests information and documents concerning the
association of Johnson B. McKinley, Rep. McKinley’s father, with McKinley &
Associates.

Rep. McKinley believes that, to the extent that his father was pald by his firm, it
was as a consultant. Johnson B. McKinley was ot a paid employes, officer,
director, owner, or contractor in connection with McKinley & Associates. With
respect to Johnson B. McKinley’s role as consultant to McKinley & Associates, or
its predecessor firm McKinley Engineering Company,® Rep. McKinley provides

3 As discussed above, although in its June 11, 2011, letter to Rep. McKinley the Commitiee

required a change of the name of the company McKinley & Associates “to the name of your father’s
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two documents from September 1981 responsive to the Committee’s request. The
first is a September 1981 report on “Structural Steel Evaluation” undertaken by
McKinley Engineering Company for Koppers Company, Inc. in Follansbee, West
Virginia. (Bates Numbers DMB00000539-53.) As clearly stated at the beginning
of the document, the report sets forth the results of the work of “J.B. McKinley,
Engineer, Wheeling, West Virginia, at the request of Thurman Wilson, Koppers
Co.” “J.B. McKinley, Engineer” was Rep. McKinley’s father. Similarly, a
September 15, 1981, letter (Bates Number DMB00000554) from McKinley
Engineering Company to the Mayor of Martins Ferry, Ohio, states: “A site
inspection . . . was made by I.B, McKinley, Engineer, to determine the stability of
an alley, sewer repairs, and construction methods.”

At Bates Number DMB00000521, the Committee will find a narrative drafted by
Rep. McKinley relating to his father and his professional association with his
father. Rep. McKinley drafted this narrative after receiving the Committee’s letter
of August 24, 2012, Mary McKinley’s comments on this draft narrative may be
seen in an email from her to Rep. McKinley at Bates Numbers DMBO0000460-61.

Apart from the information described above or provided in Rep. McKinley’s
September 14, 2012, letter to the Comumittee, Rep. McKinley does not have any
other information or documents responsive to Committee Request 2. McKinley &
Associates may have additional information or documents responsive to this
request, but Rep. McKinley does not know if they do or, if so, what information or
documents they may have.

(Continued . . .)

original business, McKinley Engineering,” to the best of his knowledge his father never used or
operated under the name McKinley Engineering and he does not know where the Comumittee got
this information or why it came to this conclusion. Research done by MeKinley & Associates
employee David Carenbaver in connection with the Committee’s August 24, 2012, letter to Rep.
McKinley listed a number of names used by Johnson B. McKinley between 1954 and 1992 for his
business, but McKinley Engineering is not one of these names, (Bates Number DMB00000524.) A
piece of letterhead from Johnson B. McKinley from 1985 shows his use of the business name
“Johnson B. McKinley, Consulting Engineer.” (Bates Number DMB00000526.) Minutes of the
regular mesting of the Council of Beech Bottom, West Virginia, for November 4, 1986 — available
online in PDF form at http://becchbottomwy.org/pdfs/1986 pdf, at page 257 — refer to a “Johnson B.
MeKinley Engineering.” : : -
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Rep. McKinley believes that, with respect to understanding and appreciating his
father’s connection with McKinley Engineering and McKinley & Associates, it is
important for the Committee to focus on more than just pay records, financial
transactions, or contracts alone. First, if some of the records sought by the
Committee existed at one time, these records may have been created as much as 30
years ago, or more; for the Committee to base any determination on the absence of
such records under these circumstances would be unsound. Second, Johnson B.
McKinley’s interest and activities in assisting his son’s business did not depend on
compensation, so to focus exclusively on records of financial compensation in this
context is to focus too narrowly.. Johnson B. McKinley was Rep. McKinley’s
father. There were family ties at work. Therefore, it is important for the
Committee in this regard to review carcfully the information on Johnson B,
McKinley and his association with Rep. McKinley’s business that is set out at
pages 3 and 4 of Rep. McKinley’s September 14, 2012, letter. (Bates Numbers
DMBO00000527-38.)

Response to Committee Request 3

Committee Request 3 asks for information and documents in connection with
McKinley & Associates’ contracts with or practices before the federal government.

As to any such current contracts, to Rep. McKinley’s understanding the company
still has an “open-ended” contract with the U.S. Postal Service, under which the
company may do work upon request. Rep. McKinley does not know specifics as to
the current status of this contract or as to the work, if any, currently being done by
MceKinley & Associates in connection with the contract. With respect to such
specifics as the Committee is requesting in Request 3 on any current or previous
confracts with the federal government, Rep. McKinley believes that such
information is within the custody and control of McKinley & Associates; therefore,
Rep. McKinley respectfully advises that the company would be the source of such
information for the Committee.

Although not strictly responsive to this request, an additional point should be made
here with respect to use of the name “McKinley & Associates” by Rep.
McKinley’s former firm. Under relevant procurement codes and regulations, and
under other standards applicable to architects and engineers, no matter what name
the Committee may determine that McKinley & Associates should operate under,



200

The Honorable K. Michael Conaway, Chairman
The Honorable Linda T. Sanchez, Ranking Member
May 1, 2013

Page 29

when the company bids for work with a government client that government client
will necessarily see abundant documentation (relating to past projects by and
qualifications of the firm) that the firm is the former “McKinley & Associates.” In
this way, shott of closing down the company there appears to be no way to keep
use of the “McKinley & Associates” name out of the government contracting
process.

Responses to Commitiee Requests 5,6, 7, and 8

Through the discussion and responses in this letter, and through the documents
accompanying this letter, Rep. McKinley has attempted to comply with Committee
Request 5 and 6 with respect to providing documents and, as solicited by the
Committee in Request 8, has provided other information and docurnents that he
hopes will assist the Comumittee.

With respect to Committee Request 7, regarding efforts taken to identify
documents responsive to the Committee’s request, reasonable and appropriate steps
were taken identify such documents, including:

o Identifying and collecting bard copy documents in Rep. McKinley’s
possession.

* Distributing a document preservation and identification notice to official
and campaign staff and collecting identified materials.

+ Copying and searching Rep. McKinley’s House email account. (Rep.
McKinley understands, however, that the House has a 14 day retention
policy for email.)

» Imaging and searching the hard drives of Rep. McKinley House desktop
and laptop computers. (It appears that Rep. McKinley saved items locally
and did not save items to the House network.)

» Imaging and searching text messages from Rep. McKinley’s iPhone.

s Imaging and searching Mary McKinley’s AOL email account.
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» Imaging and searching the computer used by Rep. McKinley in his non-
official office at the Maxwell Center in Wheeling, West Virginia.

Although he is not able to identify specific items, Rep. McKinley believes there are
likely to be documents responsive to the Committee’s requests in the possession,
custody, and control of McKinley & Associates and/or individual personnel at the
company.

If the Comumittee has any questions about the responses or documents provided
with this letter by Rep. McKinley, or wishes to discuss any aspect of this matter,
please do not hesitate to contact Jan Witold Baran, at 202. 719§, or Robert L.
Walker, at 202.719 i}

Sincerely,

é Jan Witold Baran

Counsel for Rep. David B. McKinley

Attachments

cc:  The Honorable David B. McKinley




202

Exhibit A



203

BOROAUUOD Uf UOFEIIUMUMIC]

W) UONII0L] 10 35

uo souspmg edary

Jne Pelygng

HonIANOIgASIpALIG

aday,

£10T/1/¢

y_:m.h» ¥ Nea

ASTUrS[OIN "€ PIAB(T 3O 80T 982[1ALId UOTIONPOIJ JUSWNIG(
159mb2Y £107 ‘ST YoV SO UO 22IUMIO"Y FSNOF] "] Y 01 2suodsay uf

wdpay

"JOSUROY JO IOIAPE Qoueduiod SONIS T — w SOTEID0SS Conursio . sueAzy Apuey | ounuessey
SURPR[el UOBOTIRIIIOS 10 souepIng [eSe] TIAHd TSy Y [y BIBIO0SSY 79 AS[UTHOW Wd 0T L107/1¢/8 ‘a1ag Kpuy weyIg
“[OSURO0 JO SOIAPE 20U AWIod $ONNe ~ . i . j . Kopurgpo
L 10 oouepid 8oy aBapiallg Ul )-Aswony B | SOBII0SSY % ASjULNOI P | NV 1ATT STIO/6 | . g e 210§ Apuy
*{95Unod JO 20ipe SUnfEas s 2o duod SO Ao )
1957199 JO Soxpe UPias i e T2 | sfomapg weny-dewony | ey (120fqns ON) WY LT3 TI02/ZYT | yong Auery .mﬁwm%




204

Exhibit 3




205

From: Kaiser, Charles J. [ IR o oka.com>

Sent: Wednesday, November 24, 2010 5:04 PM
Tou David B McKinfey
Subject: RE: Company name change...

David: | will be out of town on Friday, but think that it might be a good idea to pick a time early next week to talk about
the options. There are no prohibitions in West Virginia to continuing to use the name McKinley & Associates even
though you are not an owner or an officer or director. You will have to notify both the Board of Architecture and the PE
Board who the “Supervising Architect” and the "Supervising Professional Engineer” is with respect to the company once
that is decided. You will not be able to stay on the Board or be an officer, but you can be paid the vatue of the stock if it
is sold to the ESOP {i.e. you can be paid for your capital interest) or for income that you are entitied to receive as a result
of completed work. Caution will be required with respect to how this is calculated. The question as to the change of
name boils down to whether McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm “providing professional services involving
a fiduciary refationship”. An example of this definition in the Rules is a company providing architectural services, but we
can certainly ask for a ruling and argue that it does not apply to you because you are not an architect. if the ruling
comes back favorable, you can keep your interest in the company, but not work or receive earned income from it. if
McKinley & Associates is considered to be a firm providing prafessional services involving a fiduciary relationship, then it
appears that you are left with two choices: (1) change the name, or {2} completely divest yourself of your interest in the
company (this appears to include Mary as well). Please understand that your situation is different than family
businesses that do not provide professional services {i.e. car dealerships), though 1 think the logic got lost when this
Rule/law was being formulated. In addition, it is important for you to understand that this is not simply a House Rule,
but a federal statute, Let me know the best time to talk Monday (or Sunday if that works better). Have a Happy
Thansgiving. CIK

From: David B McKinley [maitto: (Il @mckinlevassoc.com]
Sent: Tuesday, November 23, 2010 3:50 PM

To: Kaiser, Charles 3.

Subject: FW: Company name change...

More thoughts.

From: Andy Sere [mailto, JJJF@NRCC.org]
Sent: Tuesday, November 09, 2010 5:53 PM
To: inl

Subject: RE: Company name change...

David:
Just a quick update.

Rep. Vern Buchanan's (R-Fla.) 2886 campaign manager gave me the contact info for John Tosch,
Buchanan's corporate attorney who handled all Vern's transition stuff. Will be interesting to
see what he has to say when he gets back to me, since they obviously found some way around
this (Buchanan's car dealerships are still called “Buchanan Automotive™).

Also talked to Todd Ungerecht, who used to work for the Ethics Committee and now works for
Rep. Doc Hastings (R-Wash.) on the Natural Resources Committee. He told me that there may be
ways around this (one question he had was, to whom do you plan to divest the business -~ is

Maintain as Confidential
DMB000O00033
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David H involved?), and he's going to take a look at the situation and provide some thoughts
soon.

At the end of the day this will obviously be handled by attorneys, but until they get
involved I°11 keep trying to find out more background and will keep you posted.

Andy

Andy Seré
Regional Press Secretary
National Republican Congressional Committee
(202) 479 - ofc
713) 886 cell

@nrec. org

----- Original Message----~

From: Andy Sere

Sent: Tuesday, November @9, 2010 18:28 AM
To: 'dmckinley@mckinleyassoc.com'
Subject: Company name change...

David:

Tim mentioned to me this issue you're having with a lawyer's opinion on your company’s name
in light of your election to Congress.

Have there been any further developments on this?
I am going to make a few calls this afternoon to see what I can find out about how this issue
has been handled in the past with other members in similar situations. Will let you know if I

learn anything.

Andy

No virus found in this message.

Version: 10.0.1153 / Virus Database: 424/3246 - Release Date: 11/09/10

No virus found in this message.
Checked by AVG - v g .com
Version: 10.0.1170 / Virus Database: 426/3285 - Release Date: 11/28/10

Maintain as Confidential
DMBOC000034
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From: Kaiser, Charles J. <@ gka.com>
Sent: Wednesday, January 26, 2011 10:05 AM
To: David B McKinley

Ce: Lynn Adams

Subject: House Committee on Standards

David: |received a call from Mr. Simpson who is a staff member of the House Committee on Standards late yesterday
afterncon. He advised me that the staff agreed with our assertion that McKinley & Associates does not provide
professional services involving a fiduciary refationship. As you will recall this is the critical element that created the
difficulties under the House Ethics Manual. Mr. Simpson also agreed that McKintey & Associates quatified as a “family
business” and so the name would not need to be changed. He stated that as a result of the first poirt, there is no need
for a blind trust to hold your stock in McKinley & Associates. There continues to be a strict prohibition on the part of
Congressman McKinley using his elected office to solicit or to direct business to McKintey & Associates. Thus, for
example, you could not specify earmarks or other federal funding for projects where McKinley & Associates is the
project engineer and you could not contact any federal agencies on behalf of McKinley & Associates, However, you
coutd be compensated by McKinley & Associates up to the earned income limits (525,000 +/-) for employment with
McKintey & Associates. And there are no Hmits in your raceipt of unearned income {i.e. dividends) from your stock
ownership of McKinley & Associates. Because of the conflict of interest rules (i.e. using a congressional office to solicit
perscnal business), Mr. Simpson and | believe that it would still be advantageous for you to avoid service as an officer or
director of McKinley & Assaciates and to create a simple voting trust for your stock. In other words, the stock would still
be in your name but someone else will vote the stock. Because we do not have to follow the Blind Trust Rules, the
trustee of the voting trust can be family members or a combination of related parties {i.e. the trustees could be the
officers of McKinley & Associates and David H.). Give me a call when you can talk further about this so that | can get
back to Mr. Simpson and eliminate the Blind Trust. Best Regards.

Charles J. Kaiser, ir., £sq.

PHILLIPS, GARDILL, KAISER & ALTMEYER, PLLC.
61 Fourteenth Street

Wheeling, WV 26003

T: 304-232

Fax: 304-232-4918 or 304-232-6907

G ocke.com
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CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE: This message, together with any attachments is intended only for the addressee and may contain
information which is legally privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure. if you are not the intended recipient, you are
hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution, use, or any action or reliance on this communication is strictly

prohibited. If you have received this a-mail in error, please notify the sender immediately by telephone {304} 232-6810 or by return
e-mail and delete the message along with any attachments.

RS CIRCULAR 230 NOTICE: To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that any U.5. tax advice
contained in this communication {or in any attachment} Is not intended or written to be used, and cannot be used, for the purpose
of (i} avoiding penalties under the IRS Code or (i} promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or
matter addressed in this communication {or in any attachment},

Maintain as Confidential
DMBO00000185
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WATER DEF'T.: No repart, except that they got their new gaes cards and the Village
and Water Dep’'t. are now separate.

GARBAGE AND THREES: Some tree limbs were left on the road after the Tri-State
truck accident, Mr. Watson asks if we should have them picked up. M. Augustine
suggests that it is their problem.

Mr. HMall had the trees topped and trimmed by Mrs. Wilson's st a cost of $100.00.

MAYOR'S REPORT:

Hallowssn will be held on Wed. Dot. 29th., An attempt to discuss the possibility

of holding & teen dence or not (on behalf of the Ladies Auxillary) was made.

M. Augustine informed us that this is not Council's business, that it was the
_Village and Fire Dep't. problem and the matter was dropped.

It seems we have an imterested party for Marshéll of Beech Bottom. This will be
checked imto Further and will then be discussed furtber.

About Tri-Co Cable, their contract renews automatically unless we inform them in
writing 80 days before the contract comes due. On delinguincies, upon checking

it was Found that it will cost us asbout $75,00 to try the three cases that are

most pressing ot this time. IF we win thay will shve to pay the court costs, but if
they have no assets, we can't collect amyway. After a short discussion it wes
decided that we have to at least try, and show these psople that we have to he taken
seriously. A motion was maede by Mr. Augustine to proceed on these three cases

and was seconded by M-, Watson. The motion passed. .

The PSD received approval of the EPA Grant for the sewage project. The rest must
come from the COBG. Some trees are in bad condition by the rest home and need
attention,

TREASURERS BEPORT: Was read and appraoved as read.
GENERAL. FUND:

2-1-88 Balance $ 940,72
9-25-85 Tet. Beceipts $5,6840.88
9.-30-86 Tot, Disbursements  $2,128.00
9-30-86 Balance $14,452.60
COAL. SEVERANCE
G 185 Bislance & 240.37
9-3-86 ’ Bisburs, to P.O. $ e2.00
89-30-86 No receipts
9-30-86 Balance $ 218.37
revenue sharing
9 1-85 Bel, both aco. $4, 737,50
Interest rec, $ 48.78
9.30-86 no disb.-balance $, 786,28
9-30-86 bzl in checking $ 835.17
9-30-86 bl in inv. fund $4,151.11

With all business discussed a motion was made by M-, Auguatimg to adjourn the
meeting and was seconded by M, Niven. Adjourned at 8:40 pm.

s ALY
\i&jm\)%j?t k@d{djﬁ;\) Aj@ﬁ -

Aecorder

November 4, 1986

The regular meating of the Council of Beech Bottom was called to order at
7:05 pm by Mayor Hall.. Council members present were M. Augustine, Mr. Watsom,
Mrs. Yahrling, and Mrs. Rush.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited by all present. The minutes of the
previous meeting were read snd approved as read.

Visitors present were Mr, Mark Baldwin of the BHJ, M-, Loaw, and Mr. Miller,
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Mr. Baldwin was recognized. He stated we have made our second drawdown on the

COBG funds. A total of $53,532.62 went to Tri-State Asphalt, $3,000.00 went to
Johnson 8. MeKinley Engineering, and $882.25 will go to the BHJ once the checks
are signed, and mailed. A Fimal audit must still be done on the account, but ro
date has been set for certain. Mr. Ciprisni's bill was paid out of the balance

in the checking account, Mr. Baldwin said there is still @ possibility of two

to three thousand dollars still remeining from the grant monies. UOnce all the
Figures are in, he will let us know.

Mr, Loew was then recognized. He said he wanted to thank the Villsge for the
nice job on the gtreets, He reported he bas been getting some complaints From the
Moore Family asbout the new street light he put up For his parking area. They
have made threats of bringing a law suit against the Village if the light is rot
taken down. They alsc were supposed to be at this meeting, but have not appesrecd
as of yet., After some discussion it was decided that this should be tabled until
the rext meeting.

COMMITTEE REPORTS:

STREETS: The paving is completed. the edges of the streests were tapered out at the
alley openings, driveways and parking lots. The alleys were cut and slagged., There
is @ broken storm sewser drain on second street, M, McCutchan is too busy to make
the repairs. M~. Augustine will teke care of it in the future. The leaves will be
picked up on Saturday. More maintanence was done to the snow plow., Mr. Augustine
asked the Mayor do desigrate someone to run the snow plow this winter.

HALL.: Paul Prillips called Carcle about renting the Hall for & weeks for Union
Meetings. He will need it every Monday, November through the middle of December.

A discussion was held on whether to charge him $15.00 a week plus a$10.00 deposit
each week or to just charge him $15.00 a week, It was decided to charge him $15.00
a week plus the $10,00 deposit,

GARBAGE: There has been complaints about broken garbage bags and broken glass jers
on Hill Street. M. Sugustine also stated thaere is a lot of garbage being dumped
in the hollow ares. The Mayor will contact Mr. Niven about having a baracade of
some sort put up to belp prevent this.

M~, Watson also reports that the PSD will interview three engineering Firms
interested in doing the Village sewage project.

MAYOR'"'S REPORT: M. Hall talked to the Magistrate sbout our delinquent accounts
to our water dep't, and garbage. To cases were placed with the Magistrate. Mr.
Temple's wife called the Mayor about getting permission te pay en their account

in the amount of $10.00 per month. Mrs, Bush read the letter she received from
M. Campbell Lo The bills are to be paid in Full plus $25.00 court costs.
The roof drains fr'om the Post OFfice were improperly installed. They should drain
out @t the curb instead of over the sidewalk. this was an oversight by the owner
and camtractors.  The Postmaster is aware of the situestion and agrees that it needs
corrected. The owner is alsc avare and ssid bowever that since the Village took
it upon theirselves to start the project of the lower drain that thay should
Finish it, and the Postmaster is trying to have the roof drain corrected.

TREASURERS REPOAT: Was read and approved as read.
General fFund:

10-1-86 Bslance 1,452,680
10-26-86 Tctal Aeceipts $e, 124,12
10-28-85 Tot. Dishursements  $1,485.87
10-31-86 Bislance $&,090.85
COAL. SEVERANCE

10-1-88 Bmlance $ 218.37

No transactions in Oct..

REVENUE SHARING
10-1-86 Bsl. both acc's. $4,786.28

O
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